DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 117 353.

CE 005 974

AUTHOR

·Lackey, L. L.; Jacobs, T. Oa

TITLE

- A Study of the Success and Work Expectancies of Public Service Career Employees. Final Report.

INSTITUTION

Human Resources Research Organization, Alexandria,

SPONS AGENCY

Civil Service Commission, Washington, D.C. Personnel

Measurement Research and Development Center.

PUB DATE

Oct 72

NOTE

159p.

EDRS PRICE DESCRIPTORS MF-\$0.83 HC-\$8.69 Plus Postage

*Disadvantaged Groups; Entry Workers; Pederal

Programs; *Government Employees; Middle Class Values;

Personnel Data; *Questionnaires; Research

Methodology; Tables (Data); Underemployed; *Values;

*Work Attitudes

IDENTIFIERS

Public Service Careers Program

ABSTRACT

The study attempted to measure world-of-work values and perceptions at entry and after a period of employment of. enrollees in Plan D of the Public Service Careers (PSC) Program, a Federal program designed to bring disadvantaged individuals into Federal employment. A PSC Enrollee Questionnaire, developed from a logical taxonomy of world-of-work values based on an extensive review of related literature, was administered twice, along with supervisor evaluations, for initial testing and at six months after employment. The first session involved 328 enrollees in the entry-level component, 106 individuals in the upgrade component, and 95 Federal employees holding equivalent positions to those of PSC entry-level workers. The second session involved 211 PSC entry-level enrollees and 137 of their supervisors. Project background, methodology, data analysis, summary of findings and recommendations are presented, with 27 tables. Appended material, encompassing half, the document, presents the data collecting instruments and responses. Conclusions state that PSC enrollee perceptions of world-of-work values were congruent with the "middle-class value system", these values were maintained through job experience, and the PSC employee is generally underemployed in the entry job and might continue to be after one promotion. (LH)

Documents acquired by ERIC include many informal unpublished * materials not available from other sources. ERIC makes every effort * to obtain the best copy available. Nevertheless, items of marginal * reproducibility are often encountered and this affects the quality * of the microfiche and hardcopy reproductions ERIC makes available * via the ERIC Document Reproduction Service (EDRS). EDRS is not responsible for the quality of the original document. Reproductions '

supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made from the original.

CV

Final Report

A Study of the Success and Work Expectancies of Public Service Career Employees

L.L. Lackey and T.O. Jacobs

HumRRO Division No. 4
Columbus, Georgia

October 1972

Prepared for

United States Civil Service Commission
Bureau of Policies and Standards
Personnel Measurement Research and Development Center
Standards Division

US OFFARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION & WELFARE NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF EOUCATION

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REPRODUCED EXACTLY AS RECEIVED FROM THE PERSON OR ORGANIZATION ORIGINATING IT POINTS OF VIEW OR OPINIONS STATED DO NOT NECESSARILY REPRESENT OFFICIAL NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION POSITION OR POLICY

HUMAN RESOURCES RESEARCH ORGANIZATION 300 North Washington Street • Alexandria, Virginia 22314



CEOOE 97

	•		•	•	• •		•	
•	BIBLIOGRAPHIC DATA SHEET	I. Report No.	-	. 2.	•	3. Recipient	's Accession No	· ·
	4. Title and Subtitle		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			5, Report Da	ite ,	
	A STUDY OF THE SUC	CESS AND WORK	EXPECTANCI	ES OF	•	October	1972	•
	PUBLIC SERVICE CAP	REER LAPLOYLES				. 6.	•. ,	•
	7. Author(s) L.L. Lackey and T.	0. Jacobs	;			8. Performing	Organization R	έφι. Νο
\exists	9. Performing Organ, zati Y.		· ·			10 P	Task Work i mit	
	Human Resources Re		zation (Wilm	י נחמם	•		rusk work chit	.10,
	300 North Washingt	on Street	Lacion (num	KKO)		11, Contract	Grant No.	,
.	Alexandria, Virgin				•	CS132	,	٠.,
ļ				• ,		C3132	•	•
	12. Sponsoring Organization	ame and Address			•	13. Type of d	Report & Period	
	United States Civi					1	•	
١	Bureau of Policies					Final Rep	port	-;
	Personnel Measurem 1900 E Street, N.W			ment Cen	ter	14.	•	•
·	15. Supplementary Notes	., Mashington	, D.C.			.l	<u>; </u>	
	Research performed	hv HumRRO Di	vision lo	4 Columb	hus - Coordi		-	
	Research periormed	i by Hamililo by	(131011)	4, Corum	ous, deorgi	.a. ,.	•	
1	16. Abstracts					<u>.</u>	 ,	
ı	This study was	designed to	develop metl	nodologi	es for meas	uring worl	d-of-work	
-	' values and percept	ion's of enrol	lees in Plan	n D of th	ne Public S	ervice Car	eers (PSC)	
-	Program, both in t	he entry-leve	l component	and in't	the upgrade	program.		
ŀ	The approach i	nvolved the d	evelopment o	of a logi	cal taxono	my of worl	d-of-work	
•	values based upon	an extensive	review of the	ne litera	ature on th	e motivati	on to work	
-	Several questionna	ires were con	structed for	r obtaini	ing data co	ncerning w	orld-of-wor	rk
-	values and percept	ions from PSC	enrollees a	and other	r norkers p	erforming	similar du	ties.
1	These data collect	ion instrumen	ts were admi	inistered	twice, on	ce for ini	țial testir	ng,
	and at six months	arter employm	ent.	. 1 4		Tis: The		
	Results of the those in the upgra	de program O	ing were use	the cover	mare worke	rs in the	entry leve.	ı to
	visory evaluations	of the PSC e	rollee to 1	learn wha	it costing	d goal cha	none are	. -
1	associated with su	ccess in the i	SC Program.		ic gours an	u gour cha	nges are	
r	17. Key Words and Document A					· ·		
-	*Civil Service		•		,			
1	*Civilian personne	1 .			ŕ			
1	*Employment							
	*Personnel							
	*Personnel develop		-		,			4
ŀ	*Personnel selection	on	د	,				.
	*Supervisors				2	-	-	ŀ
	*Work Measurement	_			•		,	İ
1	•		-			•	2	'
	•		•			•	• .,	
	17b. Identifiers Open-Ended Te				, ,,	, ,	•	
1	Data collection que							
	Hard-core unemploye							
ļ	Public Service Care		,				,	- 1
	Supervisory evaluat	tion	6	,	•			. 1
	Unemployment		• ••			·.		
	World-of-work value		• /					<u> </u>
L	17c. COSATI Field/Group 05	OUY						.
	18. Availability Statement		· , _ , _ ,	,0	19. Security Ci	145 (This]	21, No. of Page	,
	•		\cdot 3	,	Rebarr) flat	LASSIFIED	156	- 1
			•		20. Security C	as (Ims	22. Price	
L	EDIC —				Tage / URÇ	LASSIFIED	·	
۱, إ ب	S-25 (10-70)	,		, ,		* 3 , 1	USCOMM-DC 4032	9.57.5
í	Full lext Provided by ENIC			,				• .

FOREWORD

This study of the success, goals, and perceptions of enrollees in Plan D of the Public Service Careers Program has as an overall objective the determination of the impact of Federal employment upon the world-of-work values and perceptions of individuals entering the PSC Program.

The project was performed by HumRRO Division No. 4, Columbus, Georgia under the sponsorship of the Personnel Research and Development Center of the United States Civil Service Commission (Contract No. CS132). Dr. T.O. Jacobs is Director of Division No. 4 and Principal Investigator, and Dr. L.L. Lackey was Project Director.

Assisting with the data collection were Jane V. Lee, Dr. John P. Fry, Jr., and Lynn C. Fox. Louis E. DeGreeff and Sarah C. Morris tabulated the data, and Thomas M. Meierhofer assisted with the analyses.

Meredith P. Crawford President . Human Resources Research Organization

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

RESEARCH, PROBLEM

The focus of this project was on Plan D of the Public Service Careers (PSC) Program, a governmental program designed to bring disadvantaged individuals into Federal employment within merit system procedures. The PSC Program was also designed to provide upgrading potential to those currently employed at lower levels by the Federal government.

The purposes of this project were to (a) ascertain the world-of-work values and perceptions both of enrollees in the entry component of the PSC Program and of those in the upgrade component, (b) determine the impact of prolonged employment upon the world-of-work values and perceptions of those in the PSC Program entry component, and (c) relate any changes in world-of-work values and perceptions over time to program success and retention.

APPROACH

A logically derived taxonomy of world-of-work values was developed as the basis for construction and selection of questionnaires to assess the world-of-work values and perceptions of enrollees in the PSC Program. Two response formats, Likert-type and forced-choice, were used for the questionnaire that was developed, the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire.

Responses were elicited from three subject groups: (a) 328 enrollees in the entry component of the PSC Program, (b) 106 individuals in the upgrade component of the PSC Program, and (c) 95 employees of the Federal government occupying positions generally equivalent to those held by PSC entry-level workers. Samples were drawn from Washington, D.C.; Baltimore, Maryland; Fort Ord, California; White Sands, New Mexico; and Pensacola, Florida.

There were two data collection sessions, with a time interval between sessions of approximately six months. The results of Session I were used in (a) assessing the world-of-work values and perceptions of entry-level enrollees in the PSC Program, and (b) making comparisons among the three subject classifications.

In Session II, responses were obtained from 211 PSC entry-level enrollees and 137 of their supervisors. Data obtained from entry-level respondents were analyzed by means of t tests to assess changes in world-of-work values and perceptions over time. Product moment correlations were computed in order to relate differences between sessions on relevant scores to ratings of each worker by the appropriate supervisor on performance, adjustment, motivation, stability, and potential. Additional data obtained from each supervisor consisted of a score on the least preferred coworker scale. Each entry-level enrollee also rated his supervisor on scales assessing the leader behavior dimensions of consideration and initiation of structure. Scores assigned supervisors were compared on each dimension on the basis of the supervisor's sex and ethnic group by means of t tests.

The PSC Enrollee Questionnaire was factor analyzed by means of a principal-components factor analysis with varimax rotation.



RESULTS

Only results from the Likert-type response condition are reported here since those from the forced-choice response condition were generally less reliable.

(1) For Session I, few differences were found between the three subject groups on

world-of-work values and perceptions.

(2) For both sessions, subjects discriminated among the various categories of values, with the most highly valued outcomes of work perceived as intrinsic benefits and the opportunity for self-development. The Intrinsic Benefits area subsumed goals reflecting "the work itself," in the Herzberg sense. Goals categorized as Developmental Needs, while similar, reflected achievement as opposed to content of work.

(3) There were few significant differences between sessions in the world-of-work

values and perceptions for entry-level PSC enrollees.

(4) Sex differences in ratings of goals in Session II were minimal, with only one goal, Good Working Conditions (Like Air Conditioning), being rated significantly higher by females than by males.

(5) According to responses to the Job Description Index, the two least satisfying job aspects were those of pay and promotions. Female subjects expressed significantly less satisfaction with both pay and promotions in Session II than they had reported for Session I.

(6) Reliability coefficients computed for the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire were substantially higher for the Likert-type response format than for the forced-

choice condition.

- (7) Changes from Session I to Session II, for those respondents participating in both sessions, were significant for the following psychological tests:
 - (a) Males felt they had less power in influencing their own outcomes.

(b) Males found their work less meaningful.

(c) Males and females had become less trusting of others and their motives; the females were less trusting and less interested in entering into relationships with others than were the males.

(d) Females became more interested in less routinized jobs.

(e) Males felt less concern for "middle-class" values.

- (8) (a) White subordinates gave significantly higher ratings to their supervisors on leader behaviors showing consideration than did black subordinates.
 - (b) Black female supervisors received lower ratings on behaviors reflecting initiation of structure than any other supervisory classification.
- (9) The least preferred co-worker score did not relate to the supervisor's rating of his subordinates.

(10) There were no systematic differences between the supervisors' ratings of their average non-PSC subordinates and those given their PSC subordinates.

(11) Increased valuation in Session II of the goals subsumed by the Gratification Demands value category was associated with high ratings on all five subscales in the Supervisor's Rating Scale.

(12) The five subscales in the Supervisor's Rating Scale were found to be signifi-

cantly interrelated.

2 (13) The factor analysis conducted on the Session II data for the entry-level subjects resulted in the identification of five factors, which accounted for 53%



 \mathbf{e}

of the variance. These factors were assigned the following labels: (a) Security Through Job Accomplishment, (b) Social Interaction Orientation, (c) Materialistic, Orientation, (d) Economic Instrumentality, and (e) Esteem Satisfaction Through Work.

(14) Scores on these five factors proved to be unrelated to supervisory ratings of subordinates on any of the five subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form.

CONCLUSIONS

(1) The world-of-work values and perceptions of the PSC enrollees were, for the most part, congruent with those of the 'middle-class value system."

(2) The presence of only a few changes in the world-of-work values and perceptions of the enrollees as a function of job experience, and the high level of supervisory ratings, indicate the appropriateness of these values for the work environment.

(3) The "typical" PSC enrollee probably is underemployed in the entry jobs, and might continue to be after one promotion.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations are based upon the findings of this project and the relevant conclusions reached in the studies cited in the Introduction and Discussion portions of this report. These recommendations are focused on any future changes that might be made in the operation of the PSC Program.

(1) An "Outreach" feature should be added to the PSC Program, for the purpose of recruiting the extremely list dyantaged, both through direct contacts in the disadvantaged community and through records by appropriate agencies.

Inclusion of this feature would, of necessity, restits in some modifications to the existing structure of the PSC Program. One such change would involve a shift in the allocation of resources so that more personnel would be available to engage in "Outreach" activities. It might be necessary to choose these personnel on the basis of criteria presently used in selecting personnel. Sequencing of the PSC Program activities would need to be considered because persons entering through outreach activities might exhibit values and attitudes different from the current enrollees. Restructuring and/or redesign of some features of the PSC Program might be necessary.

(2) Greater emphasis should be given the entry criterion that the applicant could not have obtained the job without PSC Program intervention.

(3) Greater emphasis should be placed upon providing information to, and obtaining the cooperation of, supervisors of PSC entrants.

(4) As new training courses are developed for supervisors of PSC entrants, special attention should be paid to topics that are especially relevant for enrollees (e.g., communication, behavioral expectations, and establishment of a supportive environment).

(5) Social skills courses developed for PSC entrants should not be predicated on the assumption that the entrant's values are substantially different from those of the "middle class," but should emphasize job-related behaviors.

ERIC Full text Provided by ERIC

CONTENTS

Chapter .		Page
1 Introduction		3
_ Focus	of Project	3
• ,	PSC Program	3
	Objectives of the Project	4
~ Review	of Literature	4
B	The "Hard-Core Unemployed" Concept	5
•	Value Congruence	6
	Retention and Performance of the Ex-Hard-Core Unemployed	7
•	Job Satisfaction, Motivation to Work, Performance	8
	Importance of Job Characteristics and Job Satisfaction	11
¹ 2 Approach .		13
2 Approach .	ixonomy of Values	_
	— 1	14
· The Qu	uestionnaires	14
*	Development of the Questionnaires	17
•	Subjects and Questionnaire Administration	
	Format and Methodology	, 17
' _ Analys		` 19
	PSC Enrollee Questionnaires	20
	Supervisor's Rating Form	20
•	Inventory for Supervisors	21
	Assessment of Supervisory Influences	21
	Goals of Best Friend 🗗	21
_	Interrelationships of Selected Forms	21
,	Reliability	21
•	Factor Analysis	21
	Summary of Test Components and Interpretation	21
3 / Results		25
	ility Results	25
	of Session I Results	27
Heview	Subject Characteristics	27
· · · · · ·	Comparisons of Subject Groups by Value Category	27
		27
•	Comparisons of Value Categories	28
	Goals Comparisons	
• ,	Job Description Index	29 29
,	Psychological Tests	
,~ ,	Discussion	30
Review	of Session II Results and Comparisons With Session I	31
	Subject Characteristics	31
,	Value Category Comparisons	32



Chapt	er ,	Page
′ 3 1	(Continued) Goals Comparisons	34
	Goal Ratings for Respondent and Best Friend	39
-	Joby Description Index	40
	Psychological Tests	42
	Assessment of Supervisory Influences	. 43
	Ratings of Supervisory Behaviors	43
•	Comparisons of Supervisor Ratings by Supervisor's Sex and	
	Ethnic Group	43
	Interrelationships of Selected Forms	44
	Supervisors'-Rating Form	44
	Comparisons of Supervisors' Ratings of Subordinates as a	
	Function of LPC Score	45
1	Comparisons of Supervisors' Ratings of Subordinates as a	•
,	Function of Sex and Ethnic Group of the Supervisor	45
15 mg	Comparisons of Supervisors' Ratings of PSG Subordinates and the	
	Average Non-PSC Subordinate as a Function of Sex and Ethnic	
1	Group of Supervisor	45
*	Supervisor's Ratings and Individual Worker Responses	46
***	Value Category Difference Scores and Supervisory Ratings	46
dy a sign	Psychological Test Scores and Supervisory Ratings	49
A CONTRACTOR	Job Description Index Scores and Supervisory Ratings	50
TO THE WAY	Factor Analysis	51
	Likert-Type Response Condition	52
	Forced-Choice Response Condition	55
	Analysis of Factor Scores	55
` 4	Discussion	58
4	Discussion Findings and Implications	
	Conclusions	64
1	Recommendations	65
•		05
5	Summary	67
Literatu	re Cited	69
Append		
'Α	Taxonomy of Values and Goals Within Each Value Category	73
В	Job Description Index	74
C	Psychological Tests and Items Within Each by Response Condition	7 6
D	Assessment of Supervisory Influences - Items Within Each Dimension	85
Ε\	Items Within Inventory for Supervisors and Supervisor's Rating Form	87
F)	Ratings of Goals: Likert-Type Condition	89



·A	ppendic		Page
	F-1 -	Ratings of Goals, Likert-Type Condition (Responses of Entry-Level Subjects	
	3	Participating in Both Sessions)	98
	Ġ	Ratings of Goals: Forced Choice Condition	105
	-H	Ratings of Value Categories: Likert-Type Condition	115
	1	Ratings of Value Categories: Forced-Choice Condition	118
	J	Job Description Index Ratings	121
	K	Ratings of Psychological Tests: Likert-Type Condition	. 123
	K-1	Ratings of Psychological-Tests: Likert-Type Condition (Responses of Entry-	
		Level Subjects Participating in Both Sessions)	127
	Ł	Ratings of Psychological Tests: Forced-Choice Condition	130
	M	Subordinates' Ratings of Supervisors on (1) Consideration and (2) Initiation of	
		Structure Scales as a Function of Subordinates' Sex and Ethnic Group	134
	N	Subordinates' Ratings of Supervisors on (1) Consideration and (2) Initiation of	
	*	Structure Scales as a Function of Supervisors' Sex and Ethnic Group	135
	0	Ratings of Average Non-PSC Subordinate by Supervisors as a Function of	_
		Sex and Ethnic Group of the Supervisor	136
5 ~	.P `	Ratings of PSC Entry-Level Subordinates by Supervisors as a Function of Sex and	i ···
		Ethnic Group of the Supervisor	138
	Q	'Comparison of Supervisors' Ratings of Average Non-PSC Subordinate and PSC	4
		Subordinates: (1) As a Function of Ethnic Group and Sex of Supervisor and	-
		(2) All Supervisors Combined	140
	R	Rating of Subordinates by Supervisors as a Function of Supervisors' LPC Score	145
	S	Break-Out of Questionnaire Items by Psychological Test	146
Ta	ables	, · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
	1	Value Category Titles and Descriptions	13
	2	Maximum Test Scores and Interpretations	22
	3	Value Category Reliability Coefficients	25
	4	Psychological Test Reliability Coefficients	26
	5 .	Job Description Index Reliability Coefficients	26
**.	6 .	Frequency Distribution of Subjects' Ages, by Sex and Ethnic Group for Sessions I and II	. 31
	7	Frequency Distribution of Subjects' Education, by Sex and Ethnic Group for	
		Sessions 1 and II	32
	8	Rank Correlations for Value Categories, by Session and Sex	33
	9	Mean Rating and Rank of Value Categories, by Session and Sex:	
	•	Likert-Type Condition	33
	10	Mean Rating and Rank of Value Categories, by Session and Sex: Forced-	
	-	Choice Condition	34
	11	Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session: Likert-Type Condition	35
	12	Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session. Forced-Choice Condition	36



×

ables		Page
13	Goals Associated With Significant Changes Between Session I and II in	
	Evaluation by Entry-Level Subjects, by Sex: Likert-Type Condition: 4	39
14	Average Correlations Between Ratings of Goals for Self and for Best Friend,	
_	by Sex, Session, Consistency of Relationship, and Response Condition	40
- -₹5	Job Description Index Means of PSC Entry-Level Workers for Sessions I and II	41
16	Significant Changes Between Sessions Land II in Ratings by Entry-Level Subjects of	
	Satisfaction on Each Area of the Job Description Index	41
17	Significant Changes Between Session I and II in Responses by Entry-Level	
	Subjects to Each Psychological Test	42
18	Intercorrelations Among Scales Regarding Supervisors, Session II	44
19	Distribution of Supervisors on the Basis of LPC Score, Ethnic Group, and Sex	45
20	Comparison of Supervisors' Mean Ratings of Non-PSC and PSC Subordinates	45
21 ,	Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Value	
`	Çategory Difference Score: Likert-Type Response Condition	47
2 2`	Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Value	
To the same	Category Difference Score: Farced Choice Response Condition	48
23	Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and	
	Psychological Test Score: Lilyert-Type Response Condition	49
24	Intercorrelations Among Subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form:	
· ·	Likert Type Response Condition	5 0
25	Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Job	
7	Description Index Area Score: Likert-Type Response Condition	50
26	Factor Loadings of Each Goal for Both Likert Type and Forced Choice Data	51
27	Correlations of Factor Scores With Psthological Tests and Job Description	
	Index Areas	56



A Study of the Success and Work Expectancies of Public Service Career Employees

Chapter 1

INTRODUCTION

FOCUS OF PROJECT

This is the final report of a project to study the world-of-work values of enrollees in the entry-level and in the upgrade portion of Plan D of the Public Service Careers (PSC) Program, an innovative governmental program designed to bring employment within the reach of heretofore marginal workers. The rationale for this research project stemmed from a substantial body of research that has drawn attention to the special problems of the marginal worker, and has suggested that he may present formidable problems to an employing agency.

One of the principal purposes of this study was to assess the world-of-work values of the personnel enrolled in the entry component of the PSC Program. A second major purpose was to compare these findings with those obtained from (a) participants in the upgrade portion of the program who have successful job histories, and (b) individuals who, while holding jobs equivalent to those of the entry-level participants, were not themselves enrolled in the program. Additionally, the study involved a follow-up of those entry-level enrollees who remained within the PSC Program, to determine both the world-of-work values that are predictive of success in the program, and changes occurring during the first year of employment that reflect processes of organizational socialization.

PSC Prográm

The focus of the project was Plan D of the PSC Program, which offers entry and upgrading employment opportunities in the Federal Service. This program was created to bring the disadvantaged into public service employment within merit principles. Additionally, it was designed to help meet manpower needs in the public sector through upgrading of current employees. PSC was directed toward providing financial assistance to Federal agencies or state and local governments, in an effort to remove or eliminate those institutional, individual, or environmental barriers to public service that confront the marginal worker.

Numerous benefits were envisioned for the PSC Program. Among these would be greater utilization of human resources by public agencies, with the expected corollary of more efficient public service. Another potential benefit was the movement from public welfare rolls of many of the disadvantaged. Plant of the program was focused solely on Federal agencies.

. Applicants for the upgrade component of the program were those individuals currently employed in the Federal service who desired to better themselves. Enrollment in the PSC Program would provide additional training that would better qualify the individual for promotion.

Those individuals considered to be eligible for the entry portion of the program were selected on the basis of Department of Labor criteria for classification as "disadvantaged." These criteria define a "disadvantaged" person as being poor and unemployed, underemployed, or encountering barriers in work-seeking activities. In addition, the individual must be a school dropout, an ethnic minority group member, less than 22 years of age, 45 years of age or older, or handicapped.



Under Plan D, approximately 10% of existing lower-level jobs were redesigned for the entering enrollee, since the majority of those classified as "disadvantaged" would have few valued job skills. These beginning jobs were low both in required skills and in pay.

It was also anticipated that many applicants would encounter difficulty in completing a written entrance examination under the traditional procedure. The Worker-Trainer (W-T) Examination was therefore selected for evaluating candidates. The W-T Examination involves interviewing applicants for the purpose of evaluating their suitability for the beginning jobs. The evaluation is based not on educational or work related achievements, but on degree of willingness to work in a low-demand type of job. Another purpose of the examination is to screen out the overqualified applicant. Scoring is on an inverse basis, the less the applicant has in the way of demonstrable skills, abilities, and achievements, the higher the score. By use of the W-T Examination and the inverse scoring procedure, the disadvantaged may be offered meaningful work within merit system procedures.

Objectives of the Project

To accomplish the previously specified purposes of the study, several explicit objectives were developed:

(1) To develop a methodology for measuring work goals and expectations of Public Service Careers (PSC) workers, both at entry-level and in the upward-bound component.

(2) Through implementing the developed methodology, to measure world-of-work values and perceptual orientations of individuals within the entry-level and upgrade components, and of persons occupying positions equivalent to those of entry-level participants (hereafter referred to as the equivalent group).

(3) To compare world-of-work values and perceptual orientations of each group with the other two groups.

(4) To measure world-of-work values and perceptual orientations of individuals within the entry component after they had been in Federal service for a period of six months. (Waiting for a longer period before the second measurement might mean that little data would be available, because of the likelihood of appreciable attrition.)

(5) To compare world-of-work values and perceptual orientations of individuals within the entry component at the time of the second data collection session with the corresponding values and orientations obtained in the initial data collection session—shortly after their entry into the program.

(6) To determine how supervisors of PSC entry-level enrollees rated them in comparison with non-PSC subordinates in order to (a) identify the extent of organizational socialization that had taken place, and (b) assess the extent to which such factors as sex, ethnic group membership, or leadership style of the supervisor systematically affected ratings of PSC enrollees.

The results presented in this report are based on two data collection sessions. The first data were collected as soon as possible after entry-level personnel entered the program. The second session was six months subsequent to the midpoint of the initial collection session.

REVIEW OF LITERATURE

The review of recent literature presented in this section provides an updating of the research results and conceptualizations upon which the project was based, and should afford a frame-of-reference for the remainder of the report. The review is not comprehensive, but is limited to that literature seen as relevant to the project objectives.



The "Hard-Core Unemployed" Concept

A point agreed upon by several researchers (e.g., Kaplan and Tausky, 1972) concerns the difficulty in defining the "hard-core unemployed." On occasion, this phrase is used interchangeably with such terms as "marginal worker" and "disadvantaged." Porter (1970) maintains that the term "marginal worker" subsumes "hard-core unemployed." He saw a marginal worker as an individual who had not demonstrated regular work attendance and/or had not met standards or adequate levels of performance as defined by the organization. Attendance and performance, thus, are defined as two distinct aspects of marginality. An individual must meet both criteria to be considered nonmarginal.

Porter felt that the term "hard-core unemployed" was most often used in reference to an individual having a record of little, if any, steady employment. Stressing the attendance aspect resulted in a narrower scope for this classification as compared with the "marginal worker" classification. Porter's position places greater emphasis on the individual's employment history than on particular personal and demographic characteristics for identification of the disadvantaged. Unfortunately, the use of any labeling process tends to result in the development of stereotypes.

Ferman (1970), in considering the myth and reality of the hard-core unemployed,

presented several stereotypes commonly associated with the phrase:

(1) The hard-core unemployed have never worked steadily enough to have the learned what they must do to hold a job.

(2)' Among the hard-core unemployed, the more formal schooling the person has, the better the job he will find.

(3) Once a person is a member of the hard-core group, he will always be a member.

(4) More available jobs would reduce the number of hard-core unemployed.

(5) The hard-core unemployed individuals are all just alike.

(6) There are real differences between the hard-core and other working groups.

(7) Former hard-core unemployed leave their jobs more frequently than do workers in general.

(8) Extensive services are needed for all hard-core unemployed to become part of the labor force.

Ferman presented data from various sources to question each of these stereotypes. The results of several other programs support Ferman's contention that "These stereotypes are deeply ingrained and require the most careful and intensive research" (e.g., Hodgson and Brenner, 1968; Kirchner and Lucas, 1972). Private industry, especially through the National Alliance of Businessmen's JOBS (Job Opportunities in the Business Sector) program, has shown that many of these "hard-core unemployed" can and do make effective workers, frequently in the absence of "necessary" supportive services and social training.

With respect to the stereotype of the hard-core unemployed as a single, unitary, homogeneous group, Johnson (1969) presented a break-out of several groups comprising

this population. As segmented by Johnson, these groups were:

(1) Young blacks. Reared in northern urban centers, they are frustrated by the "system" as the means of solving their problems. They have not completed school, nor have they developed any job skills. They are angry and impatient.

(2) Older men and women (45 and above). They went north during the war to work in industrial centers. After their jobs terminated, they remained. Few

have skills in demand by industry.



3) New migrants, Large numbers went to northern cities until between 1966 and 1968: Most of these migrants are characterized by having few or no job skills, low levels of education, and a lack of knowledge about the ways of urban life.

(4) Puerto Ricans. Not only are they burdened by a relatively low-level of formal education, but by a language barrier as well.

(5) Mexican-Americans. As with the Puerto Ricans, both an education and a

language barrier serve to limit the type of available work.

(6) American Indians. These are part of the hard-core unemployed group by definition.

Of course, other similar delineations can be made. Doeringer (1969) divided the ghetto labor force into at least five categories of disadvantaged:

(1) Teen-agers who have worked little or none.

(2) Workers with steady employment in low-wage jobs.

- (3) Adults who have not worked steadily and learned the discipline of work.
- (4) Those persons for whom barriers to employment exist, such as the aged.
- (5) Individuals who have a source of income but are not in the labor force, such as welfare recipients.

Classifications such as these serve to point up the heterogeneity of thought about the "hard-core unemployed" category.

Value Congruence

One result of such stereotypes is that the "hard-core unemployed" are frequently viewed as having very different commitments and values concerning the world-of-work than do other working groups. Several researchers have addressed themselves to this question of value congruence between the "hard-core unemployed;" and other working groups (e.g., Kaplan and Tausky, 1972, Williams, 1968, Goodale, 1971; Bullough, 1967; Lewis, et al., 1971).

Kaplan and Tausky found that while "hard-core unemployed" viewed work, for its economic utility in providing the means for satisfying the more basic needs, they also seemed to have internalized the prevailing work ethic. This work ethic includes a negative stereotype of people accepting welfare. The subjects in this study associated respectability and prestige with holding a job. While the subjects had been unable to successfully maintain employment, they generally felt that it was through employment that they could demonstrate their social worth. The conclusions by Williams (1968) and Goodale (1971) were generally consistent with the findings of Kaplan and Tausky, that is, that the disadvantaged or hard-core unemployed have values similar to those of the nondisadvantaged workers, and a like commitment to work.

On the other hand, other researchers (e.g., Bullough, 1967) have reported value differences between the hard-core and other groups. Bullough found that black ghetto residents expressed greater feelings of anomie and powerlessness than blacks living in integrated suburban areas.

The behavior of the individual provides the basis for inferences concerning his values, beliefs, and attitudes. Various plausible causal factors should be considered when inferences are to be drawn from observed behavior. An alternative plausible factor in the situation concerning the hard-core unemployed is the opportunity structure known and accessible to the individual.

Two facets of the opportunity structure confronting the hard-core unemployed have been given attention by several writers. These concern the amount of vocational and job market information known to the individual.



Johnson (1969) stated that of 450 youths contacted during a study conducted in Philadelphia, nearly one-half were unable to express any job preferences, and those with preferences cited the jobs commonly held by friends and relatives. In An Instructional Program for Employability Orientation (Osborn, et al., 1972), developed by HumRRO for the C.S. Department of Labor, a separate Instructional Module for vocational goals was presented as essential for all Work Incentive Program (WIN) enrollees. The majority of the hard-core unemployed or disadvantaged seemingly are unaware of the multiplicity of vocational choices that may be available to them.

The amount of labor market information known to many of the hard-core unemployed is much more limited than it should be. Some sources of information generally used to communicate labor market information—for example, major newspapers and radio stations—are inefficient with respect to reaching the hard-core unemployed. Another limitation, as presented by Doeringer (1969), stems from the fact that friends and relatives are a frequent source of employment information, as the employment rates in the ghetto are lower, there are fewer sources of input to such an information system, and consequently, less job information available to any user of such a system. Further, because transportation frequently presents a problem, limiting geographic mobility, only information about jobs near the ghetto is likely to be available.

Some programs in private industry, which attempted to hire and train the hard-core unemployed, were initially unsuccessful because of this type of information deficit. For example, the Pacific Telephone Company asked employees to recommend the company and its program to friends. The company discovered they were hiring the *under*employed rather than the *un*employed members of minority groups, because their present employees had no contact with the hard-core unemployed.

Frequently, a corollary of this paucity of labor market information is a limited scope of job search. One finding of the survey by Johnson (1969) was that, of those 450 youths in Philadelphia, two-fifths had never made a single contact with an employer, and

only one out of five had made as many as one contact per week.

One way of increasing the likelihood that the hard-core unemployed will be aware of employment opportunities is through ensuring that such information is available to some members of the target population. The success of many of the private industry hard-core training programs seems to have been due to recruiting or locating a plant in or very near the ghetto area. The Ford Motor Company Program among others, used active recruitment in the inner city area. Their best publicity was from word-of-mouth communication by those already on the payroll.

Retention and Performance of the Ex-Hard-Core Unemployed

One of the stereotypes presented by Ferman (1970) dealt with retention of the ex-hard-core unemployed in the labor force. A frequent forerunner of termination, non-regular attendance, has also been stressed by Porter (1970) as a characteristic of the hard-core unemployed. While many of the programs initiated by private industry reflect a retention rate for the ex-hard-core unemployed comparable with that of other blue-collar workers, there is essential agreement that non-regular attendance is one of the more critical problems of the ex-hard-core (Johnson, 1969; Doeringer, 1969). The critical factor in achieving above-average retention emerged as the presence of a full-time training staff or minority employment specialist (Janger, 1972) to serve a counseling, supportive function.

The results of the Ford Motor Company's Detroit Recruiting Project seem representative of many programs focused on employing the hard-core unemployed. An analysis of the performance ratings of over 2,000 hard-core hires by Ford showed that between 40 and 50% were evaluated by their supervisors as average in performance, while about 30% were rated above average (Johnson, 1969).



Several other studies have dealt with job performance of the hard-core as affected by such variables as supervisory attitudes, organization climate, and the workers' own attitudes. Friedlander and Greenberg (1971) sought to predict successful employment of the hard-core unemployed using four predictor variables:

(1) The workers' biographical/demographic data.

- (2) Attitudes of the worker toward work (included among the nine scales were motivation to work, powerlessness, and importance of job characteristics).
- (3) Attitude changes over a two-week orientation/training program.

(4) Job climate (as-reflected in new worker treatment, support from peers, and support from supervisors).

The criterion variables were job retention, work effectiveness, and work behavior. 5. The most important finding was that the more supportive the organizational climate, the better the workers' ratings on competence, congeniality, and amount and type of effort expended. Interestingly, ratings of reliability of the worker correlated negatively and significantly with the number of weeks worked. Also, supervisors rated the organizational climate as being far more supportive than did the workers. Other than these cited results, the predictor variables were of little benefit for estimating likelihood of successful employment. The two-week orientation training program had no effect on the workers' attitudes toward work.

Beatty (1971), considering both first and second-level supervisors, studied the effects of the supervisory variables of Consideration and Initiation of Structure on the job performance of ex-hard-core unemployed. The most noteworthy result was a curvilinear relationship between supervisory consideration and trainee performance, which suggested a positive relationship between the two for a majority of the trainees, but anegative relationship at the performance extremes.

The complexity of the results of these studies is representative of various investigations of the dynamics underlying job performance. What motivates one worker to produce effectively, while another performs at the minimum acceptable level? To answer this and other related questions, researchers have broadened the scope of their efforts. In addition to supervisory practices, factors such as various aspects of job satisfaction and measures of job motivation have been included in numerous research designs.

Job Satisfaction, Motivation to Work, Performance

In a recent review of job satisfaction studies, Ronan (1970a) discussed both the job variables related to satisfaction and the relationship of satisfaction to performance behaviors.

Similar dimensions of job satisfaction have emerged from numerous studies in this area. These are identified by Ronan (1970a):

- (1) The work itself.
 - (2) Direct supervision.
- (3) Organization and management.
- (4) Advancement possibilities.
- (5) Economic rewards of the job.
- (6) Fellow workers.
- (7) Type of working conditions.

While relative agreement has been observed as to relevant and salient dimensions of job satisfaction, several findings are of significance with respect to the measurement, meaning, and appropriate conceptual framework for interpretation of these dimensions.

Wanous and Lawler (1972) reviewed nine operational measures of job satisfaction and conducted a study to determine the relationships among them. The operational definitions of job satisfaction did not yield empirically comparable measures of job



satisfaction. The convergent and discriminant validity analysis indicated that it was possible to validly measure people's satisfaction with different facets (e.g., pay, promotions) of their jobs. Also, it was found that correlations between facet satisfaction and dependent variables are likely to be a function of both the particular facet considered and how it is measured or operationally defined.

The work by Simonetti and Weitz (1972) calls for reconsideration of the dynamics underlying job satisfaction. These researchers found that various job factors are not related to overall job satisfaction at the same level for different occupational groups within a country. Some differences were also noted when countries were compared. The study by Nezzer, et al. (1971) reported similar findings for a comparison of five companies of the same corporation within the United States. The purpose of this study was to identify the determinants of overall job satisfaction and assess the interorganizational similarities and differences. While significant predictors of overall satisfaction for the entire sample were identified, the differences make it difficult to formulate a single interpretation of the dynamics involved.

Jacobs (1970) presents a review of two schools of thought concerning the relationships between various aspects of the work environment and resulting job satisfaction. These two schools of thought, traditional theory and motivator/hygiene theory, point up the complexity of job satisfaction.

"Traditional theory holds that individual members of organizations have personal needs that can be satisfied either directly or indirectly through their work involvement. A need supposedly creates a state of tension that continues as long as the need is not satisfied. In theory, then, the organization can offer the means of satisfying the need in exchange for the worker's compliance with organizational requirements." (p. 126)

"Dissatisfaction, or a state of tension, theoretically is aroused when a person cannot meet or satisfy certain of his needs.... Thus, within the traditional framework overall job satisfaction is thought to vary directly with the extent to which an organization can satisfy individual needs....

"Substantial work has been done to learn what these needs are. One of the best known classifications of individual needs is the hierarchy of motives theory..., which holds that human needs or motives can be arranged into five sequential categories. (a) physiological needs, (b) safety needs, (c) acceptance needs, (d) esteem needs, and (e) self-actualization needs.

"These needs form a hierarchy in terms of importance, or prepotence, to the individual... However, while preoccupation with a more basic need, such as security (safety), will not in general permit interest in the higher level needs such as self-actualization, satisfaction of the more basic needs does not necessarily lead to a quest for gratification at the higher levels. Some degree of social learning may be necessary before the higher order, less basic needs can emerge... ("pp. 127-128)

"Not all these needs can be satisfied by most organizations, for most of their members... satisfaction of higher level needs such as self-esteem and self-actualization is more difficult, especially at the lower echelons within large formal organizations (e.g., factories with assembly-line technologies)." (p. 128)

"In contrast to traditional theory, motivator/hygiene theory contends that the aspects of the work environment that provide satisfaction are not necessarily the same as those that cause dissatisfaction.... Organizational environments can also provide obstacles to long-range goal attainment... these will lead to dissatisfaction..." (pp. 126-127)

"...a departure from traditional theory came from the observation that some kinds of work gratifications seemed to act as satisfiers, while others act as dissatisfiers....



"From the motivator/hygiene point of view, it appeared that there should be (a) factors in the work or work environment that would lead to (b) the existence of attitudes toward work that would, in turn, (c) have measurable effects of productivity itself. A criticism of previous studies was that, in general, they did not address these three elements simultaneously..." (pp. 129-130)

Herzberg, et al. (1959) used a form of the "critical incident" method to identify factors that had been associated with positive or negative feelings toward the job. The satisfiers (motivators) identified were (a) achievement, (b) recognition, (c) work itself, (d) responsibility, (e) advancement. The dissatisfiers (hygiene) were: (a) interpersonal relationships with superiors, (b) interpersonal relationships with peers, (c) technical supervision, (d) company policy, and administration, (e) working conditions, and (f) personal life. From the viewpoint of motivator/hygiene theory, it is felt

"... that satisfier factors are more likely to lead to satisfaction by their presence than to dissatisfaction through their absence, but that factors leading to job dissatisfaction are seldom associated with increases in job satisfaction through being absent. The job satisfiers almost always dealt with factors intrinsic to the job itself, while the dissatisfiers related to the context in which the job was accomplished." (Jacobs, 1970, p. 131)

This is in contrast to traditional theory, which assumes that needs at all levels will be associated with both satisfaction and dissatisfaction. To the extent that a need is present, frustration in its fulfillment should produce dissatisfaction, while gratification should result in satisfaction.

Implications of these two theories are somewhat at variance with each other; a substantial number of studies have tested the differences between them. A complicating factor in testing such differences stems from King's (1970) delineation of five variations of Herzberg's two-factor theory. Two studies focused on these variations yielded similar results, fewer than 50% of the predictions based on the variations were supported (Hulin and Waters, 1971; Waters and Waters, 1972). The conclusion proposed by these researchers was that many of the results that have supported the two-factor theory are due to the methodology used rather than to the viability of the theory itself. The general result of such comparative studies has been that neither theory is "...adequate alone, each to the exclusion of the other" (Jacobs, 1970, p. 140), but each has a valuable contribution to make.

Several theorists have attempted to reconcile these two schools of thought (Wolf, 1970; Soliman, 1970). Soliman found that, while two-factor theory is in fact a function of its own methodology, it is correct with respect to the two sets of need categories proposed, motivator and hygiene. However, the two-factor view on the multidimensionality of the concept of need satisfaction—that satisfaction and dissatisfaction appear to be opposite ends of a single continuum—has not been substantiated. Motivator and hygiene needs were found to be related to each end of this continuum. This researcher concluded that the organizational environment was an important variable in mediating the relationship between each need category and overall job satisfaction. In an environment that adequately satisfies all needs, the motivator needs would be a more important source of job satisfaction than the hygiene needs. For an environment that provides a more moderate satisfaction of all needs, both motivator and hygiene needs are related equally to overall job satisfaction. Extrapolation would indicate that for a hon-need-satisfying environment, the hygiene needs would be the more highly related to overall job satisfaction.

For Wolf (1970), the key to the resolution of the conflicts between traditional and two-factor theory lies in the conceptual separation of satisfaction and motivation. Motivation should be regarded as the force producing movement toward an end state, or satisfaction. This conceptualization focuses more attention on the behavioral or



performance aspect of work. Limited empirical support for such a conceptualization is noted in the study by Wernimont, et al. (1970). Many studies that are concerned with measuring job motivation do so through use of job satisfaction measures. These researchers felt that it should be determined whether employees themselves actually see any difference in the way that various aspects of their jobs affect their work motivation, as compared to their job satisfaction. Results indicated that employees did not see the same job variables as having equal importance in contributing to job satisfaction and to their motivation to work. Generally, the same variables were given the higher ranking positions in both cases, indicating that the basic assumption—that more satisfied individuals have greater motivation—is tenable. The goal (end state) of satisfaction is expected to impact upon job performance behavior to some extent.

Ronan (1970a) reviewed several studies bearing on the relation between job satisfaction and performance behaviors. For those studies using a single criterion for job satisfaction, two interesting conclusions emerged. First, while there appeared to be a general relationship between job tenure and satisfaction, termination causes (while probably dominated by economic concerns) may be quite specific to the organization involved. Secondly, while numerous studies have demonstrated that "... there are relationships between indices of job satisfaction and level of performance effectiveness... no studies... show which is cause and which effect." (Ronan, 1970a, pp. 6-7)

Studies using multicriteria provided evidence of the complexity of the interrelationships among various performance measures. One study reviewed by Ronan commented upon the unexpected variety of one assumed unitary variable—absenteeism—with some types of absenteeism being unrelated to other types. However, the same study did find that low job satisfaction was related to high unexcused absenteeism.

The most consistent result noted in the multicriteria studies reviewed by Ronan (1970a) dealt with the importance of the immediate supervisor for job satisfaction indices. Supervision, Ronan found, "... is the major link between job satisfaction and personnel behaviors, along with some influence of age and education." (p. 27)

While Thompson (1971) found that the greater the perceived supportiveness of the supervisor, the higher the job satisfaction, this finding was qualified by the self-perception of the employee. This qualification reflected the negative relationship between self-perception scores and perceived supervisory style. The conclusion reached by this author was that job satisfaction was jointly affected by supervisory style and favorability of self-perception.

Importance of Job Characteristics and Job Satisfaction

Several studies have been conducted for the specific purpose of achieving greater understanding of the basis of job satisfaction, particularly the relation between satisfaction and importance. Campbell (1971) presented results that indicated that the supervisor was more of a determinant of employee satisfaction than was the job.

Ronan (1970b), who felt that the relevant dimensions of job satisfaction had been successfully identified, attempted to assess agreement as to the relative importance of several of these dimensions. Three employee groups of respondents were formed in a manufacturing industry: (a) managerial—supervisory, (b) salaried—nonsupervisory, and (c) hourly employees. There was a high degree of agreement among the three groups as to 68 job characteristics, with items descriptive of the nature of the work done (intrinsic) most frequently seen as important. One of the characteristics about which some disagreement was observed was job security, rated as important by both the managerial and hourly employees, but not by the salaried workers.

A caution concerning the methodology for assessing both importance and satisfaction was sounded by Dachler and Hulin (1969). These researchers replicated a previous



study, the results of which had indicated a V-shaped regression line when the mean importance values for 73 environmental and job characteristics were plotted against the mean satisfaction scores. When the same scale (Likert-type) was used to measure both satisfaction and importance, inspection of cell means indicated a V-shaped relationship between satisfaction and importance. Cell means for the items for which satisfaction was assessed through use of a different scale did not exhibit the V-shaped function. The authors concluded that the lack of support for such a relationship, when different types of measures are used for satisfaction and importance, indicates a strong possibility of artifact in the previous study's results.

One approach taken in investigation of the relation of satisfaction and importance has been to use the importance of a job factor as a weighting for the reported satisfaction with that factor.

Blood (1971) felt that the information provided by the subject as to the importance of a job aspect has little or no relationship to the actual effect of that aspect on overall satisfaction. This theorist felt that, if the rated importance of a job aspect was to be included in weighting the rated satisfaction of that aspect, then importance should be treated as a binary property. Overall job satisfaction would then be reflected in the sum of the satisfaction with all aspects of the job that were rated as important.

Waters and Roach (1971) and Mikes and Hulin (1968) reported comparisons of unweighted and importance-weighted satisfaction measures as predictors of a performance criterion (turnover). The results of both studies were in agreement that an unweighted satisfaction measure was as predictive of termination as an importance-weighted measure.

The frequent lack of agreement between results of studies concerned with the same concepts reflects the extent of additional work needed in the areas of job satisfaction and job performance. Results that prove to be specific to a given area or organization are scanty contributions to theory development and refinement.



: Chapter

APPROACH

Described in this chapter is the approach taken to investigate the three questions most pertinent to the project. What are the world-of-work values and perceptions of those individuals entering the PSC Program? What changes are there in these values and perceptions after the enrollees have been in the work environment for some time? How do the world-of-work values and perceptions of these enrollees compare with other worker groups?

THE TAXONOMY OF VALUES

As a first step in accomplishing the specified objectives of the project, a taxonomy of values was generated. This taxonomy was the basis for selection of goals to be included in the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire.

While the taxonomy of values resulted from a considerably more extensive review of the literature, the basic framework was derived from three sources: a taxonomy developed by Porter (1970), the motivator and hygiene, theory (Herzberg, Mausner, and Snyderman, 1959); and Maslow's (1954) hierarchy of needs hypotheses. While none of these three was completely adequate in itself, Porter's taxonomy, together with a social reference basis for interpreting apparent differences between the motivator/hygiene and hierarchy of needs findings (Jacobs, 1970), led to the development of a taxonomy that would be useful for the lower socioeconomic leyel subjects expected to be PSC entry-level enrollees.

Eight value categories constituted the taxonomy of values. The titles assigned the categories and a brief description of the values subsumed by each are shown in Table 1. The goals classified within each of the value areas are listed in Appendix A.

Table 1

Value Category Titles and Descriptions

	Title	Description	—.h.
<u>, 1</u>	Extrinsic Benefits	Values extrinsic to the job itself (Herzberg, 1959), which are related to security needs of individuals (Maslow, 1954). Values seen as extrinsic reflect the job context, the working conditions.	
11	Intrinsic Benefits	Includes both values intrinsic to the job itself (Herzberg, 1959) and those related to the self-actualization need in Maslow's (1954) conceptualization of the need hierarchy. Values seen as intrinsic concern the pride, satisfaction, and recognition realized from the work itself.	
111	Gratification Demands	Values with attainment that is contingent upon a source of income (e.g., ability to purchase desired items).	<u> </u>



Table 1 (Continued)

Value Category Titles and Descriptions

	Title	Description
) IV	Interpersonal Relations With Co-Workers	Values reflecting extrinsic benefits or the self-esteem and affiliative needs of Maslow. Determines the value placed on esteem, recognition, and acceptance given by co-workers.
Ý	Interpersonal Relations With Supervisors	Values of recognition, acceptance, and individual assistance by the supervisor.
VI	Interpersonal Relations With Family	Value of one's family being proud of the job held.
VIIÎ	Interpersonal Relations With Friends	Values reflecting Maslow's esteem and affiliation needs. Determines the extent to which the job itself is valued as a means of obtaining respect and association of friends.
VIII	Developmental Needs	Values reflecting Maslow's need for self-actualization. Determines the extent to which self-growth and development of job competency is valued.

THE QUESTIONNAIRES

The PSC Enrollee Questionnaire for the first administration consisted of three independent sections. The first two sections were designed to elicit ratings of values and job attractiveness. The third section required each enrollee to respond to a number of psychological tests:

For the second administration of the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire, a fourth section was developed, to elicit enrollee ratings of the immediate supervisor on consideration activities and initiation of structure behaviors (Hemphill and Coons, 1957). Also included in the second data collection was a two-part questionnaire for supervisors, which elicited supervisor ratings of (a) the least preferred co-worker and (b) immediate subordinates, both PSC enrollee and average non-PSC employee, on five different scales.

Development of the Questionnaires

The PSC Enrollee Questionnaire was designed to achieve two purposes: (a) to be relevant for entry-level personnel in the PSC Program and (b) to be conceptually sound.

Descriptions and rationale for Sections 1 and 2 of the Questionnaire are presented below, with a listing of the items used in each section appearing in Appendices A and B, respectively. Brief descriptions of Sections 3 and 4 follow, more comprehensive descriptions (including the items within each section) and the rationales for inclusion of these sections in the questionnaire are presented in Appendices C and D. The two supervisor questionnaires included in the second data collection session are also described briefly in this section; further description and a listing of the questionnaire items are in Appendix E.

Section 1: Values. The taxonomy of values served as the basis for item selection in this section of the questionnaire. After a literature review and rationale analysis, 32 goals (values) were selected as representative of the eight value categories. These goals were randomly distributed within this section of the questionnaire.

For each of the 32 goals, the following four ratings were obtained:

- (1) The worth of the goal to the worker.
- (2) The worker's expectation of achieving that goal if he tries.



(3) The level of effort perceived as necessary to achieve the goal.

(4) The worth of the goal to the worker's best friend.

The first three ratings test an expectancy theory of motivation to work. The fourth rating provides the basis for inferences concerning the worker's socialization into the work environment, as would be evidenced by any change in relationship between his own values and those of an off-the-job friend, over time. In practice, the goals were intermingled in such a manner that the respondent did not rate the goals for any value category in sequence. This section of the questionnaire was entitled Rating Form for Jobs.

Section 2: Job Satisfaction. The instrument selected to assess job satisfaction of the workers was the Job Description Index, (Smith, Kendall, and Hulin, 1969). The JDI measures satisfaction with five areas of a job: the type of work, the opportunities for promotion, the pay, the supervision, and the co-workers on the job. (See Appendix B for a complete listing of the items within each of these five areas.)

The JDI was chosen for inclusion because it was a standardized instrument on which a substantial amount of developmental work had been conducted. For the purposes of this study, the JDI was to serve as an anchor in (a) interpreting the relationship of the samples surveyed to other known samples, and (b) providing a basis for establishing construct validity for related instruments.

Section 3: Psychological Tests. Generation of the psychological tests included in the questionnaire was based on review of the literature dealing with the special needs and competencies of marginal personnel. Although some of the tests developed parallel existing tests, most were specifically developed for this project. Therefore, results of most of these tests are not directly comparable with other similarly labeled tests.

The 14 tests chosen for inclusion are briefly described below. The first five tests constitute a measure of alienation from work as conceptualized by Seeman (1959, 1967); the others pertain to facets of anomie.

Psychologica	u Lest	
	••	

Brief Description

Powerlessness	Belief that the individual has little control over the forces determining the outcomes in his life.
Meaninglessness	Belief that work is only a means of achieving immediate goals.
Normlessness	Perception by individual that some goals cannot be attained through socially approved behavior.
Value Isolation	Sense of isolation from members of society and their values.
Self-Estrangement	Extent to which individual is unable to enter into meaningful relations with others.
Time Sense	Ability and/or desire to delay gratification of immediate needs in favor of more central needs at a later time.

Cynical Distrust of Organizations.

Individual's lack of faith in the organization's

integrity.

Cynical Distrust of People - Individual's unwillingness to enter trusting relationships with other people.



Psychological Test

Brief Description

Achievement Motivation

Interest in relative status achieved through

occupational means.

Weak Self-Regard

Extent to which an individual's self-concept is

negative.

Expectation of Success

Generalized expectancy of success in attaining

any goal.

Protestant Ethic

Value placed on work in general.

Work Demands

Preferred level of job demands is a routinized job

with little variability in the demands.

Orientation Toward Work

Rejection of "middle-class" norms reflecting

acceptable jobs.

Data Collection Instruments for Session II. Three questionnaires were developed for the second data collection session. The first two were focused on behavior of the leader (supervisor) as (a) seen by the PSC enrollee subordinate (Assessment of Supervisory Influences), and (b) as reflected in the supervisor's self-report of perceptions of a least-preferred co-worker (Inventory for Supervisors). The third questionnaire was used in obtaining the supervisor's rating of the PSC enrollee on several relevant dimensions (Supervisor's Rating Form).

the study completed this questionnaire with reference to their immediate supervisor. The two dimensions of leadership behavior, "Consideration" and "Initiating Structure," identified by researchers at Ohio State University, were seen as very relevant to the purposes of this project. Appendix D presents the items that were used for tapping each of these two dimensions, and the direction of scoring.

The "Initiating Structure" dimension has to do with the extent to which a leader initiates actions and structures the work situation toward goal attainment. A high score on this dimension indicates a leader who tries to establish well-defined patterns of organization, channels of communication, and ways of doing a job.

The "Consideration" dimension reflects an interpersonal orientation in the leader's behavior, often characterized by feelings of mutual trust, openness to subordinate's ideas and requests, and consideration for their feelings. Consideration for the feelings of others may be viewed as consisting of esteem giving behavior, of ensuring that others feel they are receiving a measure of esteem in line with their worth.

Inventory for Supervisors. This questionnaire corresponds to the Least Preferred Cò-Worker form developed by Fiedler. High scores reflect an interpersonal orientation, with the leader behaving so as to increase member satisfaction, usually in a pleasant, nondirective fashion. Low scores have been associated with greater task orientation on the part of the leader, often in a directive, punitive manner. A low degree of concern for pleasant interpersonal relations has also been related to low scores on this form. Immediate supervisors of participating entry-level PSC enrollees completed the questionnaire. Appendix E presents the questionnaire items.

Supervisor's Rating Form. To relate the impact of the PSC enrollees' world-of-work values and changes in them to actual behavior in the work environment, it was necessary that immediate supervisors rate entry-level PSC enrollees on several dimensions. The dimensions seen as being of primary importance were the worker's performance, adjustment, motivation, stability, and potential. Appendix E presents the descriptive items that were used in deriving a score for each enrollee on each dimension.



Subjects and Questionnaire Administration

First Session Subjects. To accomplish the objectives relevant to the initial data collection session, data were collected from the following subject categories:

(1) Entry-level: Individuals enrolled in Plan D of the PSC Program.

(2) Upgrade component: Individuals with prior experience in Federal employment enrolled in the upgrade portion of the PSC Program.

(3) Equivalent positions: Individuals in Federal employ having jobs and income similar to entry-level enrollees.

For each classification, the following numbers of subjects were drawn from each designated location:

Entry	<u>Upgrade</u>	Equivalent	Location .
123	7 5.	83	Washington, D.C. area
69			Baltimore, Md. White Sands, N.M.
37 99			Fort Ord, Calif.
50	31 🌾		Pensacola, Fla.

Insofar as was possible, data were collected from entry-level participants immediately subsequent to their enrollment in the PSC Program. The majority were seen the first week after entry into the program.

Second Session Subjects. In accomplishing the remaining objectives, data were collected from (a) enrollees in entry-level jobs who had participated in the initial session and (b) immediate supervisors of such enrollees. For each category, the following numbers of subjects were drawn from each location:

Entry-Level	Supervisors	Location
92	72	Washington, D.C. area
61	34	Baltimore, Md.
37	26	White Sands, N.M.
21	· 5	Fort Ord, Calif.

Administration. For each session, questionnaires were administered to subjects in groups of from 10 to 15. The majority of the subjects completed the questionnaires within one, hour.

While the actual term of the PSC enrollees' employment with the Federal Service varied at the time of their participation in the second data collection session, the average length of service was approximately six months.

Supervisor questionnaires were distributed on an individual basis, with the respondent completing and returning the questionnaire.

Format and Methodology

The goals and values section and the psychological tests section of the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire had two response formats: (a) Likert-type response, and (b) forced-choice response. A description of the methodology used in the administration of these and the other sections follows.

Goals (Rating Form for Jobs): Likert-Type Response Condition. Respondents were required to rate each of the 32 goals by choosing one of five numbers on an importance scale. Following are the four types of ratings obtained for each goal, the rating scale used, and the interpretations given each alternative.

ERÎC -

(1) Value of the goal to the worker.

Very Important	Pretty Important	Important	Not Very Important	Not Important At All
5	4 '	3	2	1

- (2) Value of the goal to the worker's best friend.

 The same rating scale was used.
- (3) The worker's expectation of achieving that goal if he tries.

Much More		More	Not Much More		
Likely		Likely	Likely		
	5	4	3	2	

(4) The level of effort perceived as necessary to achieve the goal.

Hard As I Can				Work Pretty Hard	•				No Effect (Part of Job)
10	9	8	7	6	5	 4	3_,	2	· 1

Goals (Rating Form for Jobs): Forced-Choice Response Condition. For their ratings of the value of each goal (a) to themselves and (b) to their best friend, the respondents were presented with 50 pairs of items and required to choose one item from each pair. Because of the number of goals, it was considered impractical to develop a complete paired-comparison questionnaire. Instead, an incomplete paired-comparison approach was used. To derive a rating of value for each goal, the number of times each goal was chosen in preference to the goal with which it was paired was multiplied by five. The resulting product was divided by the number of comparisons in which the goal had appeared, which result was taken to represent the value rating for that goal (maximum score = 5).

For ratings of the level of effort required to achieve the goal, and the expectancy of achieving it, the same forms as in the Likert-type response condition were used.

<u>Job Satisfaction</u>. Negative and positive items pertaining to each of the five job areas covered in the Job Description Index were presented. The respondent indicated which items best described his job by recording a Y if the item was like his job, an N if the item did not fit his job, or a ? if he was undecided. The responses and the values corresponding to each were as follows:

Yes to a positive item 3
No to a negative item 3
? to any item 1
Yes to a negative item 0
No to a positive item 0

The values for each item within an area were then summed to derive a satisfaction measure for that aspect of the respondent's job, with a larger score reflecting greater satisfaction with that area.

Psychological Tests: Likert-Type Response Condition. Respondents were required to rate each of the 70 intermingled items comprising 14 psychological tests in terms of their

agreement with a statement of the item. The agreement scale and the values corresponding to each alternative were as follows:

Agree	Agree	Agree	Disagree	Disagree	Disagree	•
very	pretty	a	`a	pretty`	very	
much	much	little	little	much	much	
6	5	4	3 •	2 '		-

The scale forces respondents to record a definite positive (agree) or negative (disagree) response for each item, that is, there was no scale position for neutral or "undecided" responses.

A forced-choice response format was used for the Orientation Toward Work test in both Likert-type and forced-choice conditions.

Psychological Tests: Forced-Choice Response Condition. In ratings used in the 14 psychological tests, each respondent was presented with 56 pairs of items and required to choose one item from each pair. One point was assigned for each alternative that represented the test dimension.

Assessment of Supervisory Influences. PSC enrollee respondents were required to rate 30 descriptions of supervisory behavior by choosing one from a row of five letters at the end of the statement of each behavior. The respondents rated the behavior on the basis of how well the statement described their immediate supervisor. The score for each dimension, Consideration and Initiation of Structure, was the sum of scores assigned each item within that scale. The interpretation given each response alternative and the weights for each were:

A Your supervisor is always like this. 5
B Your supervisor is often like this. 4
C Your supervisor is like this on occasion. 3
D Your supervisor is seldom like this. 2

Your supervisor is never like this.

Inventory for Supervisors (LPC Scale). The supervisors responded to 16 pairs of bi-polar adjectives; one member of each pair represented a positive and the other member a negative characteristic. In the eight spaces between each pair of terms, the supervisor marked the one that best described his least preferred co-worker. The sum of the ratings given each rating scale represented the supervisor's score, (each space having been assigned a value from 1 to 8 in sequence).

Supervisor's Rating Form. Supervisory respondents rated 25 employee descriptions by choosing one from a row of five numbers at the end of the statement of each description. The respondents rated each statement on the basis of how well it described (a) each of their PSC entry-level subordinates and (b) their average non-PSC subordinate. The score for each rating scale was the sum of scores assigned each item within that scale. The interpretation given each response alternative is listed.

- Disagree very much; the description does not fit this person at all.
- 2 Disagree; while the description does not fit this person exactly, there are some similarities.
- Can't say; for some reason you don't know whether or not the description fits this person.
- 4 Agree; the description fits this person fairly well.

Е

5 Agree very much; the description really fits this person.

ANALYSIS

For Session I, the analysis was based on the existence of 12 different categories of subject classification, based on (a) program enrollment and component (entry-level,



.)

upgrade, or equivalent), (b) sex of subject, and (c) response condition (Likert-type or forced-choice). For each of these separate subgroupings of subjects, value category scores were computed as well as scores for each goal and for the psychological tests.

For Session II, entry-level PSC subjects who were followed-up were analyzed by session number (I vs. II) as well as by sex and response condition.

Appendix A shows the goals by value category. Within each category of subjects, a score for a value category is the mean of individual scores for all goals subsumed by that category. The use of means was necessary for comparisons between value categories because of the unequal numbers of goals within categories.

For data relevant to the supervisor-subordinate aspect of the project (Session II), the analysis was based on (a) sex, (b) classification of subject (supervisor or subordinate), and (c) ethnic group of respondent.

PSC Enrollee Questionnaires

Session I: Descriptive statistics (mean and standard deviation) were computed for each classification of subjects with respect to (a) each of the 32 goals, (b) the eight value categories, (c) each of the five job areas of the JDI, and (d) the 14 psychological tests. These statistics are presented in Appendices F-L, by session number.

Statistical comparisons took the form of:

- (1) t tests between appropriate subject classifications for (a) value scores for each goal, (b) scores assigned each value category, (c) each JDI area, and (d) each psychological test.
- (2) An analysis of variance within each of the response conditions. In the comparison of entry, upgrade, and equivalent subjects' ratings of value categories, only data for females were used because the small number of subjects in other classifications rendered comparisons unreliable. A repeated measures design was used for each analysis, with a least-squares solution being used because of the unequal cell frequencies.

Session II: Descriptive statistics (mean and standard deviation) were computed for each classification of PSC enrollee subject with respect to (a) each of the 32 goals, (b) the eight value categories, (c) each of the five job areas of the JDI, (d) the 14 psychological tests, and (e) each of the two Assessment of Supervisory Influences subscales. The statistics for (a) through (d) are presented in Appendices F-L, by session number. The statistics for (e) appear in Appendices M and N.

Statistical comparisons for the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire took the form of t tests between the subject classifications of sex and data collection session for (a) value scores for each goal, (b) scores assigned each value category, (c) each JDI area, and (d) each psychological test (Appendices F·L). A second comparison between data collection sessions on the rank ordering of scores assigned each value category and each goal was accomplished through use of the Spearman rank order correlation procedure.

Supervisor's Rating Form

For the data collected from supervisors, descriptive statistics for each of the five subscales in the Supervisor's Rating Form were computed separately for the average non-PSC subordinate and the PSC entry-level subordinates. These statistics are presented in Appendices O and P, respectively. Because the supervisors did not have equal numbers of subordinates, mean ratings were used for those supervisors reporting multiple PSC enrollee subordinates.

Comparisons between supervisors classified on the basis of sex and ethnic group for the rating assigned for PSC entry-level subordinates and average non-PSC subordinate took the form of t tests for each of the five subscales of this form (Appendices O and P).



Additionally, t tests were used in comparing the ratings assigned the average non-PSC subordinate and PSC entry-level subordinates as a function of sex and ethnic group of the supervisor (Appendix Q).

Inventory for Supervisors

For the Inventory for Supervisors (LPC scale), the overall mean score was used to dichotomize the supervisory respondents. Comparisons in the form of t tests were then made between the high and low LPC groups on each of the five subscales of the Supervisory Rating Form for the rating assigned the PSC entry-level subordinates (Appendix R).

Assessment of Supervisory Influences

PSC entry-level enrollees in Session II and participating supervisory personnel were classified on the basis of sex and ethnic group. Comparisons between the ratings assigned the supervisor on the scales measuring Consideration and Initiation of Structure for each appropriate subject classification were in the form of t tests (Appendices M and N).

Goals of Best Friend

The subjects in Sessions I and II rated the 32 goals as they felt their best friend would. Within each subject classification a Pearson product moment correlation (r) was computed between the two sets of ratings elicited from each subject. The mean r was computed, using Fisher's z transformation.

Interrelationships of Selected Forms

Pearson product moment correlations were computed between the following variables:

- (1) The Job Description Index area of Satisfaction with Supervision, and Assessment of Supervisory Influences, and Inventory for Supervisors.
- (2) Scores on each of the five subscales of the Supervisory Rating Form and the average mean difference score between Session I and Session II for each of the eight value categories, by response format for PSC entry-level subjects.

Reliability

A reliability coefficient for each value category, psychological test, and JDI area was computed for each response format. The test-retest method was used with a three-week time interval separating the two test periods. These data were collected in Pensacola, Florida, and Baltimore, Maryland.

Factor Analysis

A Principal Components Analysis with Varimax rotation was used to factor analyze the rating form comprised of the 32 goals. Factor scores (estimated by the sum of test scores for an individual, weighted by factor loading) were constructed, and were correlated with each of the 14 psychological tests.

Summary of Test Components and Interpretation

To facilitate interpretation of the data presented in Chapter 3 concerning the questionnaire administration during the project, descriptions and maximum scores are given in Table 2.



Table 2 .

Maximum Test Scores and Interpretations

Name of Section on Tax	Maximum Score		, lotororotasio a	
Name of Section or Test	Likert-Type	Forced-Choice	Interpretation	
Goals Rating Section	5 ,	5	The higher the number, the	
		•	greater the value placed on the goal.	
Job Bescription Index	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		The higher the number, the	
Work *	54	54	greater the satisfaction with tha	
Supervision	54	. 54	aspect of the job.	
*Pay * ;	24	24		
Promotions	27	. 27		
Co-Workers	54	54		
Psychological Tests ^a			•	
Cynical Distrust of People	36 ,	4	The greater the score, the less	
•	*		willing the respondent is to ente	
	•		trusting relationships with other	
•			people.	
Cynical Distrust of	30	. 4	The greater the score, the less	
Organizations	, ,	, ,	faith the respondent has in the	
		* */ \	integrity of organizations and th	
· 			lower the likelihood of his adjus	
• •	•		ing successfully to the work	
, ,		•	environment.	
Weak Self-Regard	30	5	The greater the score, the more	
,		•	negative the respondent's attitud	
			toward himself, the lower the	
		•	self-regard.	
Achievement Motivation	42	6	The greater the score, the more	
			the respondent values, and is	
			interested in, relative status	
* 3			achieved through occupational	
- -		,	means.	
Time Sense	48 .	5	The larger the score, the greater	
, ·		•	the ability and/or desire of the	
_	٠.		respondent to delay gratification	
~	• •		of immediate needs in order to	
,	*		obtain gratification of more	
,	·		central needs at a later time.	
Protestant Ethic	36	6 ·	The greater the score, the more	
			the respondent values work in	
			and of its elf. The more work in	
,	, 1	$\overline{}$	general is valued, the greater the	
•		-	likelihood of the respondent	
			adjusting successfully to the	
-		•	work environment.	
	(Conti	nued) ———		

Table 2 (Continued)

Maximum Test Scores and Interpretations

Name of Cassian as Torr	Maxim	um Score	1
Name of Section or Test	Likert-Type	Forced-Choice	Interpretation
Expectation of Success	36 -	4	The larger the score, the greater the respondent's subjective probability of attaining desired goals. The higher score reflects a generalized expectancy of success in attaining any goal.
Powerlessness	24	2 1	The higher the score, the more the respondent feels he has little control over the forces that determine the outcomes in his life.
Meaninglessness	24 -	2 .	The larger the score, the more the respondent feels that his work is only a means of achieving immediate goals, the less meaningful he sees his work to be.
Normlessness	30	2 .	The greater the score, the more the respondent feels that some goals cannot be attained by means of socially approved behavior.
Value Isolation	18	2	The higher the score, the more the respondent feels himself isolated from the majority of society and the goals they value.
Self-Estrangement	30 .	3	The larger the score, the lower the respondent's willingness and potential for initiating exchange with others, reflecting his lack of trust in both their motives and them.
Work Demands	. ,	, 5 °	The higher the score, the greater the respondent's desire to hold a job in which the expectations are both explicitly stated and stable.
Orientation Toward Work	6 ,	6 [`]	The greater score reflects a lower concern by the respondent with "middle-class" values.

(Continued) -



Table 2 (Continued)

Maximum Test Scores and Interpretations

	Maximu	ım Score	Interpretation	
Name of Section or Test	Likert-Type	Forced-Choice		
Assessment of Supervisory Influences ^b Consideration	75	75	The larger the score, the more the respondent believed that his supervisor exhibited such	
Initiation of Structure	, 75	75	behavior.	
Inventory for Supervisors ^c	120	120	High scores reflect the leader behaving so as to increase member satisfaction. Low scores indicate a low degree of concern for pleasant interpersonal relations.	
Supervisor's Rating Form ^d			The higher the score, the more	
Performance of the worker	. 25	25	the supervisor believed that	
Adjustment of the worker	25	25 ,	dimension characterized the	
Motivation of the worker	25	25 [′]	subordinate being rated.	
Stability of the worker	25	25	•	
Potential of the worker	25	25 '		

⁸See Appendix S for identification of questionnaire items in each psychological test.



^bSee Appendix D for listing of items within each dimension.

^CSee Appendix E for listing of items within inventory.

 $^{^{\}mbox{\scriptsize d}}\mbox{See}$ Appendix E for items within each dimension.

Chapter 3

RESULTS

The results are presented in the following sequence. First, the results of the reliability measurement of the various sections of the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire are summarized. Next, results of the Session I data collection effort are briefly covered. Then Session II results are reviewed, and comparisons are made with Session I. Results of the supervisor-subordinate rating questionnaires, and a discussion of the observed relationships between the scales used in Session II follow. The last part of this Chapter shows the results of the factor analysis performed on the values section of the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire.

RELIABILITY RESULTS

The reliability coefficients for each value category, psychological test, and Job Description Index area are shown in Tables 3, 4, and 5, respectively, by response condition. Data used in computation of the coefficients were obtained through the test-refest method, with three weeks elapsed time between testing sessions.

As is shown in Table 3, for the forced-choice condition, reliabilities for measures of each value category range from negligible (.03) to a high value (.55) that is still short of

Table 3

Value Category

Reliability Coefficients

		Response Condition		
	Value Category	Likert-Type (N = 57)	Forced-Choice (N = 68)	
	Extrinsic Benefits	.56**	.33** .	
11	Intrinsic Benefits	.46**	.37**	
. 111	Gratification Demands	`.58 **	.55**	
IV	Interpersonal Relations With		9	
	Co-Workers	.61**	.52**	
٧	Interpersonal Relations With		-	
	Supervisor	.55**	.03	
۷ł			•	
	→ Family	.39**	.26*	
VII	Interpersonal Relations With			
	Friends	.73**	.18	
VIII	Developmental Needs	.44**	.39**	

^{*}p<.05; **p<.01.



Table 4
Psychological Test
Reliability Coefficients

•	Response Condition ,			
Psychological Test	Likert-Type (N = 57)	Forced-Choice (N = 68)		
Cynical Distrust of People	.64**	.76**		
Cynical Distrust of Organizations	.53**			
Weak Self-Regard	.63**	.62**		
Achievement Motivation	.52**	.38**		
Time Sense	.64**	.31*		
Protestant Ethic	.48**	.61**		
Expectation of Success	.51**	.62**		
Powerlessness	.56**	.22		
Meaninglessness	44**	.19		
Normlessness	.64**	.67**		
Value Isolation	.51**	.60**		
Self-Estrangement	.67**	.31*		
Work Demands	.72**	.59**		
Orientation Toward Work	.52**	.61,**		

^{*}p<.05; **p<.01.

Table 5

Job Description Index Reliability Coefficients

	Response Condition ^a		
JDI Area	Likert-Type (N = 57)	Forced-Choice (N = 68)	
Satisfaction With Work	.61**	·.68**	
Satisfaction With Supervision	.59**	.48**	
Satisfaction With Pay	.66**	.59**	
Satisfaction With Promotions	.74**	.41**	
Satisfaction With Co-Workers	.55**	.57**	

^{**}p<.01



^aThe same JĎI was administered in both response conditions.

Response condition here refers to the format of the other sections of the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire.

what is needed for individual measurement. For Likert-type response conditions, reliabilities range from .39 to .73. These values, while higher than those associated with forced-choice, are generally too small for individual measurement.

Inspection of Table 4, Psychological Tests, indicated that most of the reliability coefficients for both response conditions were of a marginal level for use in individual measurement. There were five coefficients in the forced-choice condition that were too low for much emphasis to be placed on the corresponding psychological tests. Two coefficients in the Likert-type condition were unacceptable.

Considering the 22 reliability coefficients in Tables 3 and 4, in 16 instances the Likert-type condition was associated with larger coefficients than were observed in the corresponding forced-choice forms. This difference can be attributed to a variety of factors (including response set and ease of recall for first response). Most significant, psychometrically, is that the forced-choice forms comprised fewer items and each item provided less information (i.e., being a ranking of two items rather than a full-scale rating).

The JDI was administered in the same form for both Likert-type and forced-choice conditions. Reliability coefficients for the JDI₄(Table 5) generally fall below the .7 to .8 range, which is considered as the lower bounds of the reliability of the JDI by its authors (Smith, et al., 1969). The discrepancies between reliability coefficients for several areas of the JDI are difficult to understand.

In Section 1 (goals) of the questionnaire, an incomplete paired-comparisons method was used for the forced-choice condition. The low reliability coefficients associated with this section indicate that few valid interpretations can realistically be made. For this reason, results involving Section 1 of the questionnaire, forced-choice condition, will be neither discussed nor interpreted.

REVIEW OF SESSION I RESULTS

Subject Characteristics

The median age for the three subject categories of entry, upgrade, and equivalent classifications was, respectively, 25.4, 25.4, and 23.6. Mean education ranged from a low of 10.7 years to a high of 12.5 years, with only three of the 12 subject groupings having a mean number of years of education lower than 11.0.

Comparisons of Subject Groups by Value Category

While no significant differences between entry, upgrade, and equivalent personnel were found for the value category scores, several significant differences were found within groups.

Two differences involved comparisons between entry males and entry females in the Likert-type condition. The significant comparison in the forced-choice condition indicated that entry males rated the goals subsumed by Gratification Demands higher than did entry females.

Comparisons of Value Categories

As a follow-up of the analysis of variance performed for the female subjects within each of the three subject groupings, the Newman-Keuls procedure indicated highly significant differences between most mean value category scores. For both response conditions, the relative orders of the eight value categories indicated the most highly valued outcomes of work were Intrinsic Benefits and Self Development. At the other end



of the ranking, the two categories standing lowest were Gratification Demands and Interpersonal Relations With Friends.

In summary, the females (and probably also the males) appeared to be discriminating between the world-of-work and the world of non-work, and to be making discriminations that would be judged adaptive and characteristic of higher socioeconomic individuals than was originally anticipated would be enrolled in the PSC Program.

Goals Comparisons

For the between groups comparisons in both the forced-choice and the Likert-type conditions, several significant differences were found between entry-level and at least one of the other two classifications.

The following significant differences were observed in the Likert-type conditions.

Goals	Direction of Val	ue Comparisons
A good vacation each year	entry male	> upgrade male
Feeling proud of your job	entry females	> equivalent females
A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems	entry females	> upgrade females
Being something you can talk to your friends about after work	upgrade females	> entry females
Being able to learn to do some- thing that is really hard	upgrade females	> entry females

For the within-group comparisons in the Likert-type condition, 13 were significant, with 10 of these occurring between entry males and females. These significant differences were as follows:

Goals	Direction of Val	ue Comparisons
A good vacation each year	entry males	> entry females
A good retirement plan	upgrade males	> entry females
A good hospitalization plan	entry male	> entry female
A plan to pay doctor's bills	entry males	> entry females
Feeling proud of your job	entry females	> entry males
Being able to buy a lot of new things	entry males	> entry females
Being able to buy things I need	entry males	> entry females
Being able to talk and have fun with the people working there	entry males	> entry females
A supervisor who is willing to help you with off-the-job problems	upgrade males	. > upgrade females
Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do	entry males upgrade males	> entry females > upgrade females
Having a job that is interesting to your friends	entry males	> entry females
Being something you can talk to your friends about after work	entry males	> entry females



The greater number of significant results, for the within-as compared with the between-groups comparisons, strongly suggests that sex differences were more important than group differences.

Job Description Index

Work. Entry females were more satisfied (or expected to be) with their work than were upgrade females. Both upgrade and equivalent females were less satisfied than was the normative group (Smith, et al., 1969), as were entry males.

Supervision. Entry males were significantly less satisfied than either the upgrade or

the normative group, while not differing from the equivalent group.

Pay. All groups expressed little satisfaction with this job factor.

<u>Promotion</u>. Both entry and upgrade males were significantly lower than the normative group. Entry females and the normative group did not differ and were significantly more satisfied than either the upgrade or the equivalent females.

Co-Workers. Entry males were significantly lower than either upgrade males or the normative group. Entry-level and upgrade females were both lower than the normative

group.

Psychological Tests

The following significant differences were found.

J 0 -		P
Response Condition/Test	Direction of Difference	Interpretation of Larger Score
Forced-Choice	annimiant ()	
Work Demands	equivalent females > upgrade females	Greater desire for a stable, routinized job
• Orientation Toward Work	equivalent females > entry and upgrade females	Greater concern for "middle-class" values
Likert-Type .	•	
Cynical Distrust of People	upgrade females > upgrade males.	Greater cynical distrust of people
Achievement Motivation	upgrade males > upgrade females	Greater value placed on relative status obtained through occupational means
Expectation of Success •	entry females > entry males .	Greater subjective probability of attaining a
		desired goal
Normlessness	upgrade females > upgrade males	Greater feeling that some goals cannot be attained by
•	entry males > ' '	means of socially approved behavior
•	upgrade females > entry females	• • • •
Work Demands	entry females > entry males .	Greater desire for a stable, routinized job

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

39

entry females > equivalent females

Again, as has been the case with the other measures reported earlier, differences between groups appear to be minimal in the present sample. Those that were found appeared perhaps to be governed as much by sex differences as by occupational level differences.

Discussion

The most striking feature of the Session J results was the similarity between the responses of subjects, irrespective of group. Two factors might underlie such observed similarity, either individually or in combination—an actual similarity between the subjects, or a questionnaire containing scales having little validity. The most cogent reasons for attaching minimal weight to the latter possibility are (a) examination of the results of the Job Description Index (in which only eight of the 25 significant comparisons were between classifications) and (b) general agreement between this pattern of results for both the JDI and the remaining scales and tests used in this project. The validity of the JDI itself has been addressed by numerous researchers (e.g., Smith, et al., 1969) and found to be quite adequate.

The most valued outcomes of work for all three groups were Intrinsic Benefits and Self Development. The least valued outcomes were Gratification Demands and Interpersonal Relations With Friends.

In the comparisons between the entry-level and the other groups on ratings of goals, only five of the 32 goals were significant, reflecting very few differences between the values held by each group. Interestingly, entry females valued the goal of Feeling Proud of Your Job more than did equivalent females, but valued less the goal of Being Able to Learn to do Something That is Really Hard than did upgrade females. However, entry females felt more strongly about a Supervisor Who is Willing to Help You With Your Off-The-Job Problems than did upgrade females.

Goal comparisons made between sexes within a group revealed stronger sex than group effects for this sample, especially for the entry-level. Ten of the 13 significant comparisons between sex were at the entry-level. Generally, entry males were more concerned with the purchasing power afforded by their jobs, fringe benefits, and their friends' acceptance and esteem than were the entry females. Upgrade males were more concerned both with having the respect of their friends and with having a supervisor who was available for off-the-job problem assistance than were the upgrade females.

Entry females expressed less concern for "middle-class" values than did their equivalent counterparts. Entry females also expected to be more successful than did entry males, although they did not feel as strongly as upgrade females that many goals cannot be obtained by means of socially approved behavior. Entry females were also more desirous of stable routinized jobs than were entry males, and expressed a greater expectation of being satisfied by their jobs than was reported by upgrade females. Entry males did not feel the same way, anticipating a relatively lower level of satisfaction from the work itself. Entry males also anticipated less satisfaction with the supervision they would receive than was reported by the upgrade males. None of the groups was satisfied with the pay received.

Entry males anticipated, and upgrade males and females reported, low levels of satisfaction with promotion, while entry females anticipated being satisfied with future promotions. Entry males and females anticipated, and upgrade females reported, relatively lower levels of satisfaction with their co-workers than did upgrade males.

Overall, and of positive value from the viewpoint of the PSC Program, subjects participating in this study seem well socialized with respect to the "middle-class value system," seem desirous of adequately performing work which they feel is meaningful and interesting, will work at lower salary levels to obtain such work, and accept socially, approved methods of obtaining goals.



The high level of motivation of the entry-level subjects and the degree of congruence between their values and those of the other two groups provide basis for the inference that entry-level enrollees are underemployed since many higher-level jobs would not require special skills. The upgrade workers are employed several levels above the jobs made available to PSC entrants. Belatively rapid promotions, which are not likely, will be needed to minimize the impact of underemployment upon the job motivation and performance of the entry-level subjects. One factor that may lessen this impact is the possibility that a job with the Federal government is viewed as highly desirable. The security, stability, and fringe benefits associated with such a job may well be the deciding factor in the enrollees decision to remain in, or leave, their jobs.

REVIEW OF SESSION II RESULTS AND COMPARISONS WITH SESSION I

Subject Characteristics

There were 328 entry-level subjects who participated in Session I; 211 of these subjects also participated in Session II. Comparisons of the entry-level subjects' ages and educational levels between sessions are presented in Tables 6 and 7, respectively. In a small percentage of cases, source data were missing in the questionnaire replies,

Although the decrease in the number of subjects between sessions represented a 35.6% attrition rate, the sources of the attrition warrant analysis. Fort Ord was the primary location of the loss, accounting for about two-thirds of the reduction. The . Washington, D.C. area attrition represented about one-fourth of the total loss. These might seem to be high attrition rates. However, for Fort Ord only four of the Session I subjects who did not participate in Session II were terminated for reasons other than a cut in funds or a termination of the job itself. Of the 78 not participating in Session II, only 14 had resigned. Closer examination of the Washington, D.C. area sample shows a

Frequency Distribution of Subjects' Ages, by Sex and Ethnic Group for Sessions I and IIa

Table 6

:		• •	•	Sess	ion i			Sess	ion'II	- 1995 J
Age ,	-	-	Male	, •	, Fe	male	, Ma	le ' ' '	Fe	emale
		White		Biack	,:White	Black	White	Black	White	* Black
47-2 <u>0</u>	, .	13		10	ه 4	29	2	. 11	. * 3	20
21-25	, -	52	٠.	29	. 4″	33	25		· · ·3	28
26-30		8	E 3	· 7	. ,2	20 · ·	8	· 604	2'.	. 17
31-35		9.	. ** *	•	• :	· 11	3		•	`11
36-40		6	٠	2 '	3	· 13	, 5	` 1 ,	· 2'	13
41.45		6		4	· 2	6	3	4	3 🦩	≥ / `6
46-50		11		. 1 .	. 1	5 ,	7		, †	4
51-over	4	13	•	7, 1	3	5	3	2	2	5

⁸A member of the HumRRO research staff made ethnic group classifications on the basis of personal observations.



Table 7

Frequency Distribution of Subjects' Education, by Sex and Ethnic Group for Sessions I and IIa

		Ses	sion I '			Sessi	on II	,
Educational Level	, , , , , ,	ale	. · Fe	male علم	Ma	ile , ·	Fe	male
	White	Black	White	Black	/ White	Black	White	Black
5		1		2		,	••	, 2 ·
6				1		•	•	1
7	3			2	1	1 -		. 2
8	4,	2		3	5	2	1	3
9	4	5	7	14	1	2	\ 5	`11
10	8	7	2	21	4	3	1	· 20
11	15	6	2	19	5	4		18
12	64 `	[^] 25	.4	43	34	13	` 6	31
13	8	3	1 '	2	1	1	2	1
14	7	3	1	1 2	2	1 .		1
⁻ 15	1.1.			•			ř.	
16	2	٠ کو					•	

^aA member of the HumRRO research staff made ethnic group classifications on the basis of personal observations.

 \geq

variety of reasons for the discrepancies in sample size. The data available for 29 of the 31 not participating in Session II:

Basis for	•
Non-Participation	Number -
Transferred	3.
Promoted	1.
Resigned	16
Leave	4 .
Terminated	3 .
AWOP/AWOL	2

While some of those who resigned probably did so in preference to termination, on the basis of these break-outs it would seem that PSC enrollees have a low attrition rate (31/153 = 20%) appreciably lower than had been expected.

Value Category Comparisons

To determine whether any changes had occurred during the elapsed time as to the relative order of preference for each value category, Spearman rank order correlations (rho) were computed for each sex and response condition grouping (Table 8). The ranking was based on the mean rating of value category by group under Likert-type and forced-choice conditions (Tables 9 and 10).

While the consistency of the order of preference for the value categories is amply demonstrated by the magnitude of the computed *rhos*, some interesting shifts occurred.



Table 8

Rank Correlations for Value Categories,
/ by Session and Sex

Classification	Response	Condition
Classification	Likert-Type	Forced-Choice
Males: Session I vs. Session II	.90	.97
Females: Session I vs. Session II	.88	.91
Session 1: Males vs. Females	.80	⁵ 1.00
Session II: Males vs. Females	.91	.96

^aSpearman *mo*

Table 9

Mean Rating and Rank of Value Categories, by Session and Sex:

Likert-Type Condition:

		,	. Sess	ion 1			'Sessi	ion II	
	Value Category	· Ma	ıle	Fen	nalê	Ma	ale	F.em	ale
•		Mean	Rank	Mean	Rank	Mean	Rank	Mean	Rank
1	Extrinsic Benefits	4.3	2	3.9	5	4.1	3	4.1	3
Î II	Intrinsic Benefits	4.6	1	4.5	1	4.4	1	4.4	2
111	Gratification Demands	3.6	7	3.5	7.	3.3	7.	3:4	6
IV	Interpersonal Relations With	•			-	•			
	Co-Workers	4.0	5.5	3.6	, 6 _	3.7	> 5 .	3.4	, 7
٧	Interpersonal Relations With	•							1 3
	Supervisor .	4:0	5.5	.4.1	٠ 3	3.8	4	3.9	4 .
VI	Interpersonal Relations With	,				`*	•	•	4
	Family	4.0	4	4.0	4	3.5	6	3.6	5 ′
VII	Interpersonal-Relations With					\$, , ,		125
	Friends	3.3	8	2.6	8	2.9	8 1/	y: 2.7	8
VIII	Developmental Needs	4.2	3	4.3	2	4.2	2	4.4	1

A higher rank was given the value category of Developmental Needs in Session II than in Session I by both entry males and females. With one exception (female, Likert-type condition), the preference rank for Intrinsic Benefits remained the same for both sessions, and only dropped one rank for that group.

Again with one exception (males, Likert-type condition), the preference rank for Extrinsic Benefits was increased by each subject classification, with the drop for the males (Likert-type) being only one rank.

As in Session I, of the three most preferred value categories, the two that were common to all subject groupings were Intrinsic Benefits and the opportunity for Self Development. The items categorized into the Intrinsic Benefits area reflected "the work

Table 10

Mean Rating and Rank of Value Categories, by Session and Sex:

Forced-Choice Condition

			Session 1				Session II			
•	Value Category	· Ma	ale	Fen	naie	M	late	Fen	nale	
<u>.</u>		Mean	-Rank	Mean	Ránk	Mean	Rank	Mean	Rank	
1	Extrinsic Benefits	2.3	. 6	2.2	6	2.3	5.5	2.2		
11	Intrinsic Benefits	3.6	3	3.7	3	3.5	3	3.5	·3,	
- 111	Gratification Demands	₹.6 ·	7	2:1	7 .	~ 1.8	7	2.1	6	
. IV	Interpersonal Relations With				•				. ~	
,	Co-Workers	2.4	5	2.5	5 '	2.3	5.5	2.1	.7	
٧	Interpersonal Relations With			- • /		,		•	•	
	Supervisor	2.7	·4	3.0	4	2.9	4 *	`3.0	4	
VI	Interpersonal Relations With							~		
	Family • •	3.9	1	4.0.	. 1 ·	. 3.6	2	3.8	2	
VII	Interpersonal Relations With	• *				• .		1.		
*	Friends	1.2	_ 8	.9	8	.8	8	.7	8	
VIII	Developmental Needs	3.9	2	3.7 .	2	3.8	1.	-4.1	1	

itself" in the Herzberg sense. Items in the Developmental Needs category, while similar, tended to reflect achievement as opposed to the content of work. Significantly, these two categories were quite high in the relative ordering of value categories, regardless of methodology.

Across response format, the two categories standing lowest in relative ordering were Gratification Demands and Interpersonal Relations With Friends. The category of Gratification Demands was included in the taxonomy partly to test the hypothesis that the marginal workers expected to be PSC enrollees would be significantly lower on ability to defer such demands than equivalent and upgrade personnel, and that, for them, this category would be found relatively high in the ordering of categories. That it was not, and that it fell toward the very bottom of the ordering of value categories for all response groups, suggests that subjects in the present study are responding in a manner that would have been expected of subjects at a considerably higher socioeconomic level, at least insofar as can be judged from the research literature on work goals. The same statement can be made with regard to the category of Interpersonal Relations With Friends.

Goals Comparisons

The results concerning the relative values of the specific goals comprising the value categories are presented in the following sequence. goal value differences between sessions by sex, goal value differences between sexes for Session II, preferential ordering of goals for Sessions I and II, and the relationship between the worker's goal preferences and those attributed to his best friend.

Tables 11 and 12 present the mean value rating for each goal by subject classification (combined), session, and response condition, as well as preferential orderings of goals. The mean values in these tables are based on the total entry-level subjects participating in the study at each session point. The descriptive statistics for the



Table 11

Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session: Likert-Type Condition

		Sess	ion I	Sessi	on II	Rank Orde	Ordering of Goals		
	Goals	Male (N = 67)	Female (N = 49)	'Male _,(N = 48)	Female (N = 57)	Session i ^a	Session 11ª		
1.	Good pay	4.6	4.4	4.6	4.4	8	6		
2.	Good working conditions,					٠.			
	like air conditioning	3.7	3.3	.3.3	4.1 .	- 24	20 ·		
3.	A good vacation each year	4.3 .	3.4	3.9	3.9	19	.17		
4.	A good retirement plan	4.5	4.2	4.4	- 4.2	_ 10	7		
5.	Being able to work close		,			1			
	to home	3.8	3.5	3.6	3.5	22	22		
6.	A good hospitalization plan	4.5	. 3.9	4.2	4.2	12	12		
7.	A plan to pay doctor's bills	4.2	2.9	4.2	4.1	23	14		
8.	Being able to keep the job as	•	*			`			
	long as you want	4.6	4.6	4.4	. 4.7	4 .	2 . ົ		
9.	Being able to take pride in					•			
	what you do	4.6	4.5	4. 🗞	4.2	6	' 13		
10.	Being able to do the type work			•			•		
	you always wanted to do	4.5	4.5	4.5	4.5	7	'5)		
11.	Knowing there is a good					•	,		
	chance of being promoted	['] 4.7	4.6	4.5	4.5	2.	3		
12.	Feeling proud of your job	4.3 .	4.6	4.1	4.3	9	11		
13.	A lot of time off without					• •	_		
	losing pay .	. 2.9	2.9	2.5	2.8	29	[ຶ] 31		
14.	Being able to buy a lot of				•		•		
	new things	3.1	2.6	3.0	2.8	30	28		
15.	Being able to buy things I	ů.							
	have always wanted	3.5	3.4	3.3	3.4	27	24		
16.	Being able to buy things I	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			•		`		
	need · · ·	4.3	3.8	4.0.	4.0	14.5	15		
17.	Being able to work with people		•		• •	•	•		
	who think my work is good	4.2	3.9	3.8	3.9	13	18		
18.	Being able to work with people			,	,				
(who like me	4.0	3.6	3.5	3.4	20 ·	23 ´		
19.	Being able to work with people			,	•••				
	who are friendly	4.2	4.3	4,5	4.1	11 '	1 8 2		
20.	Being able to talk and have	1		.,-	•••	, , , ,	_		
	fun with the other people				•		•		
	working there	3.7	32	3.4	2.9	`26	27		
21.	Being able to work with people		V.2	0.4	`	20 ,	 ,		
- ,;	who think as much of me as	•		,	,	2	1		
	my friends do	3.7	3.3	3.4	3.0	25	2 6		
22.	A supervisor who is friendly	4.0 "	رع.ع 4.1	3. 4 3.7	3.0 4.0	45 14.5	19		
22. 23.	A supervisor who is menuty A supervisor who treats	7.0	7.1	J./	4.0	, 14.0	, 13,		
LJ.	everyone fairly	4.5	4.6	4.4	4.2	, , 5	9. ~,		
		7.0	7.0	7.7	7.6	J 4	J.		

(Continued)'



Table 11 (Continued)

Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session: Likert-Type Condition

		Sess	ion I	Sessio	on II	Rank Orde	ring of Goals
٠,	Goals	Male (N = 67)	Female (N = 49)	Male (N = 48)	Female (N = 57)	Session I ^a	Session II ^a
V	A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good ob on something		4.1	-	·.	40.5	
•	A supervisor who helps when	3.9	4.1	3.9	4.0	16.5	16
	ou need help	4.6	4.7	4.5	4.5	√ .} 3	. 4
26. A	A saparvisor who is willing o help you with your off-		•••	* *	-1.0	*, 2 •	•
t	he-job problems	3.0	3.0	2.7	2.6	28	.30
	Cnowing your family is				•		•
	roud of the work you do	4.0	.4.0	3.5	3.6	16.5	. 21
	(nowing your friends respect	•	•	•			
	ou for the work you do	4.1	3.2	3.5	3.1 ·	21	, 25
	laving a job that is inter-						
	sting to your friends	2.7	2.0	2.5	2.5	32	· 32
	leing something you talk to.			- '-			
-	our friends about after work	3.1	2.4	2.7	2.6	31	29
	eing able to learn new things	,					
	hat will help ýou get a	4.6	47	4.7	4.0		
	etter job later eing able to learn to do some-	4.6	4.7	4.7	4.8	1	1
	-		. 20	4.5	»՝ A 1	10	10
·th	ning that is really hard	3.9	3.9 * *	4.5	4.1	18	10

Table 12 Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session: Forced-Choice Condition

	Ses	sion I	Sessi	on II	Rank Ordering of Goals		
Goals	Male (N, = 71)	Female (N = 65)	Male (N = 41)	Female (N = 64)	Session I	Session II	
1. Good pay 2. Good working conditions,	2.1	1.9 😁	2.1	ــِـ 2.1	20 ·	21	
like air conditioning .	1.2	1.3	1.1	1.1	29	. 27	
3. A good vacation each year	, 2.2	3.2	2.4	2.1	16	18	
4, A good retirement plan Being able to work close	3.1	3.0 ′	3.1	3.2	11	, 11	
to home	2.4	2.3	2.0	, 1.9	19	· 22	
. A good hospitalization plan	· 3.5	2.9	3.4	3.6	7	7	
. A plan to pay doctor's bills	³ 2.0	1.5 ,	2.1	1.7	24	23	
		Continued)					

_ Table 12 (Continued)

Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session: Forced Choice Condition

,*	Sessi	ion I	Sessio	on II	Rank Order	ing of Goals
Goal	Male (N = 71)	`Female .(N = 65)	Male (N = 41)	Female (N = 64)	Session I ⁸	Session II
8. Being able to keep the job	,			. .	•	
as long as you want	1.9	1.9	2.3	2.0	21	20
9. Being able to take pride in					1 .	
what you do	4.0	3.9	3.2	4.0	1	6
0. Being abletto do the type work	(,			•
you always wanted to do	3.6	3.6	3.2	3,4	8	9
1. Knowing there is a good chang	æ					
of being promoted	3.3	3.5	3.7	3.3	9	8
2. Feeling proud of your job	3.2	3.4	3.0	3.5	10	10
3. A lot of time off without						,
losing pay	.6	.5	.8	.9	32	31
4. Being able to buy a lot of		.	•	•	'	٠,
new things	.9	1.6	.9	1.4	1 28	26 · `
5. Being able to buy things I	•			Y		
have always wanted	1.0	1.6	1.1	1.7	26	25
6. Being able to buy things I need	2.3	3.4	3.0	3.2	13	13
7. Being able to work with people						•
who think my work is good	2.4	2.6	2.6	2.5	17.5	16
8. Being able to work with people						•
who like me	2.3	2.6	2.4	ź.1	17.5	19
9. Being able to work with people		2.0	-			
who are friendly	4.0 .	° 3.9 .	_ 3.9	3.7	2.5	, 4
O. Being able to talk and have fur		0.0	- 0.0	0.,		\
with other people working	•				•	,
there	1.2	1.4	7.	.7	27	32
11. Being able to work with people		•	. :/ .	••	_,	
who think as much of meas	5		•			
•	1.9	1.8	1.9	1.4	, 23	24
my friends do	3.1	2.9	2.3	2.6	12	17
2. A supervisor who is friendly	3.1	2.9	2.3	2.0	12	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
3. A supervisor who treats every-	2.4	1.6	2.4	2:8	⁴ 22	['] 12
one fairly	2.1	1.6	3.4	270	22	12
24. A supervisor who tells you						•
when you have done a good	_					
job on something	2.3	2.9	2.8	2.7	15	14
5. A supervisor who helps when			•	•		
you need help	3,5	4.3	3.5	4.2	4	2
6. A supervisor who is willing to						
help you with your off-the-						
job problems ·	2.8	2.9	2.4	2.8	14	15
7. Knowing your family is	•				•	•
proud of the work you do	3.9	4.0	3.6	3.8	2.5	3
,		Continued)				

(Continuea)



Table 12 (Continued)

Mean Value Ratings for Each Goal, by Session: Forced-Choice Condition

	• •	Sessi	ion I	Sessio	n II	Rank Order	Rank Ordering of Goals	
	Goal .	Male (N = 71)	Female (N = 65)	Male . (N = 41)	Female (N = 64)	Session I ^a	Session II a	
28.	Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do	1.9	.9	1.4	.8/	25	28	
29.	Having a job that is interesting to your friends	.6	.6	.8	.4	31	ن 30	
30.	Being something you can talk to your friends about after work	1.0	1.4 ·	.3	.9	30	29	
31.	Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better		. '		•		,	
	job later	3.9	3.7	3.3	4.1	5.	5	
32.	Being able to learn to do something that is really hard	3.8	3.6	4.4	4.0	6	1	

^aMale and Female.

entry-level enrollees' responses, based only on those persons participating in both sessions, are shown in Appendix F-1. Also shown in that appendix are the t values resulting from tests performed to ascertain the significance of changes over time in this particular group. These tests are the basis for the changes between sessions that are reported below. Because of the low reliability of the forced-choice goals section, only changes occurring in the Likert-type condition are reported. A t test for repeated measures on the same subject was used in making the comparisons shown in Appendix F-1. These t values can be compared to those shown in Appendix F, which refer to differences between groups.

By Sessions Comparisons. The comparisons between sessions by sex, to determine whether any changes had occurred in the value ratings of each goal, took the form of t tests. Because of the large number of comparisons, only t values equaling or exceeding the .01 level were considered to be of acceptable reliability although values at the .05 level are included in Table 13, which presents the significant comparisons between Sessions I and II for the Likert-type condition, by sex.

Only one of the comparisons made in the Likert-type condition proved to be significant at the .01 level. The males valued the goal of Being Able to Take Pride in What You Do significantly less in Session II than they had reported in Session I. With the exception of higher evaluation of A Good Vacation Each Year by females, each of the other shifts shown in Table 13 was in the direction of lower evaluation of the goal.

The decreases shown in evaluation of the goals reflect a realistic reappraisal of the job and working conditions. Preconceptions of what is necessary to make a "good" working environment may have changed as a function of job experience.

By Sex Comparisons—Session II. For the Session II results, t tests were conducted to determine which goals in each response condition were differentially rated by males and females. As in the previous sections, only t values equaling or exceeding the .01 level are considered of sufficient reliability to report.



.

Goals Associated With Significant Changes Between Sessions I and II in Evaluation by Entry-Level Subjects, by Sex: Likert-Type Condition

0.01	Cour	- • Me	ans	,	
Goal	Group	Session I	Session II	•	ρ
A good vacation each year	Female	3.2 ′	3.7	2.04	<.05
Being able to take pride in what you do	Male	4.6	4.0	3.57	<.01
Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted	Male	4.7	4.4	2.18	<.05
Being able to work with people who like me	Female `	3.6	3.2	2.16	<.05
Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do	Male ** Female	3.7 3.3	3.3 2.7 , 1.	2.08 2.71.	<.05 <.05
A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off the job problems	Female .	. 3.0	2.5	2.59	<.05
Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do	Male ,	3.9	3.3	2.43	<.05 ¹

For the Likert-type condition, only one comparison yielded a significant difference. Session II females gave significantly higher value ratings to Good Working Conditions, Like Air Conditioning than did Session II males (t = 3.47, p < .01.

Within the forced-choice condition, the only comparison that reflected significant differences between Session II males and females was in the ratings assigned Being Able to Take Pride in What You Do. Females scored significantly higher than did males (t = 3.59, p < .01).....

<u>Preferential Ordering of Goals</u>. Because the comparisons between values given to goals by Session II males and females were generally nonsignificant, the two sets of ratings were combined to obtain an overall mean rating for each goal. This overall mean was then used to rank the goals in order of their assigned values (see Tables 11 and 12). This was also done for the Session I data.

Although the Likert-type response format allowed giving maximum value ratings to each goal, subjects did discriminate among the goals. The top ranked goals reflected strivings for upward mobility (Being Able to Learn Things That Will Help You Get a Better Job Later and Knowing There is a Good Chance of Being Promoted) and a desire for job security (Being Able to Keep the Job as Long as You Want). Not only was Good Pay not ranked first, it was one rank lower than it had been in Session I, down to rank 6. This result may reflect a longer time perspective than is generally credited to the marginal worker.

The forced-choice results are presented primarily for comparative purposes and will not be described.

Goal Ratings for Respondent and Best Friend

Data, were collected in both sessions to determine the similarity between each respondent's values and those attributed to his best friend. The data were in the form of



the worker's value ratings of each goal for himself and for his best friend. As shown in Table 14, more than one-half the subjects who provided sufficient information to identify their best friend indicated that the best friend was different between Session I and Session II (68 vs. 51 for combined response conditions).

Table 14

Average Correlations Between Ratings of Goals for Self and for Best Friend,
by Sex, Session, Consistency of Relationship, and Response Condition

					_	٠		
•		Likert	-Type			Porced	-Choice	
Relationship	Session I Se		Ses	sion IJ	Ses	Session I · Session		on II
	Male	Female	" Male	Female	Male	Female	, Male 1	Female '
Same best friend for Sessions I				ı	•		,	• .
and II	•						•	•
Correlation	.71	.55	.72	.59	.65	•73	`.43	.37
; N	5	21	5	21	6	19	6	19
Different best friend for Sessions and II	,	•		•			•	•
Correlation	.84	.74	.94	:64	74	.57	.60-	.48
N .	14	17.	† 4	· 16	11	27	11 '	27

^aCorrelations shown in tables are, unless otherwise noted, Pearson product moment correlation coefficients,

There are several alternative explanations of the observed frequency of change. There may have been increasingly large differences between respondents and the Session I best friends' values over time, and enrollees reporting different best friends may have formed new relationships with others having more similar values. Alternatively, the shift in best friend might be due to proximity to others in the work situation, with a correspondingly lower frequency of contact with the Session I best friend. The new relationship would reflect the lower investment of effort to obtain about the same level of benefits. Insufficient data were available to rule out either inference.

Job Description Index

The Job Description Index (Smith, et al., 1969) was administered in both sessions. Items used in measuring the workers' satisfaction for the five areas of work comprising the JDI (satisfaction with work, supervision, pay, promotion, and co-workers) are presented in Appendix B. Means, standard deviations, and t tests comparing results for Session I and Session II are presented in Appendix J. Table 15 contains, in summary form, the means obtained in both sessions for entry-level PSC enrollees, together with means provided by Smith, et al. (1969) for their normative sample. Attractiveness of the job is assumed to be reflected in respondents' ratings of satisfaction with each of the five job areas, the maximum score on any area being three times the number of items tapping that job area.

The several major differences between the responses of entry-level workers and those of the normative group were summarized in the review of Session I results. Comparisons to be reported here in the form of t tests were made between the results of Session I and Session II. Differences between the two sessions are shown by JDI area in Table 16.

Job Description Index Means of PSC Entry-Level Workers
For Sessions Land II

	Maximum	Norm	ative ^a	Session I S			ession II '	
JDI AÎtea _	Score	Male .	Female	Male ,	Female	_ Male	Female	
Work .	. 54 * *	36.6	35.7	29.6	34.1	32.0	32.6	
Supervision	54.	41.1	41.1	38.1	40.0	39.7	39.4	
Pay	24	29,9	27.9	10.9	12.5	10.8	9.6	
Promotions	27 🤄	22.1	17.8	16.5	18.4	16.6	15.4	
Co-Workers : ;	√ 5 4	43.5 ,	42.1	38.4	39.1	39.8	38.5	

Smith et al. (1969).

Table 16

Significant Changes Between Sessions I and II in Ratings by Entry-Level Subjects of Satisfaction on Each Area of the Job Description Index

, JDI Area	Group	Extent of Change
Work •	Male Female	No significant change
Supervision	Male Female)	No significant change .
Pay :	Male . Female	No significant change Lower staisfaction level in Session II - (t = 3.64, p<.01)
Promotions	Male Female	No significant change Lower satisfaction level in Session II (t = 3.43, p<.01)
Co-Workers	Male Female	No significant change

The general picture produced by analysis of the Session II results did not differ to any extent from Session I data; if anything, it was accentuated. The conclusion drawn from the Session I results was that the entry-level jobs held by enrollees were less desirable than the average job held by normative subjects. This conclusion was based on the generally lower degrees of satisfaction expressed by respondents participating in this study, as compared with responses of the blue-collar normative group.

The fact that the females in Session II had become even less satisfied with both pay and promotions tended to bolster this conclusion. This was especially applicable for the finding concerning satisfaction with promotions, since in Session I females had anticipated being satisfied with the promotion opportunities, to the extent of slightly exceeding the normative group in their ratings.



Psychological Tests

Means, standard deviations, and to tests for each of the 14 psychological tests included in the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire are shown in Appendices K and L. Statistics derived from responses of entry-level subjects who participated in both sessions are given in Appendix K-1, for the Likert-type response condition only.

By Sessions Comparisons. The same procedure used with the goals rating data was used for the psychological tests (Likert-type condition). Appendix K presents the descriptive statistics and t values based on the total number of entry-level subjects participating in each data collection session. There were no significant changes observed in the Likert-type condition.

In the forced-choice condition, males were significantly more motivated to achieve relative status through occupation means in Session II than in Session I (t = 2.33, p < .05; Achievement Motivation Test). Females were significantly less concerned with "middle-class" values in Session II than they had been in Session I (t = 2.36, p < .05; Orientation Toward Work Test).

Appendix K-1 shows the descriptive statistics and t values that result from only using responses of subjects participating in both data collection sessions, in the Likert-type response condition. For these results, a t test for correlated means was used. The significant results of these tests are shown in Table 17. The purpose of the alternative procedures was twofold: (a) to show any changes that had occurred over time in the entire group of enrollees, and (b) to identify any smaller changes which might have

Table 17

Significant^a Changes Between Sessions I and II in Responses by Entry-Level Subjects to Each Psychological Test
(Based Only on Subjects Participating in

Both Sessions in the Likert-Type Condition)

		•		€
Donah atariant Torr		. М	ean .	Interpretation
Psychological Test	Group	Session I	Session II	of Change
Powerlessness	Male	10.1	11.8	Decreased control over their outcome was felt by males in Session II.
Meaninglessness ,	Male	9.3	10.4	Males saw work as being less meaningful, perceived more as only a means to immediate ends.
Self-Estrangement	Male Female	13.0 13.7	14.8 15.4	Both males and females felt less willing to initiate exchange with others, less trusting of others and their motives than had been reported for Session I.
Work Demands	Female	25.5 -	23.4	A greater desire was reported in Session II for a job that was less routinized and stable.
Orientation Toward Work	' Male .	2.6	3.2	There was a lower level of concern for "middle- class" values than had been reported in

Session I.

^ap≤.05.

occurred, by using only those subjects whose responses had been elicited by the same procedure in both data collection sessions.

Females were less satisfied with their jobs than were males. Both males and females were less trusting of the motives of others at the time of the second testing. The males felt less control over the outcome of their work; this may reflect a lack of viable alternatives. The general dissatisfaction of the females may indicate boredom with very structured jobs, as they desire jobs that are less stable and structured. When considered with changes in the JDI, it can be inferred that females entered the program with higher aspirations and expectations than males, and have been forced to revise their ambitions downward as a result of their realistic appraisal of the actual situation.

By Sex Comparisons Session II. In the Likert-type condition, females scored significantly higher than males on the Self-Estrangement Test (t = 2.21, p < .05). This result reflects a lower willingness by females to initiate exchange with others. Further, such a

result indicates a lower level of trust of others and their motives by females.

Results for the forced-choice condition showed that males were significantly more motivated to achieve relative status through occupational means than were females (t=2.25, p<.05; Achievement Motivation Test). Males also expressed a greater desire for a stable; routinized job than did females (t=2.35, p<.05; Work Demands Test).

ASSESSMENT OF SUPERVISORY INFLUENCES

Results of the questionnaire that obtained subordinates' ratings of their supervisors on two dimensions of leadership behavior, "Consideration" and "Initiation of Structure," are presented separately for each dimension. The first section compares the ratings of supervisors as a function of the sex and ethnic group of the subordinate, while the second section compares the ratings of supervisors as a function of the sex and ethnic group of the supervisor. Means, standard deviations, and t tests relevant to each of these sections are presented in Appendices M and N, respectively.

Ratings of Supervisory Behaviors

Consideration. There were no significant differences between sexes either within or between ethnic groups. White males gave significantly higher ratings to supervisors than did black males (t = 2.29, p < .05). White females also rated supervisors higher on Consideration than did black females (t = 2.11, p < .05). Combining across sex, whites assigned significantly higher ratings to supervisors than did blacks (t = 2.18, p < .05).

Initiation of Structure. There were no significant differences in comparisons by sex,

ethnic group, or any combination of the two.

Comparison of Supervisor Ratings by Supervisor's Sex and Ethnic Group

Consideration. There were no significant differences between the ratings given supervisors on the Consideration dimension of leadership behavior as a function of sex or

ethnic group, or combinations thereof, of the superior Initiation of Structure. There were no significant differences between sexes for whites, but black similar supervisors were rated significantly lower than black male supervisors on Initiation of Structure (t = 2.51, p < .05). White and black male supervisors did not six significantly differ in ratings received. White female supervisors were rated significantly than were black female, supervisors on Initiation of Structure (t = 2.59, p < .05).



INTERRELATIONSHIPS OF SELECTED FORMS

Conceptually, several of the scales administered as part of Session II are related to one another. To determine the strength of the relationships among these scales, a Pearson product moment correlation was computed. The four scales selected for inclusion were:

(a) the Satisfaction With Supervision area from the Job Description Index, (b) the Consideration dimension, (c) the Initiation of Structure dimension, and (d) the Least Preferred Co-Worker scale. Scales (b) and (c) were the two component parts of the Assessment of Supervisory Influences form. Results of the tests are presented in Table 18.

Table 18

Intercorrelations Among Scales Regarding Supervisors, Session II

s(N = 123)

	Scale	٠ (۱)	(2)	(3)	(4)
(1) (2)	Satisfaction With Supervisors Consideration	,	.60***	.41***	.13 .10
(3) (4)	Initiation of Structure Least Preferred Co-Worker ^a		•		396

001>م***

The observed relationships between the Satisfaction With Supervision scale and both the Consideration and Initiation of Structure scales were interesting. The results suggest that a substantial portion of the variance associated with the Satisfaction With Supervision scale may derive from the supervisor's Consideration type of activities.

The findings are essentially in agreement with those of Nealey and Blood (1967) who found that Satisfaction With Supervision correlated .56 with Initiating Structure and .79 with Consideration for first-level supervisors. However, the relationship observed between the Initiating Structure and Consideration scales is substantially lower than that reported by Nealey and Blood for first-level supervisors (.44 vs. .70).

SUPERVISOR'S RATING FORM

In the following three sections, results are presented for (a) comparisons of supervisor ratings of subordinates as a function of the supervisor's score on the Inventory for Supervisors (Least Preferred Co-Worker Scale), Appendix R; (b) a comparison of the ratings of subordinates as a function of sex and ethnic group of the supervisor, Appendix P; (c) a comparison of the ratings assigned the PSC enrollee subordinates and the average non-PSC subordinate as a function of the supervisor's sex and ethnic group, Appendix Q. All ratings of the subordinates were obtained through use of the Supervisor's Rating Form in which the subordinate was assessed on five dimensions: performance, adjustment, motivation, stability, and potential. Means, standard deviations, and t tests are presented in the appendices indicated above. For all instances in which a supervisor had multiple PSC enrollee subordinates, an average rating was computed and used in all analyses.

^aCorrelations involving this scale should be interpreted with reservations, as the LPC score of each supervisor was included for each of the subordinates.

Comparisons of Supervisor's Ratings of Subordinates as a Function of LPC Score

Scores obtained by supervisors on the LPC scale ranged from the minimum possible score of 16 to the maximum possible score of 128. The mean of the distribution was 66.3, with a standard deviation of 25.1. The group was split at the median, 66 had scores of 65 or less, and 67 had scores of 66 or greater. For purposes of analysis, these groups were considered to be Low LPC and High LPC, respectively. Distribution of supervisors by LPC score, sex, and ethnic group is shown in Table 19.

.. Table 19
Distribution of Supervisors on the Basis of LPC Score, Ethnic Group, and Sexa

LPC -		White ,	, BI	ack
	Male	.§ Female	Male	Female .
Low'-,-	21	17	¥ 11	16
High	25	. 14	5	13

^aInsufficient information was available for classification of 15 supervisors.

Supervisors in the LowLPC group were found to have an average of 1.7 PSC-subordinates, while the High LPC group had an average of 1.2 subordinates. There were no significant differences between ratings of PSC subordinates by supervisors on any of the five rating scales as a function of the supervisor's LPC score.

Comparisons of Supervisor's Ratings of Subordinates as a Function of Sex and Ethnic Group of the Supervisor

There were no significant differences in the ratings of PSC subordinates on any of the five rating scales as a function of either sex or ethnic group of the supervisor.

Comparisons of Supervisor's Ratings of PSC Subordinates and the Average Non-PSC Subordinate as a Function of Sex and Ethnic Group of Supervisor

Summaries of the mean ratings given the PSC subordinates and the average non-PSC subordinate are presented in Table 20 for each rating scale. There were no significant differences between the PSC and non-PSC ratings as a function of either sex or ethnic group of the supervisor, nor were there significant differences when all supervisor classifications were collapsed.

Comparison of Supervisor's Mean Ratings of Non-PSC and PSC Subordinates

Subordinate Classification	, ,	³ Suboi	dinate Rating	Scale	_
	1	2	, 3	4	5'
Non-PSC	;19.9	20.6	20.8 -	16.8	18.4
PSC"	19.0	21.3	20.8	16.5	17.9



SUPERVISOR'S RATINGS AND INDIVIDUAL WORKER RESPONSES

One major focus of this study was to identify factors that have relevance for continued and successful employment. For that purpose, a performance measure of some kind would have been desirable as a criterion. In the present study, situational constraints dictated that supervisors' ratings substitute for performance criteria. In the following three sections, the relationships between the supervisory ratings given each worker and (a) individual difference scores between sessions on each value category, (b) individual scores on the psychological tests, and (c) individual scores for each area of the JDI are presented.

Value Category Difference Scores and Supervisory Ratings

The difference between mean scores for each value category over time (Session II score - Session I score) for each subject was determined. These difference scores were then related to the supervisor's rating of that individual on each of the five subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form, using Pearson product moment correlations. The results are presented in Tables 21 and 22. Only two subject subgroupings contained a sufficient number of individuals within each response format to yield a correlation coefficient of acceptable reliability—the white male and the black female groups. Three correlation coefficients are presented in each cell, one for each of the following: white males (WM), black females (BF), and all subjects combined (Σ) within that response format.

Several results were noteworthy within each of the response conditions, even though the correspondence of significant relations between response conditions was low. The forced-choice results are presented only for comparison purposes, as the previously

mentioned reliability level makes any interpretation dubious.

Likert-Type Response Condition. The negative relation between supervisor's ratings of worker performance and Extrinsic Benefits (r = -.26, p < .05) suggests that those individuals attaching lesser value to these goals in Session II were seen by their supervisors as better performers. The second value category that bore a significant relation to rated performance of the worker was Gratification Demands. For both the black female group (r = .49, p < .01) and all subjects combined (r = .34, p < .01), a significant positive relationship was observed between ratings of performance and increased value placed on Gratification Demands. These items reflect the instrumentality of work for obtaining desired non-work goals. Increased evaluation of these goals was also significantly related to the other four subscales in the Supervisory Rating Form.

For three subscales, Adjustment, Motivation, and Potential, the relationships were significant for all three subject groupings. For the remaining subscale, Stability, the relationship was significant for black females (r = .41, p < .05) and for all subjects combined (r = .31, p < .05). Increased Session II evaluation of Value Category V was associated with the combined enrollees receiving higher ratings of Adjustment (r = .29, 1)

p < .05).

There was a significant positive relationship between the rating of Adjustment and increased evaluation of Value Category III for all subjects combined (r=.41, p<.01). For black females only, increased Session II evaluation of Value Category III also correlated positively with rated employee potential (r=.44, p<.05). The only two nonsignificant relationships between evaluation changes of Value Category III and supervisory ratings of employees occurred in the white male group. While the correlations were acceptable in magnitude, a large correlation was needed to achieve statistical significance because of the small number of individuals in this group (N=15).

Changes in evaluation of Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers involved two significant relationships, both with the black female subgroup. For ratings of worker



Table 21 Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Value Category Difference Score: Likert-Type Response Condition

	Maria Cindani		.,,	. :	Super	visor's Rating	Scale -	
	Value Category	Grouping	df	Performance	Adjustment	Motivation Stability		Potential
ı	Extrinsic Benefits	* WM	15		04	.05	- <u>.</u> 04	11
	•	BF	27	14	19	–.1 4	26 °	04
٠.		\cdot,Σ	[′] 63	26*	06	- .15	16	06
П	Intrinsic Benefits	WM	15	32	11	17	11 ·	03
•	•	BF \	27	.35	.22	.12	.26 ·	.31
	,	· Σ	63 .	.03	.07	12 [′]	′• .Ó1	.03
Ш	Gratification Demands	¢ WM	15	.28	.73**	.49*	² .47	.49*·
***	Gratimoation Demanus	BF	27	.20 .49**	.73 <u>.</u> .56** ,	.49 .56**		.49
		, Σ.	63	.34**	.50 , .41 **	.50 .25*	,41*	.44 .29*
	•	A .	03	,3 4	.41 4	.25	.31*	.29
IV	Interpersonal Relations	ЙM	15	18	·13	.00	04	• '15
	With Co-Workers	BF·	27.	.26	.38*	.09	.23	.58**
		Σ	63	.12	.21	08 .	08	.17
Ù	Interpersonal Relations	wm	15	. –. 19	.04	.20	.16	02
•	With Supervisor	,BF '	27	.32	.35	10	01 ·	.38*
	The separate of	Σ	63	.06	·.29*	02	<u>.</u> δ3	.06
Vł	Interpersonal Relations	WM	15	15	.39	.32	.03	.04
	With Family	BF.	27	.22	.25	.08	10	.19
•	7 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Σ	63	.08	.20	09	02	.09
VII	Interpersonal Relations	WM	15	03	.09	.33 *	03	.16
	With Friends	BF	27	02	.23	04	−.25 →	~.18́
		Σ	63	.08	.12	00	.01	.20
/111	Developmental Needs	· WM _	15	- .32	.25	.00	.04	02
-		BF	27	.00	.26	.21 ·	- .05	.01
•	,	Σ	63	10	.17	10	−. 06· '	04

^{*}ρ < .05; **p < .01; WM, White Male; BF, Black Female; Σ, All Subjects.

Adjustment and Potential, a significant positive relationship was found with increased evaluation of the goals within this value category (r = .38, p < .05; r = .58, p < .01, respectively).

The only other value category involved in a significant relationship with a supervisory rating scale was Value Category V (Interpersonal Relations With the Supervisor).

On the whole, Value Category III seems more predictive of employee retention and potential for upward movement, as reflected by supervisory ratings. In the Likerttype response condition only, increased evaluation in Session II of this value category was



, Table 22

Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Value Category Difference Score: Forced-Choice Response Condition

		,		Super	visor's Rating	Scale :	
Value Category	Grouping	-df -	Performance	Adjustment	Motivation	Stability	Potential
Extrinsic Bénefits	WM	29 •	.26	24	.05	.21	.04
	BF	41	. – 13	15	19 .	–.13	. <i>∸.</i> 16 .
	Σ	83	, .	51**	-31	03	–.07
II Intrinsic Benefits	· WM	29.	.18	.29	45*	.24	.39*
	.BF	. 41	29	.29	.32*	:33*	.26
,	Σ	83	.20	.25*	.23* .	.18	.23*
III Gratification Demands	WM	29		22	42*	13	, . 21
· Gratinoation Demands	. 8F	41	13 11	.15	<i></i> 12 ⋅	13 .14	.08
	Σ.	83	:06	.02	09	09	.00
IV Interpersonal Relations	WM .	29	·,06 .	03	13 ·	.Ó3	.08
, With Co-Workers	BF `	41	29	37 *	30	38*``	' –:38* ·
().i.a. oo iişikolo (· Σ	83	18	25*	21,*	18	21
V. Interpersonal Relations	WM	29.	27	03	.14	30	.05
With Supervisor	BF	. 41 .	. 4.14	16	- .14	←.18	15
	Σ	83	19	0 9	03	- 19	09 ·
VI Interpersonal Relations	WM	. 29	04	16 ·	- 08	23	- .05
With Family	. 8F ·	41	.19	.10	.08	.05	·02 ·
	Σ	83	 .07	05	-,.04 °	<u> </u>	- 05 · ·
VII Interpersonal Relations	. WM	. 29	.04	-,22 .	.10	.28	.17
With Friends	BF '	41	· .10 ·	.05	.15	05	.15
	Σ	83	.06	.00	.13	.: 41	* .17 * ;
/JII Developmental Needs	' WM -	. 29	03, ´.	24	.02	11	11
•	8F	•41	.25	21	.21	.16	.07
••	${}_{\Sigma}$.	83	.12	. 06	· .13 ` `	.03	08

[•] p < .05; •• p < .01; WM, White Male; BF, Black Female; Σ . All Subjects.

positively related to good ratings by supervisors on all five subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form. However, this interpretation should be qualified by noting a possible "halo effect." The rating given a worker on one subscale is likely to affect the ratings given on the remainder of the subscales.

Forced-Choice Response Condition. There were three significant results common to both response conditions, however, the direction of the relationship was reversed from one response condition to the other. This finding emphasized the difficulty encountefed throughout this section in conceptually explaining the results observed in the forced-choice condition. In this section, the low reliability of difference scores, together with



the low forced-choice value category reliabilities, makes the problem even more difficult. For these reasons, no further attempts will be made to explain the forced choice results.

Psychological Test Scores and Supervisory Ratings

The scores given each individual on each of the psychological tests for Session II were correlated with scores on the five subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form. The sample in the Likert-type response condition was slightly smaller, as complete scores were not available for all subjects. The total number of enrollees having all necessary scores was 97. This, analysis was conducted for the Likert-type response condition only. The results of the analysis are presented in Table 23.

Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Psychological Test Score: Likert-Type Response Condition
(N = 107)

		Super	visor's Rating	Scale	•
Psychological Test	Performance	Adjustment	Motivation	Stability	Potential
Cynical Distrust of People	16	01	~. 05.	<i></i> 19	12
Cynical Distrust of Organizations	.17	.02	, ≥ ,02	_ .10	11
Weak Self-Regard	.17 .	ુ⊹ .13 ં	<u>`</u> –:12 ;	31 **	24*
Achievement Motivation	- .07	.08	<i>∸</i> .01	.01	+.15 •
Time Sense	22*	.28**	.31**	.41**	15
Protestant Ethic	.14	.26**	16 v	.20	03
Expectation of Success	- .02	.11	.11	.18	ر 01. ، ،
Powerlessness:	14 ·	09	06	−. 13́	21
Meaninglessness	25°	19 ·	.19	32**	22 *
Normiessness	14	10	· – .16	∖ −.19	- .14
Value Isolation	:30	29 ,	29	36	20
Self-Estrangement	15	12.	14	23*	16
Work Demands	.06	· .05	۰7,0	07	14
Orientation Toward Work	05	<u>.</u> —.10	05	06	.02

^{°° &}gt; 05; •• p < .01

Only one of the psychological tests was appreciably related to the supervisory ratings. Time Sense was found to be significantly and positively related to the subscales rating the workers' Performance (r = .22, p < .05), Adjustment (r = .28, p < .01), Motivation (r = .31, p < .01), and Stability (r = .41, p < .01).

Four other psychological tests—Protestant Ethic, Weak Self-Regard, Meaninglessness, and Self-Estrangement—were related to one or more of the supervisory rating subscales. The Protestant Ethic test was positively related to the subscale assessing worker Adjustment (r = .26, p < .01). Meaninglessness was negatively related to rated Performance of the worker (r = -.25, p < .05). Meaninglessness, Self-Estrangement, and Weak Self-Regard were all significantly associated with rated Statility of the worker (respectively, r = -.32, p < .01; r = -.23, p < .05; r = -.31, p < .01).

As mentioned earlier, one interpretation of the observed pattern of relationships between supervisory ratings and difference scores for Value Category III involved a rating halo. To further assess this effect, the subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form were



included in a correlation matrix. The results of this analysis are presented in Table 24. As shown, ratings given on one subscale were highly related to ratings given on any other subscale.

Table 24

Intercorrelations Among Subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form: Likert-Type Response Condition (N = 97)

S	upervisor's Rating Form Subscale	(1)	(2) •	(3)	. (4)	(5)
(1)	Penformance	_	.49**	.58**	·.67**	.76** .49**
(2)	Adjustment •	•		.69**	.57**	.49**
(3)	Motivation				.60**	.57**
(4)	Stability .	* ·!				.73**
(5)	Potential :					,

^{**}p<.01.

Job Description Index Scores and Supervisory Ratings

Correlations between each of the five job areas tapped by the JDI and the five supervisory subscales were computed for the Likert type response condition data obtained from Session II. The results of this analysis are shown in Table 25.

Table 25

Correlations for Each Subscale of the Supervisor's Rating Form and Job Description Index Area Score: Likert-Type Response Condition (N = 107)

	3	Supervisor's Rating Scale							
JDI Area	Performance	Adjustment	, Motivation	Stability '	Potential				
Satisfaction With Work	.09	`.19	.21*	,26**	.ì9				
Satisfaction With Supervision	.15	.24*	.23* ′	.25 *	.14				
Satisfaction With Pay	.07	05 ·	01	.13	03				
Satisfaction With Promotions	.12	1.14	.02	.07	02				
Satisfaction With Co-Workers	02_	.13 · .	.02	.06、	01·				

^{*}p < .05: **p < .01.

The JDI area which significantly related to the most supervisory subscales was that assessing satisfaction with supervision. This JDI area was positively related to ratings of the workers' Adjustment (r = .24, p < .05), Motivation (r = .23, p < .05), and Stability (r = .25, p < .05). Only one other JDI area was significantly related to supervisory ratings, that tapping the individual's satisfaction with the work. Scores on this JDI area were significantly related to the supervisory subscales measuring Motivation (r = .21, p < .05) and Stability (r = .26, p < .01).

While several significant correlations were reported in the preceding three sections, the overall picture is one reflecting a relatively low relationship between supervisory ratings of a subordinate and the subordinate's responses in a number of areas.

FACTOR ANALYSIS

Findings reported in this section are based on the subjects participating in both data collection sessions. The data input to the factor analysis derived from Session II. There were 107 subjects in the Likert-type condition and 104 subjects in the forced choice condition.

The pattern of findings obtained to this point in the analysis suggested that the logically derived goal categories probably should be subjected to empirical validation. Consequently, a principal components factor analysis, with varimax rotation, was performed on the 32 goals within each response condition. The findings are presented in Table 26.

Table 26

Factor Loadings of Each Goal for Both Likert-Type and Forced-Choice Data

	' 1	·					`_`					
		Likert-Type,				Forced-Choice						
Goal		Factor				Factor						
•	•	1	н	IŢI	ıv	v.	ı	'n	111	ιΫ	V	
Perce	ent of Variance	.27	.08	.07	.06	.05	.13	.11	.08	.07	.06	
Goal	•		•				_		- L	_		
, 1	. Good pay			,41 [']		.49	•	.72				
	2. Good working conditions, like											
•	air conditioning		,	•						•		
٠ ٠	3. A good vacation each year	٠.		.70	.45		.61					
	A good retirement plan			.67					.53	`		
•	5. Being able to work close to home	.41			.41		•	.50	^,	•	•	
	6. A good hospitalization plan.	.53		.53	Ŷ		.70		•			
-	7. A plan to pay doctor's bills	2		.71			.45	,\$.42	
	Being able to keep the job as long	,		•						•		
•	as you want	.79		*							•	
(9. Being able to take pride in what					~		.,	•	•		
•	you'do •	.52				.45	.73					
10		•										
•	always wanted to do		•			.48	, .					
` 1·	1. Knowing there is a good chance of		• .				•	•				
•	being promoted	•		.5;2					.75			
1:						.75	.46	.41		, •	•	
1:	_ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			•		48		••	,	.43		
	4. Being able to buy a lot of new things				.71		.48	4			ν'	
	5. Being able to buy things I have	,	•									
•	always wanted		•		.74				.60	-	ı	
10	6. Being able to buy things I need	.45			.54		•		.58			
	7. Being able to work with people		•									
•	who think my work is good	.48	.47			,		.63				
.—-		- (Co	ntinue	d) —								

Factor Loadings^a of Each Goal for Both Likert-Type and Forced-Choice Data

	·	,	Likert-Type "					Forced-Choice				
	Goal		Factor			•	,	r				
		·	_H_	111	ıv	V	ı	11	1111	iv	Ŋ	
18.	Being able to work with people				•	٠			•	~, ·;	:	
	who like me		.63.			•		.54		•	PF.	
19.	Being able to work with people who								•	. •		
	are friendly		.49	.54	_	•		.45		•		
20.	Being able to talk and have fun with		•				•	· •	_	. •	٠,	
	the other people working there	•	.64					•			٠ ,	
21.	Being able to work with people who										• "	
	think as much of me as my friends do		.77								.63	
22.	A supervisor who is friendly		.49					.52		•		
23.	A supervisor who treats everyone											
	fairly	.53		•					.53			
24.	A supervisor who tells you when you		٣							•	•	
	have done a good job on something	.69										
25.	A supervisor who helps when you	•										
	need help			^						.91 '	• •	
26.	A supervisor who is willing to help	٠,					٠ ٢		-	,		
	-you with your off-the-job problems		.59					.63				
27.	Knowing your family is proud of				•	•				-		
	the work you do	.43				, -	51	. `		٠.		
28.	Knowing your friends respect you				-	•			4			
•	for the work you do		.46			1	•			.91		
29.	Having a job that is interesting to								٠		•	
	your friends		.57		.49		.42	.41		.49		
- 30.	Being something you can talk to											
	your friends about after work		.63								.56	
31.	Being able to learn new things that									•		
	will help you get a better job later	.66							.41		•	
32.	Being able to learn to do something		,			•						
	that is really hard	.64 ~			•			•			76	

a.40 or greater.

Five factors were identified for each response condition. In the Likert-type condition, these factors accounted for 53% of the variance within the matrix. In the forced-choice condition, they accounted for 46% of the variance. Table 26 shows loadings of the various goals on each of the five factors, together with the percentage of variance accounted for by each factor. Only loadings greater than 40 are shown.

Likert-Type Response Condition

Examination of the items loading on the five factors within the Likert response condition indicated a reasonably consistent picture.



The items loading on Factor I-Security through Job Accomplishment-are listed.

Item No.	Item Content	Factor Loading
' 8	Being able to keep the job as long as you want	.79
24	A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something	.69
31	Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later	.66
32	Being able to learn to do something that is really hard	64
-23	A supervisor who treats everyone-fairly	.53
· 6	A good hospitalization plan	.53
9 .*	Being able to take pride in what you do	:52

The large percentage of variance accounted for by this factor (27%) might be taken to suggest a generalized test response interpretation, however, the remarkable interpretability of the items loading higher than 50 indicates substantive meaning. The item with the highest loading suggests a security connotation for this factor. The second, third, and fourth items suggest rewards through the work itself, an achievement or motivation orientation similar to the context of Herzberg's motivator factor. This interpretation seems to be supported by the fifth item, if one assumes that fairness is defined in terms of personal worth through job productivity. The sixth item does not seem consistent with the previous five. However, the seventh certainly is.

Six of these seven items suggest that the first factor should be interpreted as indicating a desire for job security through achievement or accomplishment on the job. It is suggestive of a personal orientation based on the belief that an individual who performs well on his job and makes himself valuable to his employing agency will thereby have job security. The security envisioned by the worker involved several work dimensions, as indicated by the items loading on this factor. Items five and seven are descriptive of a job that would be respected by others. Additionally, it would not be likely that anyone doing such work would be laid off or terminated. Taken together, these items suggest a situation in which the lower-level needs of Maslow's hierarchy are satisfied. This factor, consequently, has been named Security Through Job Accomplishment.

The items loading on Factor II-Social Interaction Orientation-are:

Item No.	Item Content	Factor Loading
21.	Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do	77
- 20 ´	Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there	.64
ı 3 [†] 0	Being something you can talk to your friends about after work	.63
18	Being able to work with people who like me	63
26	A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems	.59
29	Having a job that is interesting to your friends	57

The variance (8%) accounted for by this factor is considerably lower than was the case, for Factor I. The items nonetheless appear consistent, and reflect a need for social interaction both within the context of the job and off the job. This factor consequently has been labeled Social Interaction Orientation.

The items loading on Factor III-Materialistic Orientation-are listed:

Item No.	Item Content	Factor Loading
7	A plan to pay doctors' bills	:71 .
3	A good vacation each year	.70
, 4	A good refirement plan	.67
19	Being able to work with people who are friendly	.54
.6	A good hospitalization plan	,53
11	Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted	.52

The variance (7%) accounted for by the factor was similar to Factor II. The factor seems readily interpretable: Four of the first five items reflect concern with fringe benefits. This suggests a materialistic orientation toward the job, with a higher valuation of the job as it is worth more in a materialistic sense. (This interpretation is supported by the fact that good pay also loaded on this factor, though its loading of .41 was too low for it to be used as a primary basis for factor interpretation.) The remarkable consistency of fringe benefit loading, together with the absence of loadings reflecting content of the work itself suggests that this factor reflects materialistic, as opposed to intrinsic, needs. It consequently has been labeled Materialistic Orientation.

The items loading on Factor IV-Economic Instrumentality-are listed:

Item No.	Item Content	•	Factor Loadin	•
15	Being able to buy things I have always wanted.		74	
14	Being able to buy a lot of new things		.7.1	
· 16 ·	Being able to buy things I need	٠	.54	

This factor accounted for 6% of the variance. The three items loading higher than .5 on this factor are remarkably consistent in content; the factor has been labeled Economic Instrumentality.

The items loading on Factor V-Esteem Satisfaction Through Work-are:

Item No.	Item Content	Factor Loading
12.	Feeling proud of your job	.75
1	Good pay	.49
.10 /	Being able to do the type of work you always wanted to do	-, .48
9.	Being able to take pride in what you do	,45
13	A lot of time off without losing pay	48

- Items with loadings lower than .50 were listed for Factor V in order to facilitate interpretation. This factor accounted for 5% of the variance in the matrix. With the



exception of Item 1, Good Pay, the items loading positively reflect a self-actualization or esteem theme, with surprising clarity. The item loading negatively, as well as Good Pay, probably suggests—as noted by Jacobs (1970)—that for workers in the lower end of the socioeconomic scale, pay may have much more instrumentality for esteem satisfaction than is true for workers at higher socioeconomic status levels. Given this, Factor V is strongly suggestive of Esteem Satisfaction Through Work, and, consequently, this label has been applied to this factor. This factor reflects an underlying motivation by the worker to satisfy the highest level of need in Maslow's hierarchy of needs.

Factors I and V are interpreted as motivational in nature, with the end-state being different for each. These two factors relate most to the intrinsic aspects of the job, while Factors II-IV are most heavily weighted by extrinsic facets of the job.

Forced-Choice Response Condition

Table 26 also shows item loadings on the five factors extracted in the forced-choice response condition. As with the factor loadings in the Likert-type condition, the items loading on the forced-choice factors were inspected to develop a basis for factor interpretation. This led to very unsatisfying results. There were three problems. First, the items with high loadings did not form consistent pictures, as was the case with the Likert-type factors. Second, the number of goals loading on each factor was, on the average, low. Third, the reliabilities (see Table 3) of the goal statements in this condition were generally lower. All these observations indicate that there probably was insufficient reliable variance within the forced-choice correlation matrix to provide for the reliable identification of factors. This suggests that an effort to interpret the forced-choice response factors might be misleading. For this reason, no effort at interpretation has been made.

Analysis of Factor Scores

After rotated factors were identified, factor scores were computed for each of the individuals within the total sample, for each of the factors, and for each of the response conditions. (This analysis was conducted for the forced-choice response condition as a cross-check on the low reliability interpretation of the item loadings noted in that set of rotated factors.) These factor scores were then correlated with the psychological tests, and with the JDI area scores. The results are shown in Table 27. The relationships shown in this table serve as a vehicle for content validation of the factors and the interpretations given them earlier.

Factor I was labeled Security Through Job Accomplishment. This label suggests a belief that an individual becomes of value to his employer through the excellence of his job performance, thereby attaining job securit. The pattern of correlations of the psychological tests with Factor I tends to support this interpretation. While the correlations are generally low, significant positive relationships were found with tests thought to measure Protestant Ethic values and an Expectation of Success Through Accomplishment. Significant negative correlations were found between Factor I, on the one hand, and Powerlessness, Normlessness, and Cynical Distrust of People, on the other. While it should be reemphasized that these correlations are generally low, the pattern of relationships is nonetheless quite supportive of the interpretation given Factor I.

The extent of support for the interpretation given Factor II is, however, not as great. Factor II has been interpreted as a social orientation. Three psychological tests correlated significantly with Factor II. These were Achievement Motivation, Normlessness, and Value Isolation (negative). Examination of the item contents of these tests suggests how this pattern of correlations could have occurred. The measure of Achievement Motivation is phrased in terms of respect for someone who gets ahead. It is reaconable.





Table 27 Correlations of Factor Scores With Psychological Tests and Job Description Index Areas

		£	ikert-Typ	é		Forced-Choice						
Item "			Factor					Factor	•	•_		
,	-	11	111	2	٧	ł	11		ý	v		
Psychological Test						, •		,				
Cynical Distrust of	\				3,		1			7		
People .	- .25*	12	8 0 .	.10	.08	.14	01 ·	.16	05	05		
Cynical Distrust of			*			1			. •			
Organizations	04	09	.28**	.19	.10	.02	∸.14	.03	.00	07		
Weak Self-Regard	14	.14	01	.11	29**	.19	.14	25*ر	09	.10		
. Achievement Moti-	•							•		-		
vation	.11	.28**	.13	.15	.06	12	06	22 *	— 05	21 [*]		
Time Sense	.08	.08	02	18	.26**	13	21 *	16	.16	08		
Protestant Ethic	►.21*	.13	10	13	.19	08	.02	10	06	05		
* Expectation of Success	.25*	.03	.05	.12	.12	07	.01	01	09	02 ·		
Powerlessness	20 *	−.Õ1	.14	.02	10	.11	.13	.01	19	01		
Meaninglessness.	15 .	.03	.05	.20*	27 **	.17	.13	.10	−.20 *	.16		
Normlessness	22 *	.22*	04	.27**	20 *	<u>`11</u>	.22*	.06	02	.20*		
Value Isolation .	12	20 [*]	12	.20*	<i>−</i> .22*	.34 * *	.03	.27**	10	.15		
Self-estrangement	16°	16	08	01	19	.22*	.01	.16	09	.10		
Work Demands	.04	.17	.18	.04	.07	.07	.12	17	10	.19		
. Orientation Toward						*						
, ' Work	09	12	<u>,'</u> .19	.24*	- .10	15.	.02	.15	.05	09		
JDI Areas	•				1		•					
Satisfaction With Work	.10 [,]	.16	.09	16	.27**	11	.19	01	.02	05		
Satisfaction With							•					
Supervision	.04 '	Q2	.06	.03	.10	21 [*]	03	- 04	03	08		
Satisfaction With Pay	10	.20*	17	08 .	.07	.01	.18	.03	.07′	05		
Satisfaction With,	.*		_		*				12.			
Promotions	.11	.25*	20 *	.02	.20*	- .01	.19	-بر03	· <u>-</u> .04 .	12		
'Şatisfaction With			,					1				
Co-Workers	.18	.17	01	11	.15	06	.00	1 3	.06	- .19		

ρ < .05; ** ρ < .01.

that this could be positively correlated with social orientation. The correlation with Value Isolation is also reasonable. It is a measure of alienation from the people the respondent works with; someone with a social orientation should not feel alienation. Conflict does occur in that Normlessness (a feeling that it is not necessary to stick by the rules) correlates positively with this factor. This is the only case in which its correlation is not the same sign as Value Isolation. While a case could be made for this, it is purely an ad hoc explanation.

One test correlated significantly with Factor III. The items in this test, Cynical Distrust of Organizations, reflect a basic apprehension of exploitation by "big business."



It seems quite reasonable that a materialistic orientation would be coupled with this apprehension, and with the dissatisfaction with promotions found in the JDI.

Several tests correlated with Factor IV. Three of these reflect the anomie thought to characterize the disadvantaged. The fourth reflects a desire for structured work as opposed to change. These also are thought to be reasonable relationships, in that Factor IV itself, seeing the job in terms of its economic instrumentality, probably also is suggestive of disadvantagement.

Several significant relationships were also found with Factor V. Given the interpretation of that factor as self-esteem through work, the pattern of relationships with the psychological tests is quite consistent. First, Weak Self-Regard is negatively related to Factor V at the .01 level. Time Sense is positively related at the same level. Meaning-lessness, Normlessness, and Value Isolation are all negatively related, the first at the .01 level. Finally, the JDI Satisfaction With Work scale was positively correlated at the .01 level with this factor.

The strength of association between scores on each of the five identified factors and the five subscales of the Supervisor's Rating Form was assessed by means of Pearson product moment correlations. There were no significant relationships observed between these two variables.

Examination of Table 27 also supports the earlier decision not to attempt interpretation of the forced-choice response condition factors. Of the 95 correlations for each response condition shown in this Table, 23 were significant for the Likert-type factors. Only 11 were significant for the forced-choice response condition. This is a reasonable outcome of the lower observed reliabilities in the first forced-choice condition, and confirms the conclusion that the forced-choice factors probably are not sufficiently reliable to be interpreted.

Chapter 4

DISGUSSION .

FINDINGS AND IMPLICATIONS

A necessarily initial objective of this project, the development of methodology for the measurement of work goals and expectations of PSC enrollees, was substantially achieved. The differences cited between response conditions with respect to observed significant relationships showed that the response formats either (a) were not tapping the same dimensions, or (b) were not equally powerful in discriminating between subjects. The results from one response condition were not comparable to those from the other response condition. The fact that the first section of the questionnaire (goals rating) included the same items for both response formats indicated that the forced-choice methodology was probably responsible for the noncomparable results. As previously noted, the forced-choice condition involved an incomplete paired-comparison of all the goals, because of the length of the questionnaire that would have been necessary for a complete paired-comparison.

This lack of comparability of results between response conditions, together with the low reliability coefficients associated with the questionnaire in the forced-choice format, is the basis for concluding that the forced-choice methodology, coupled with an incomplete paired-comparison, is not as powerful as the Likert-type response condition. The reliability coefficients associated with most sections of the Likert-type response format were themselves marginal in size. It would seem, then, that the Likert-type questionnaire is the preferred form for eliciting responses to the content items used in this project.

An additional basis for such an inference concerns the comparisons between response conditions of tests that were administered in *identical* forms (the JDI and the Orientation Toward Work test). While the differences between reliability coefficients for each response condition varied in magnitude, one was very large (.33); others were in the .09 to .10 range. Taken together, these differences suggest a differential impact of the questionnaire on the enrollees as a function of the type of response condition. Therefore, only results obtained through use of the Likert-type format will be considered in this section.

Other objectives of this project were (a) to measure the world-of-work values of PSC entrants, and changes in them as a function of experience with the work environment, and (b) to establish the relation between these values (and changes in them) and attainment of desired objectives of the PSC Program.

In exploring the relation between changes in the entrants' world of work values and attainment of PSC Program objectives, data reflecting the current employment status of participating entry-level enrollees were collected. Continued participation in, or successful completion of, the PSC Program was to be related to the measured world-of-work values of each enrollee. Originally, a significant attrition rate had been anticipated. However, when the termination rate of entry-level enrollees from Session I to Session II was determined, it was found to be relatively low. For the Washington, D.C. area sample, the retention rate was 80%, which compares favorably with retention rates reported for several similar programs conducted by private industry. Ford Motor Company reported retention rates of 78 and 79% for two groups of ex-hard-core unemployed (Johnson, 1969).



Plans for determining the retention rate for the PSC Program called for the use of data recorded on SF 163, a standard form used to collect biographical information on PSC enrollees. These data would be used to identify those enrollees successfully completing the program, and the reasons for not completing the program could be specified. Current status information was obtained for only 60 of the subjects; data were not available for 130 of the enrollees participating in both sessions. Fifty-one of the 60 had successfully completed the program, the other nine having dropped out prior to completion. Because of the lack of data, further analyses could not be performed.

Results of the first data collection session had indicated that a relatively low rate of attrition was likely. The world-of-work values and the perceptions of the entry-level enrollees were generally the same as those characterizing both upgrade and equivalent personnel. As the upgrade personnel had a history of steady employment and were aspiring to upward mobility, this lack of difference had several implications for inferences and expectations of the entry-level group. Initially, it had been expected that those entrants who remained in the program would experience organizational socialization over time, to the extent that, at the end of some time frame (possibly one year), their values and perceptions would be similar to those characterizing employees having greater seniority. Since there were few differences between the upgrade and entry-level groups, the organizational socialization that could occur over time was minimal.

While subjects in both groups, discriminated among the values and goals shown in the questionnaire, the most highly valued outcomes of work for both groups were perceived as Intrinsic Benefits and Developmental Needs. The items categorized into the Intrinsic Benefits area reflected "the work itself," in the Herzberg sense. Goals categorized as Developmental Needs, while similar, reflected achievement as opposed to the content of work. The least valued outcomes of work, for both groups, were Gratification Demands

and Interpersonal Relations With Friends.

Implications of these and other similarities were as follows:

(1) Since values rated highest reflected interest in the work and in further individual development, the enrollees would be motivated to perform well.

(2) Based on their interest in their jobs and the value placed on work, the

attrition rate would be low.

(3) Because of both the degree of socialization with respect to the "middleclass value system" with its emphasis on achievement, and the level of education and ability of most enrollees, underemployment was thought likely. Dissatisfaction with a job because it is perceived as less than desirable and lower than the job that could be performed well was considered probable in view of the entry-level jobs made available to

In summarizing the Session I results, it was found that the entry-level enrollees did the enrollees. not demonstrate many of the characteristics frequently associated with the "hard-core

unemployed" group.

Session II, conducted six months later, found some changes over time in the values and perceptions of the entry-level enrollees, A. Spearman rho was computed between the rankings given the eight value categories. The correlation was .90, indicating a very high degree of consistency over time in the values of these enrollees. One of the factors underlying this consistency may be the social desirability of such goals to participants within this contest.

Of the few changes observed in the enrollees over time, most could be interpreted as reflecting a realistic appraisal of the job and associated working conditions. This was more evident for the females than for the males, as the females appeared to have entered the program holding higher aspirations and expectations than did the males.

Both males and females expressed lower levels of trust in others and their motives in Session II than Session I. Males also reported more concern over inability to control the



outcome of their work; this may reflect the effect of working in a very large, primarily rule-bound organization. The males also rated the goal of Being Able to Take Pride in What You Do as less important than in Session I. To what extent this shift was related to the jobs held and/or to decreased salience of this need through partial satisfaction is undetermined.

The enrollees also placed lower values on several other goals: (a) Able to Work With People Who Think as Much of Me as My Friends Do, (b) Knowing Your Friends Respect You for the Work You Do, and (c) Able to Work With People Who Like Me. Decreased evaluation of these goals could be due to one or more of several reasons. Two possible reasons that have been considered are as follows:

(1) Decreased anxiety. The higher initial rating reflected the anxiety of the individual concerning his acceptance by co-workers. He anticipated difficulty in moving into the established work group, and was anxious concerning the success of his efforts. The lower Session II rating indicates that success was achieved and less anxiety is now experienced.

(2) Reappraisal of job requirements. The earlier ratings reflected those job aspects that were deemed necessary by persons with little job experience. Over time, the requirements for an acceptable job have changed. The individual has reappraised what is

seen as necessary for a "liked" job, and this is indicated by the changed scores.

It was previously mentioned that underemployment was likely, considering the entry-level jobs and the level of the entrants. The lesser value placed by males on Pride in Work and Promotions, as well as the females' expressed desire for a less structured,

routinized job seem relevant to such a consideration.

In general, the degree of value congruence between entry-level enrollees and those in the upgrade component of the PSC Program was very high. Part of the planned purpose of the PSC Program was that the entry-level enrollees be marginal or hard-core unemployed. This point will be dealt with later; for now, the group will be considered marginal workers.

The implications of this result, for the type of training program that should be used, are relatively straightforward. If differences in world-of-work values and commitment to work do exist between the marginal worker and employees with successful job histories, then a training program emphasizing a psychological approach (e.g., one of attitude change) might be more productive. However, if various barriers and situations (e.g., luck, according to Ferman [1970] would be one such factor) contribute to maintaining this marginal population, then a program focused more on social and institutional changes might be more effective.

As Gurin (1970) pointed out, an unfortunate tendency in the past has been to conceive of psychological and situational approaches as opposites. In his view, a training program for marginal or hard-core unemployed, focused on motivational and attitudinal problems to the exclusion of reality factors, is as much in error as those attempting to deal with the problems of poverty by assuming that changes in the opportunity structure and other institutional values will automatically eliminate any motivational problems.

The necessity for attention to the motivational and attitudinal problems of trainees is reflected in the conclusions reported by Kirchiner and Lucas (1972). These writers felt that "An obvious key to the hard-core problem, then, is motivation or lack of it." (p. 37). Findings of their report indicated that more of the older, less intelligent minority individuals stayed with the training program than those who were younger and better educated. Johnson (1969) also pointed out that men and women migrants to the North, of age 45 or over, are less likely than young blacks to turn down entry-level jobs that may appear to be dead-end. Johnson felt that, for the 45-and-over age group, the end objective is steady work at a fair salary.

Inferentially, conclusions and findings such as are presented here would indicate that many of the hard-core unemployed, especially the younger individuals, are aware of and have internalized many of the world-of-work values of the larger society. The aspirations of the larger society often have been internalized as well, frequently leading to unachievable ambition on the part of these younger individuals. Such individuals often look down on those jobs for which they are qualified, ignoring their lack of training for more marketable skills.

Inferences of this type would also pertain to the results of this project. The females had less prior work experience than the males and, generally, had relatively higher expectations regarding the entry-level jobs. As reflected in the JDF results, as well as those previously cited, there was more of a drop in job satisfaction between Session I and Session II for the females than for the males. This result could reflect disappointment of the aspirations and goals characteristic of the larger society, which had been internalized by the females.

objectives of the PSC Program, retention of a job or successful completion of the program are criteria, that would have been used had sufficient information on the enrollees been available. In the absence of such data, supervisors ratings on five different dimensions performance, adjustment, motivation, stability, and potential—were used as the criterion variables for the predictors of value changes over time, and the entry-level PSC enrollees were broken out in subgroupings on the basis of sex and ethnic group. Only two of the subgroupings (white males and black females) were of sufficient size for the resulting correlations to be of acceptable reliability.

The best single predictor of supervisory ratings was the value category of Gratification Demands. Increased ratings of this value category for Session II were positively associated with supervisory ratings on all five dimensions. Interestingly, three of the five goals within this value category are the same three goals that comprise the Economic Instrumentality factor, one of the factors identified through a factor analysis performed on all 32 goals.

One possible basis for the pervasive association between ratings of this value category and the supervisory ratings is as follows. The goals common to this value category and the identified factor pertain to buying, the purchasing power afforded by the job. To the extent that the enrollee sees the job as providing the means whereby desired ends can be attained, there should be increased motivation to retain the job. Upward mobility would be more salient for such an individual, as higher-level jobs provide increased instrumentality for obtaining goals. The worker, motivated to retain the present job and move upward, must ensure that favorable evaluations are provided by the supervisor. The more the employee convinces the supervisor of his job motivation and interest in good performance, the higher should be the ratings given the employee on all scales.

The consistent significant associations between ratings of Value Category III and the supervisory scales held for black females and all entry-level enrolleds combined. The relationship between two of the supervisory scales (Performance and Stability) were not significant for the white male group, probably because of the small group size (N = 15). Another possible basis for the pattern of relationships is that those individuals most interested in holding their jobs are simply more compliant, they try to please their supervisors. Still a third possibility is an artifact of measurement—the "halo effect" where multiple ratings of an object or person by a judge tend to be related by a "carry-over" of evaluation from one to another rating category.

. For the black female group, increased predictive efficiency of supervisory ratings would result from inclusion of the ratings of the value categories of Interpersonal

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

.7î

Relations With Co-Workers and Interpersonal Relations With Supervisors. Increased evaluation of these two categories was associated with two of the supervisory rating scales, Adjustment and Potential.

A significant negative relationship between increased evaluation of Extrinsic Benefits and rated performance of the worker was observed for all subjects combined. Possibly, concern for these goals could relate to some non-work related activity, such as meetings. If so, these work absences could result in the supervisor rating a subordinate lower. While the relationships between increased evaluation of this category and the remaining supervisory rating scales are not significant, they are all negative. This pattern might again reflect the "halo effect" discussed previously, rather than valid findings.

A conclusion concerning the supervisory ratings and the subordinates ratings of the value categories is that the use of two categories—(a) Extrinsic Benefits and (b) Gratification Demands-would be most effective for predicting supervisory ratings. For black females, increased predictive efficiency for ratings of Adjustment and Potential would be gained by including the value categories of (a) Interpersonal Relations With the Supervisor and (b) Interpersonal Relations With Co-Workers.

In relating scores on the psychological tests to the five supervisory subscales, one pattern was noted that involved rated stability of the worker. It correlated with scores on several psychological tests in the following manner: negatively with Weak Self-Regard, positively with Time Sense, negatively with Meaninglessness, and negatively with Self-Estrangement.

When the ratings given by supervisors to PSC enrollees on the five scales were compared with the ratings given the average non-PSC subordinate, there were no significant differences between the ratings given each type of subordinate.

The behavior of the supervisor has been found to have appreciable effect upon the worker and his behavior (e.g., Ronan, 1970a). The Job. Description Index area that related to the majority of the supervisory subscales was the Satisfaction With Supervision area. Scores on this job area were positively associated with ratings on the Supervisor's Rating Form subscales of Adjustment, Motivation, and Stability of the worker. The PSC enrollees rated the leadership behavior of their supervisor on the dimensions of Consideration and Initiation of Structure. Results indicated that blacks rated their supervisors lower in exhibiting Consideration behaviors than did whites. Black female supervisors were rated lowest on engaging in Initiation of Structure activities...

Johnson (1969) and Van Brunt (1972) report comments originating in the private sector concerning the impact of supervisory behavior and attitudes on the success of programs focused on the hard-core unemployed. The new trainee from the "hard-core" category is generally less than fully trusting of the motives and intentions of the employer. The trainee does a certain amount of "testing" in which he attempts to determine the employer's sincerity and interest. As the employer's representative, the first-line supervisor is in an especially visible and sensitive position. To the extent that he is able to understand the motivation underlying the "testing behavior" exhibited by the trainee, can avoid being adversely affected by different life-styles, and is concerned with communicating with the trainee, the likelihood that the trainee will respond in a positive fashion increases. Development of trust in the intentions of the employer and the supervisor is an important factor in the evolution of the trainee into a productive member of the labor force.

The decreased trust in others and their motives, on the part of both males and females in Session II, may reflect a need for additional first-line supervisory training.

One critical facet of the supervisor-subordinate relationship is communication/ perception. Since a significant percentage of those individuals classified as "hard-core unemployed" are black, differences in black-white perceptions, attitudes, and life styles



are of paramount importance in developing effective supervisory styles. The ethnic group effect upon supervisory ratings of Consideration and Initiation of Structure

reflects this need...

Using the Job Description Index (Smith, Kendall, and Hulin, 1969) as a measure of job satisfaction, Milutinovich (1971) compared the job satisfaction of both Negro and white blue- and white-collar employees under participative and authoritative supervisory styles. The results indicated that Negro employees, both blue and white-collar, have greater job satisfaction than do white blue-collar workers, but less than white white-collar employees, Employees expressed greater job satisfaction under participative than under authoritative supervisory style. Generally, ethnic group membership was found to influence job satisfaction only minimally.

... With respect to job satisfaction, King and Bass (1970) stated that the average black in industry feels a greater concern than the average white regarding perceived injustices. Since these included such things as rejection for jobs and opportunities for promotion, failure of the organization to satisfy these needs would be expected to result in lower job

satisfaction.

Slocum and Strawser (1972), who mailed Porter's (1961) need satisfaction questionnaire to black and other Certified Public Accountants, reported that black CPAs generally express a greater need deficiency than do other CPAs. All respondents indicated that the largest deficiencies occurred in the self-actualization and compensation need categories.

Studies such as the preceding, which are specifically focused on the variable of race, using a particular methodology or questionnaire, have not been sufficiently numerous to answer many relevant research questions especially with respect to the blue-collar, unskilled, and semiskilled positions. Triandis and Malpass (1971) concluded from a series of studies by Triandis, Feldman, and Harvey (1970, 1971a, 1971b) that "... there are

genuine racial differences in the perception, of the social environment."

One of the difficulties encountered in such comparative studies was illustrated in a report by Bloom and Barry (1967). From the results of a questionmaire administered to samples of blacks (in janitorial of unskilled and semiskilled jobs) and whites (primarily in maintenance positions at alf-skill levels), it was concluded that the blacks probably did not have the same perception of the questionnaire items as did the whites. While such a conclusion is in agreement with that reached by Triandis and Malpass (1971), it points up the necessity for additional basic research concerning ethnic group similarities and differences.

To what extent studies conducted in an academic environment can help satisfy this need is questionable. One such study, conducted by Richards and Jaffee (1972), was focused on the question of interracial differences that could occur when blacks were supervising whites. One finding reported by these researchers was that the race (black or white) affected the behavior of white subordinates. While the researchers felt that a possible difference between black and white supervisors was that black supervisors emitted "... fewer behaviors that related to being an effective supervisor," findings such as those of Lewit and Abner (1971) should be considered: These authors found significant black and white semantic differences with respect to several significant concepts. These differences were with respect to both an encoding task (ratings of concepts on semantic differential scales) and the decoding task (identifying the concept which had been encoded by another subject).

Findings and conclusions such as those by Triandis, et al. (1970, 1971a,b) and Lewit and Abner (1971) must be considered in the development of any study aimed at

identifying black-white similarities and differences.

Other than the previously mentioned Slocum and Strawser (1972) study, none of the numerous reports concerning job satisfaction and motivation to work have included race as à variable.



Implications of these findings are most salient for supervisory training needs. The developers of any comprehensive training course would need to draw heavily from results such as those presented above. Additionally, courses for enrollees could profitably include one or more sections dealing with the same topics. The findings cited here constitute the primary basis for several of the recommendations that are presented at the end of this chapter.

The two most reasonable alternatives for explaining the pattern of results with respect to characteristics of the personnel are that (a) they are not the "hard-core unemployed," because the hard-core were systematically excluded from the program in favor of better qualified applicants, or (b) they are the "hard-core unemployed," but the characteristics and values frequently ascribed to this group need to be revised because

they are actually congruent with those of other workers.

From the results of the literature review, alternative (b) would seem to be an acceptable explanation, several studies found a high degree of value congruence between hard-core unemployed and various other groupings of workers. However, the behavioral indices (supervisors' ratings and attrition) call this explanation into question. A point generally agreed upon by workers in the area is that attendance/punctuality is a problem common to the ex-hard-core unemployed. Inferentially, the high supervisory ratings assigned PSC entry-level enrollees do not reflect attendance problems. While the attrition rate is comparable to similar programs in the private sector, there is a critical difference: Most programs in the private-sector seem to have emphasized to a greater extent some direct means of displaying their interest and encouragement to the ex-hard-core (i.e., buddy systems, coaching, counseling, going to their homes and getting them when they were absent).

Several program developers in the private sector have reported that, in their experience, the hard-core frequently need much longer to complete a training course than do non-hard-core. Information on the extent to which such modifications were required for training courses given the PSC enrollees was not within the province of this project, but

would be relevant to future decisions affecting the PSC Program.

The points cited here argue for explanation (a), that the hard-core unemployed were excluded from the program. This has been a problem with many similar programs in both public and private sectors. The employer, or hiring agency, usually cannot afford to lose sight of existing organizational goals (i.e., production schedules, quotas). A common assumption is that the hiring of any significant percentage of hard-core unemployed will impact negatively on attaining these goals. As a result, the employer, or hiring agency, often attempts to select those individuals whom they feel will be the more productive workers.

CONCLUSIONS

(1) The world-of-work values and perceptions of the PSC enrollees were, for the most part, congruent with those of the "middle-class value system."

(2) The presence of only a few changes in the world-of-work values and perceptions of the enrollees as a function of job experience, and the high level of supervisory ratings, indicate the appropriateness of these values for the work environment.

(3) The "typical" PSC enrollee probably is underemployed in the entry jobs, and

might continue to be after one promotion.



RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations are based upon the findings of this project and the relevant conclusions reached in the studies cited in the Introduction and Discussion portions of this report. These recommendations are focused on any future changes that might be made in the operation of the PSC Program.

(1) An "Outreach" feature should be added to the PSC Program, for the purpose of recruiting the extremely disadvantaged, both through direct contacts in the disadvantaged community and through referrals by appropriate agencies.

Inclusion of this feature would, of necessity, result in some modifications to the existing structure of the PSC Program. One such change would involve a shift in the allocation of resources so that more personnel would be available to engage in "Outreach" activities. It might be necessary to choose these personnel on the basis of criteria presently used in selecting personnel. Sequencing of the PSC Program activities would need to be considered because persons entering through outreach activities might exhibit values and attitudes different from the current enrollees. Restructuring and/or redesign of some features of the PSC Program might be necessary.

(2) Greater emphasis should be given the entry criterion that the applicant could not have obtained the job without PSC Program intervention.

(3). Greater emphasis should be placed upon providing information to, and obtaining the cooperation of, supervisors of PSC entrants.

(4) As new training courses are developed for supervisors of PSC entrants, special attention should be paid to topics that are especially relevant for enrollees (e.g., communication, behavioral expectations, and establishment of a supportive environment).

(5) Social skills courses developed for PSC entrants should not be predicated on the assumption that the entrant's values are substantially different from those of the "middle class," but should emphasize job-related behaviors.

(6) Training courses for PSC entrants should provide for individual reinforcement contingent upon progress. These courses should be periodically reviewed for appropriateness of content and delivery, in light of student characteristics.

(7) Courses for PSC entrants should be substantially tied to job development training. The entrant should know the job for which he is slated. Training methodology should emphasize demonstration and repetition.

(8) The PSC Program should give increased emphasis to the provision of necessary supportive services and counseling, to include extensive *vocational* counseling. Ideally, supportive services, presently provided in varying degrees, would include day care services, dental services, legal aid, medical services, financial services (including personal budgeting), and transportation.

(9) A questionnaire should be developed to increase the effectiveness of the orientation period of the program. During orientation, the results of administration of the questionnaire to the enrollee could be used to better schedule future activities of the enrollee, both through counseling and through upgrading where indicated. The information gained from the questionnaire could provide the training and counseling personnel with possible cues for the most effective program sequencing for each enrollee.

The questionnaire should be presented in a Likert-type response format and should include (a) those goals loading .50 or greater on the five factors



identified in this report, (b) the Job Description Index, and (c) those psychological tests developed for this project that were significantly associated with one or more of the five identified factors.

(10) Questionnaires administered to personnel comparable to participants in this study should be either of the Likert-type response format, or—if the forced-choice format is used—the questionnaires should be relatively brief.

Chapter 5;

SUMMARY

This project was undertaken to develop methodology to measure the world-of-work values, and changes in them as a function of experience with the work environment, of personnel entering Plan D of the Public Services Career (PSC) Program...In addition, the relationships between these values, and changes in them, to attainment of program

objectives were to be studied.

Data were collected at two points in time, from three groups of subjects in five different locations, by means of the PSC Enrollee Questionnaire. The three subject groups were (a) entry-level enrollees in the PSC Program, (b) current Federal employees enrolled in the upgrade component of the PSC Program, (c) current Federal employees holding jobs roughly equivalent to those held by the entry-level personnel. These groups were similar in age and education. The median ages were, respectively, 25.4, 25.4, and 23.6. The mean years of education were, respectively, 11.0, 11.5, and 11.6.

For the first data collection, comparisons among the three groups as to world-ofwork values and perceptions yielded few significant differences. Two categories of values were rated highest by all groups: (a) those values pertaining to benefits intrinsic to the job itself, and (b) those pertaining to the opportunity for self-development. Consensus was also obtained on the two value categories rated lowest: (a) those that reflected the gratification of various desires as a function of employment, and (b) those reflecting the instrumentality of having a job for obtaining respect and attention from friends. Entrylevel personnel had just entered the PSC Program at the time of Session I. Females generally anticipated being more satisfied with their jobs than did males. The conclusion drawn as a result of Session I was that entry-level personnel were very similar to subjects in the other two group's.

Data collection Session II involved a six months' follow-up of the entry-level personnel. Attrition was low, and changes in world-of-work values and perceptions were minor. The changes that occurred seemed to refect realistic appraisals of the jobs held and the working environment. The females generally expressed lower levels of satisfaction with many job and work environment aspects, including the stability (routine) of their

present job.

PSC enrollees also completed a form rating their supervisor on the leader behaviors of Consideration and Initiation of Structure. Black enrollees felt that their supervisors engaged in fewer Consideration activities than did the white enrollees. Black femalesupervisors were seen as engaging in fewer Initiation of Structure activities than black male, white male, or white female supervisors.

Supervisors rated both PSC subordinates and their average non-PSC subordinate on five scales. There were no significant differences in the ratings given the two types of

subordinates.

Reliabilities of the two response formats (Likert-type and forced-choice) used for alternate forms of the questionnaire were measured by the test-retest method. Those for the forced-choice format were generally low and not acceptable. Reliability coefficients for the Likert-type format were generally of a marginal level for use in individual measurement.



A factor analysis conducted on the ratings given 32 goals by entry-level personnel resulted in the identification of five factors. These were labeled Security Through Job Accomplishment, Social Interaction Orientation, Materialistic Orientation, Economic Instrumentality, and Esteem Satisfaction Through Work.

Several conclusions were advanced:

- (1) The world-of-work values and perceptions of the PSC enrollee were, for the most part, congruent with those of the "middle-class value system.".
- (2) The presence of only a few changes in the world-of-work values and perceptions of the enrollees as a function of job experience, and the level of supervisory ratings, indicate the appropriateness of these values for the work environment.
- (3) The "typical" PSC enrollee probably underemployed in the entry jobs, and might continue to be after one promotion.

Several recommendations for future operation of the PSC Program were made.



LITERATURE CITED AND APPENDICES

LITERATURE CITED

- Beatty, Richard W. "First- and Second-Level Supervision and the Job Performance of the Hard-Core Unemployed," Proceedings of the 79th Annual Convention of the American Psychological Association, vol. 6, no. 1, 1971, pp. 479-480.
- Blood, Milton R. "The Validity of Importance," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 55, no. 5, 1971, pp. 487-488.
- Bloom, Robert and Barry, John R. "Determinants of Work Attitudes Among Negroes," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 51, no. 3, June 1967, pp. 291-294.
- Bullough, B. "Alienation in the Ghetto," American Journal of Sociology, vol. 72, no. 5, 1967, pp. 469-478.
- Campbell, Douglas B. "Relative Influence of Job and Supervision on Shared Worker Attitudes," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 55, no. 6, December 1971, pp. \$21-525.
- Dachler, H.P. and Hulin, C.L. "A Reconsideration of the Relationship Between Satisfaction and Judged Importance of Environmental and Job Characteristics," Organizational Behavior and Human Performance, vol. 4, 1969, pp. 252-266.
- Doeringer, R.B. "Frograms to Employ the Disadvantaged. A Labor Market Perspective," in *Programs to Employ the Disadvantaged*, P.B. Doeringer (ed.), Prentice-Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs, N.J., 1969, pp. 245-261.
- Ferman, Lewis A. "The Hard-Core Unemployed. Myth and Reality," in The Poor and the Hard-Core Unemployed. Recommendations for New Approaches, Wil J. Smith (ed.), 1970. (A joint presentation of the Office of Research and Development, Appalachian Center, West Virginia University and The Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, The University of Michigan-Wayne State University.)
- Friedlander, Frank and Greenberg, Stuart. "Effect of Job Attitudes, Training, and Organization Climate on Performance of the Hard-Core Unemployed," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 55, no. 4, 1971, pp. 287-295.
- Goodale, James G. Background Characteristics, Orientation, Work Experience, and Work Values of Employees Hired From Human Resources Development Applicants by Companies Affitiated with the National Alliance of Businessmen, Bowling Green State University, Bowling Green, Ohio, August 1971.
- Gurin, Gerald. "Psychology and Reality in the Study of Hard-Core Unemployed," in The Poor and the Hard-Core Unemployed. Recommendations for New Approaches, Wil J. Smith (ed.), 1970. (A joint presentation of the Office of Research and Development, Appalachian Center, West Virginia University and The Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, The University of Michigan-Wayne State University.)
- Hemphill, John K. and Coons, A.E. "Development of the Leader Behavior Description Questionnaire," Chapter 2 in Leader Behavior. Its Description and Measurement, R.M. Stodgill and A.E. Coons (eds.), Ohio State University, Bureau of Business Research Monograph, Columbus, Ohio, 1957.

- Herzberg, F., Mausner, B., and Snyderman, B. The Motivation to Work (2nd Ed.), John Wiley and Sons, Inc., New York, 1959.
- Hodgson, J.D. and Brenner, M.H. "Successful Experience. Training Hard-Core Unemployed," Harvard Business Review, September-October 1968, pp.148-157.
- Hulin, Charles L. and Waters, L.K. "Regression Analysis of Three Variations of the Two-Factor Theory of Job Satisfaction," *Journal of Applied Psychology*, vol. 55, no. 3, 1971, pp. 211-217.
- Jacobs, T.O. Leadership and Exchange in Formal Organizations, HumRRO Technical Report 71-25, December 1970.
- Janger, Allen R. Employing the Disadvantaged. A Company Perspective, The Conference Board, Inc., New York, 1972.
- Johnson, Lawrence A. Employing the Hard-Core Unemployed, American Management Association, Inc., New York, 1969.
- Kaplan, H. Roy and Tausky, Curt. "Work and the Welfare Cadillac: The Function of and Commitment to Work Among the Hard-Core Unemployed," Social Problems, vol. 19, no. 4, Spring 1972, pp. 469-483.
- King, N. "A Clarification and Evaluation of the Two-Factor Theory of Job Satisfaction," Psychological Bulletin, vol. 74, 1970, pp. 18-31.
- King, D. and Bass, B. Leadership, Power and Influence, Paper No. 280, Institute for Research in the Behavioral, Economic, and Management Sciences, Herman C. Krannert Graduate School of Industrial Administration, Purdue University, Lafayette, Indiana, 1970.
- Kirchner, Wayne K. and Lucas, June A. "The Hard-Core in Training--Who Makes It?" Training and Development Journal, vol. 26, no. 5, May 1972, pp. 34-37.
- Lewis, Morgan V., Cohn, E., and Hughes, David N. Recruiting, Placing, and Retaining the Hard-to-Employ. A Study of Factors Influencing the Retention of Participants in a Concentrated Employment Progam and in their Subsequent Employment, Institute for Research on Human Resources, Pennsylvania State University, University Park, Penn., October 1971.
- Lewit, D.W. and Abner, E.V. "Black-White Semantic Differences and Interracial Communications," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 1, no. 3, 1971, pp. 263-277.
- Maslow, A.H. Motivation and Personality, Harper, New York, 1954.
- Mikes, Patricia Smith and Hulin, Charles L. "Use of Importance as a Weighting Component of Job Satisfaction," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 52, no. 5, 1968, pp. 394-398.
- Milutinovich, Jugoslav S. "A Comparative Study of Job Satisfaction of Negro and White Employees Under Participative and Authoritative Supervisory Styles," *Dissertation Abstracts International*, vol. 32, no. 3-B. 1892-B, September 1971.
- Nealey, Stanley M. and Blood, Milton R. Leadership Performance of Nursing Supervisors at Two Organizational Levels. Group Effectiveness Research Laboratory, Department of Psychology, University of Illinois, Technical Report No. 48(67-4), (ONR Contract NR 177-472, Nonr 1834(36).) Urbana, Ill., February 1967.
- Nezzer, Mildred, Davis, Rene V., Weitzel, William, and Pinto, Patrick. Determinants of Global Satisfaction. Organizational Differences, University of Minnesota, Industrial Relations Center, Technical Report, Minneapolis, Minn., 1971, pp. 1-13.

- Osborn, W.C., Haggard, D.F., Boycan, G.G., Spangenberg, R.W., Engel, J.D., and Pratt, W.H.

 An Instructional Program for Employability Orientation, HumRRO Technical Report 72-4,
 February 1972.
- Porter, Lyman W. "A Study of Perceived Need Satisfaction in Bottom and Middle Management Jobs," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 45, 1961, pp. 1-10.
- Porter, Lyman W. The Use of Rewards in Motivating Marginal Members of the Work Force, Performance Research Inc.; (ONR Contract N00014-66-C0130), Washington, D.C., 1970.
- Richards, Steven A. and Jaffee, Cabot L. "Blacks Supervising Whites: A Study of Interfacial Difficulties in Working Together in a Simulated Organization," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 56, no. 3, 1972, pp. 234-240.
- Ronan, W.W. "Individual and Situational Variables Relating to Job Satisfaction," Journal of Applied Psychology Monograph, vol. 54, no. 1, pt. 2, February 1970(a).
- Ronan, W.W. "Relative Importance of Job Characteristics," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 54, no. 2, April 1970(b), pp. 192-200.
- Seeman, Melvin. "On the Meaning of Alienation," American Sociological Review, vol. 24, 1959, pp. 783-791.
- Seeman, Melvin. "Powerlessness and Knowledge. A Comparative Study of Alienation and Learning," Sociometry, vol. 30, no. 2, 1/967, pp. 105-123.
- Simonetti, S.H. and Weitz, Joseph. "Job Satisfaction: Some Cross-Cultural Effects," *Personnel Psychology*, vol. 25, 1972, pp. 107-118.
- Slocum, John W., Jr. and Strawser, Robert H. "Racial Differences in Job Attitudes," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 56, no. 1, 1972, pp. 28-32.
- Smith, Patricia, Kendall, L.M., and Hulin, C.L. The Measurement of Satisfaction in Work and Retirement, Rand McNally and Co., Chicago, 1969.
- Soliman, Hanafi M. "Motivation-Hygiene Theory of Job Attitudes: An Empirical Investigation and an Attempt to Reconcile Both the One- and Two-Factor Theories of Job Attitudes," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 54, no. 5, October 1970, pp. 452-461.
- Thompson, Duane E. "Favorable Self-Perception, Perceived Supervisory Style, and Job Satisfaction," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 55, no. 4, 1971, pp. 349-352.
- Triandis, H.C., Feldman, J., and Harvey, W. Person Perception Among Black and White Adolescents and the Hardcore Unemployed, Department of Psychology, University of Illinois, Technical Report No. 5, SRS No. RD 2841-G, Champaign, Ill., 1970.
- Triandis, H.C., Feldman, J. and Harvey, W. Role Perceptions Among Black and White Adolescent's and the Hardcore Unemployed, Department of Psychology, University of Illinois, Technical Report No. 6, SRS No. RD 2841-G, Champaign, Ill., 1971(a).
- Triandis, H.C., Feldman, J., and Harvey, W. Job Perceptions Among Black and White Adolescents and the Hardcore Unemployed, Department of Psychology, University of Illinois, Technical Report No. 7, SRS No. RD 2841-G, Champaign, Ill., 1971(b).
- Triandis, Harry C. and Malpass, Roy S. "Studies of Black and White Interaction in Job Settings," Journal of Applied Social Psychology, vol. 1, no. 2, 1971, pp. 101-117.
- Van Brunt, Robert E. "Supervising Employees From Minority Groups," Training and Development Journal, vol. 26, no. 7, July 1972, pp. 36-38.
- Wanous, John P. and Lawler, Edward E., III. "Measurement and Meaning of Job Satisfaction," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 56, no. 2, April 1972, pp. 95-105.



- Waters, L.K. and Roach, Darrell. "Comparison of Unweighted and Importance Weighted
 Job Satisfaction Measures for Three Samples of Female Office Workers," Psychological
 Reports, vol. 28, no. 3, June 1971, pp. 779-782.
- Waters, E.K. and Waters, Carrie W. "An Empirical Test of Five Versions of The Two-Factor Theory of Job Satisfaction," Organizational Behavior and Human Performance, vol. 7, 1972, pp. 18-24.
- Wernimont, Paul F., Toren, Paul, and Kapell, Henry. "Comparison of Sources of Personal Satisfaction and of Work Motivation," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 54, no. 1, 1970, pp. 95-102.
- Williams, W. "Manpower Problems the Hard-Core Ghetto," in An Interdisciplinary
 Approach of Manpower Research, N.A. Palombra and E.B. Jakubauskas (eds.), Industrial
 Relations Center, Iowa State Surversity, Ames, Iowa, 1968.
- Wold, Martin G. "Need Gratification Theory: A Theoretical Reformulation of Job Satisfaction/Dissatisfaction and Job Motivation," Journal of Applied Psychology, vol. 54, no. 1, 1970 87-94.

TAXONOMY OF VALUES AND GOALS WITHIN EACH VALUE CATEGORY

I. Extrinsic Benefits 1. Good pay 2. Good working conditions, like air conditioning 3. A good vacation each year 4. A good restrement plan 5. Being able to work close to home. 6. A good host patients are take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do 11. Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of new things 16. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who is friendly 26. A supervisor who is friendly 27. A supervisor who is friendly 28. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 29. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 20. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 21. Interpersonal Relations with Family 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who is friendly 24. A supervisor who is friendly 25. A supervisor who is friendly 26. A supervisor who is friendly 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 32. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 33. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 34. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 35. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 36. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 37. Being sole to learn new things that will hel			
Cood working conditions, like air conditioning 3. A good vacation each year 4. A good retirement plan 5. Being able to work close to home 6. A good hospitalization plan 7. A plan to pay doctor's bills 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 1. Thrinsic Benefits 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to take pride in what you do 11. See in gable to take pride in what you do 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of new things 16. Being able to buy a lot of rem things I have 18. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk, and have fun with the other 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to talk, and have fun with the other 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to work with people who think as 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 19. Being able to tower with a willing to help you with your off-phe-job problems 19. Knowing your family is proud of the work 20. Interpersonal Relations 21. Being able to learn new things that yill help 22. Show and the people who think as about after your 23. Being able to learn new things that yill help 24. Show and the people who seed the people who	Value Category ',	٠,	Goals
2. Good working conditions, like air conditioning 3. A good vacation each year 4. A good retirement plan 5. Being able to work close to home 6. A good hospitalization plan 7. A plan to pay doctor's bills 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 7. Intrinsic Benefits 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante 11. Knowing there is a good chahce of being 12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of new things 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my 18. Work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Being able to work with people who think my 20. A supervisor who is friendly 21. A supervisor who is friendly 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who helps when you have done 24. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is fill you when you have done 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your 20. Friends 21. Being able to learn new things that will help 21. Being able to learn to do something that is	I. Extrinsic Benefits	•	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
4. A good vacation each year 4. A good retirement plan 5. Being able to work close to home 6. A good hospitalization plan 7. A plan to pay doctor's bills 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante 10. Knowing there is a good chahce of being 11. Gratification Demands 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy alot of new things 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to buy things I need 18. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 21. Being able to work with people who think as 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who is friendly 25. A supervisor who is friendly 26. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 27. A supervisor who is willing to help you with 28. A supervisor who is willing to help you with 29. Knowing your family is proud of the work 29. Knowing your family is proud of the work 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Raving job that is interesting to your 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 21. Being able to learn new things that will help 22. Being able to learn new things that will help 23. Being able to learn to, do something that is	•	. 1.	Good pay
4. A good retirement plan 5. Being able to work close to home 6. A good hospitalization plan 7. A plan to pay doctor's bills 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante 10. Knowing there is a good chance of being 11. Gratification Demands 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy alot of new things 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to buy things I need 18. Being able to work with people who think my 19. Work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 21. Being able to work with people who think as 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who freats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who freats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who is friendly 26. A supervisor who is friendly 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work 29. Knowing your family is proud of the work 29. Knowing your family is proud of the work 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Raving a job that is interesting to your 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 21. Being able to learn new things that will help 22. Being able to learn new things that will help 23. Being able to learn new things that will help 24. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	2.	Good working conditions, like air conditioning
5. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 19. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 20. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 21. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 22. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 26. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 18. Rowing your family is proud of the work you do 19. Being able to learn to do something to your friends about after work after each of the work you do 27. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that if interesting to your friends about after work after to do something that is about after you get a better job later 29. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 29. Being able to learn to do something that is		. 3.	
5. Being able to work close to home 6. A good hospitalization plan 7. A plan to pay doctor's biils 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 10. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do 11. Knowing there is a good chahce of being promoted 12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of fixe of new things 16. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 17. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tiells you when you have done. a good job on something 25. A supervisor who tells you when you need help 26. A supervisor who fis willing to help you with your off-the-job problems with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 18. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 28. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 28. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	-	
7. A glan to pay doctor's bills 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do' 11. Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted 12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of new things 16. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 21. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor with Supervisor with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Interpersonal Relations with Family 29. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 28. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 29. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 29. Being able to learn new things that will help	٠ ,		
7. A plan to pay doctor's bills 8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do' 11. Knowing there is a good chahce of being promoted 12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things. 15. Being able to buy alot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 18. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you have done, a good job on something 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 33. Being able to learn to, do something that is	•		
8. Being able to keep the job as long as you want 9. Being able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do' 11. Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted 12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things. 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 29. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 20. Being able to learn to do something that is	۵		
Seing able to take pride in what you do 10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do 11. Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted 12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of new things 16. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 18. Supervisor who is friendly 21. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 22. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who fair is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 20. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later you get a better job later 20. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	_	
10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do' 11. Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things. 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 18. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 10. Interpersonal Relations with Family 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. How in the people working that is interesting to your friends 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	Intrinsic Benefits	8.	•
10. Being able to do the type work you always wante to do' 11. Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 18. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 10. Interpersonal Relations with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends about after work 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 31. Being able to learn to do something that is		9.	Being able to take pride in what you do
I. Gratification Demands 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 18. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 28. Being able to learn to do something that is	<i>\$</i> 0	10.	Being able to do the type work you always wante
I. Gratification Demands 12. Feeling-proud of your job 13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to work with people who are friendly 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who is friendly 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	••	11.	
12. Feeling proud of your job 13. A Lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 7. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is			
13. A lot of time off without losing pay 14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who are friendly 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	I. Gratification Demands		
14. Being able to buy a lot of new things 15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Being able to buy things I need 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•		
15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who is friendly 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	,	13.	A lot of time off without losing pay
15. Being able to buy a lot of things I have always wanted 16. Being able to buy things I need 17. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 18. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who is friendly 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	<i>'</i>	14.	Being able to buy a lot of new things
always wanted Being able to buy things I need 7. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 7. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 18. Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 29. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	;	15.	Being able to buy a lot of things I have
7. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 7. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done. 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 1. Interpersonal Relations with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 29. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
7. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 7. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 20. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	- -	16	
With Co-Workers 17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 17. Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	7 '- Internergenal Balations		"sering more to pay furings I used
17. Being able to work with people who think my work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who is friendly 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 18. Being able to learn to do something that is 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends about after work 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
work is good 18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other 10. People working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who is friendly 24. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 25. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	with Co-workers	, ,	This able to make the best of the state of t
18. Being able to work with people who like me 19. Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	\odot .	17.	
Being able to work with people who are friendly 20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends about after work 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	,	
20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done. 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems Interpersonal Relations with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends about after work 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	• ,		Being able to work with people who like me
20. Being able to talk and have fun with the other people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done. 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems Interpersonal Relations with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends about after work 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	19.	
people working there 21. Being able to work with people who think as much of me as my friends do Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends about after work 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•		
Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 29. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 30. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	•	
much of me as my friends do 22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done. 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work 28. Knowing your family is proud of the work 29. Having a job that is interesting to your 29. Having a job that is interesting to your 29. Heigh something you can talk to your friends 20. Being something you can talk to your friends 21. Being able to learn new things that will help 22. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	21.	
22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done, a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is		<u>,•</u>	
22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done. 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who helps when you need help 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the 29. Having a job that is interesting to your 29. Having a job that is interesting to your 29. Having a job that is interesting to your 29. Being something you can talk to your friends 20. Being able to learn new things that will help 20. Being able to learn to do something that is	Thtornargonal Dolations		mach of the do my lifehub do
22. A supervisor who is friendly 23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is			•
23. A supervisor who treats everyone fairly. 24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done. a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	with Supervisor		
24. A supervisor who tells you when you have done a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 20. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is		-	
a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is		23,	
a good job on something 25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	,	24.	A supervisor who tells you when you have done,
25. A supervisor who helps when you need help 26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	•	a good job on something .
26. A supervisor who is willing to help you with your off-the-job problems With Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	25.	A supervisor who helps when you need help
Interpersonal Relations with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	· /		A supervisor who is willing to help you with
with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	_••	
with Family 27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	. Interpersonal Relations	,	Your orreduce los bronzems
27. Knowing your family is proud of the work you do Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	with Family		
Interpersonal Relations with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	•	27.	The state of the s
with Friends 28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	Internergenal Deletions		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
28. Knowing your friends respect you for the work you do 29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is		•	•
29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	with rriends		الم
29. Having a job that is interesting to your friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is		. 28.	knowing your friends respect you for the
friends 30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is		•	work you do
30. Being something you can talk to your friends about after work 31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	29.	
31. Being able to learn new things that will help you get a better job later 32. Being able to learn to do something that is	Developmental Needs A	30:	Being something you can talk to your friends
32. Being able to learn to do something that is	, peveropmental needs	31.	
	1	22	
		ચ્∠ .	pering apte to rearm to do something that is

JOB DESCRIPTION INDEX

Area of Job °

Satisfaction

Work

Fascinating Routine Satisfying Boring. Good, Creative Respected Hot Pleasant. Useful Tiresome **Healthful** Challenging On your feet Frustrating Simple Endless Gives sense of accomplishment

Supervision

Asks my advice Hard to please Impolite Praises good work Tactful Introential Up-to-date Doesn't supervise enough Quick tempered Tells me where I stand Annoying Stubborn .Knows job well ·Bad Intelligent Leaves me on my own Lazy Around when needed

Pay

Income adequate for normal expenses
Barely live on income
Bad
Income provides luxuries
Insecure
Less than I deserve
Highly paid
Underpaid

Promotions

Good opportunity for advancement
Opportunity somewhat limited
Promotion on ability
Dead-end job
Good chance for promotion
Unfair promotion policy
Infrequent promotions
Regular promotions
Fairly good chance for promotion



Co-Wòrkers

Stimulating
Boring
Llow
Ambitious
Stupid
Responsible
Fast
Intelligent
Easy to make enemies
Talk too much
Smart
Lazy
Unpleasent
No privacy
Active
Narrow interests
Loyal

Hard to meet

^{*}Permission was obtained from Dr. Patricia Smith for inclusion of the JDI in this study.

Appendix C

PSYCHOLOGICAL TESTS AND ITEMS WITHIN EACH BY RESPONSE CONDITION

1. Cynical Distrust of People

The dimension assessed by this test reflects the fairly well substantiated finding that deprived persons, i.e., ghetto residents, seem not to be able to enter trusting relationships with other persons as well as the higher socio-economic status individual. If social exchange theory is a good framework for looking at the world, then the ability to establish a relationship characterized by mutual trust, which is the first step for initiating an exchange relationship, is the key to the ability to interrelate with other persons, and also the ability to interrelate with organizations. Lacking trust, an individual can hardly be blamed for withholding commitment of his own. This, however, is a vicious circle, because the act of withholding commitment will lead the other to withhold commitment in turn, or to withdraw it, leaving the individual in a state of effective social isolation. Such social isolation theoretically should be counterproductive in the work environment.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- , (1) Everyone is out for himself at the expense of other people.
 - (2) Deep down inside, most people would rather not help the other person.
- (3) Most people avoid helping someone in trouble.
- (4) Most people are honest, really.
- (5) The world we live in is mostly a friendly place.
- (6) Most people who trust others are treated fairly in return.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- a. Everyone is out for himself at the expense of other people.
 b. People are really interested in helping others.
- (2) a. You just don't have any friends when you're in trouble.
 b. People are really helpful when you have trouble.
- (3) a. Most people are really honest.
 - b. People are honest only if they think they il get caught if they break any rules.
- (4) a. People who trust others get fair treatment.
 - b. If you trust others they will really take advantage of you.

2. Cynical Distrust of Organizations

In order to achieve adjustment within the work situation, not only must the individual be able to establish trusting relationships with others, but also he must have some faith in the integrity of the organization. The less distrustful the individual is of organizations, per se, the greater is the likelihood that he will adjust successfully to the work environment. This test was constructed to assess the extent of such distrust by the individual.



a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) If companies could they would pay you less for a day's work.
- (2) Companies are always looking for ways to make people do more work for the same pay.
- (3) Most companies want my kind of people to get good jobs.
- (4) It's a good thing that we have labor unions to stick up for the people.
- (5) Big business really doesn't care about the little guy.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- a. If companies could they would pay you less for a day's work.
 b. Most companies want to pay you a fair wage.
- (2) a. Most companies will pay overtime if they ask you to do any extra work.
 - b. Companies are always looking for ways to get more work for the same pay.
- (3) a. Most companies want my kind of people to get good jobs.

 b. Very few companies are interested in my kind of people getting

 good jobs.
- (4) a. Big business doesn't care about the little guy...
 - b. Big business really wants to help the little guy.

Weak Self_Regard-

The history of the deprived person is characterized by failure, both occupationally and educationally. While it is very probable that this failure can be attributed to a major extent to obstacles in the environment, and to discrimination—a defense that leads to apathy or to hostile aggression, depending on other factors—there can be little doubt that a history of failure can and probably does impact negatively on the individual's self-concept, and his regard for himself. This test was designed to assess such attitudes, as individuals holding these attitudes could be expected to be lower in upward occupational mobility and less certain of their work performance.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) At times, I think I am no good at all.
- (2) I have often felt that strangers were looking at me as if something might be wrong with me.
- (3) I often feel completely unable to do anything worthwhile.
- (4) People like me don't have any say in what the government does.
- (5). Most of the people in my work group feel they are better than me.

b. Forced=Choice Response Condition

- (1) a. At times, I think I am no good at all.b. I seldom have any doubts about myself,
- (2) a. I hardly ever feel that strangers are looking at me as if something might be wrong with me.
 - b. I have often felt that strangers were looking at me as if . something might be wrong with me.

- (3) a. I often feel completely unable to do anything worthwhile.
 - b. I seldom feel completely unable to do anything worthwhile.
 - (4) a. By voting, I have something to say about what the government does.
 b. People like me don't have any say in what the government does.
 - 5) a. Most people I work with feel they are better than me.
 - b. Few people I work with feel they are better than me.

. Achievement Motivation

This test was constructed to reflect the respondents' interest in relative status achieved through occupational means and, as such, can be expected to relate to long-term employability of the PSC worker.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) Children ought to try to reach a higher station in life than their parents.
- (2) One earns the greatest respect from others if he advances to higher positions in life.
- .(3) People respect someone who gets ahead.
- (4) Most people will work harder to get a better job.
 - (5) * It would be good to have a supervisor's job some day.
 - (6) If you are not really good at a job, you should quit and try something else.
 - (7) Having a job you do well is more important than now much money you make.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- a. People should be happy to have the same kind of work as their parents did.
 - b. Children ought to try to reach a higher station in life than their parents.
- (2) a. People respect you if you get ahead.
 - b. You don't have to get ahead for people to respect you.
- (3) a. Getting a better job is not worth working harder.
- b. People will work harder to get a better job.
- (4) a. It would be good to have a supervisor's job some day.
 - b. I would not want a supervisor's job.,
- (5) a. You should not be expected to be really good at your job.
 - b. If you are not really good at a job, you should quit and try something else.
- (6) a. Having a job you do well is more important than how much money you make.
 - b. The salary you receive is more important than how well you are able to do your job.

. Time Sense

Responses to this test are interpreted as the ability and/or desire to delay gratification of immediate needs in order to obtain gratification of more central needs at a later time. Conceptually, this requires ability to think beyond an immediate time frame, e.g., to anticipate developments, and a history of prior experiences leading to the expectation that persons who defer gratification do, in fact, obtain payoffs for their short-term self-denial, e.g., will not have lost in the long run.

When the environment is generally noxious, apathy is a defense against the continued strain of unpleasantness, as is escape (in the form of day dreams, fantasies, etc. and probably intoxication, drugs, etc., as well). It is probable that escape and avoidance have similar utilities here, so that the deprived person may escape the harshness of the future, and the apparent prison of the present, by avoiding thinking about it. To the extent that the worker wishes to escape contemplation of a bleak future, increased attention in the form of time and money will be given present needs, irrespective of the centrality of such needs. Such a frame of reference may be associated with a lower need for achievement by the individual.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) People who save for a rainy day miss out on a lot of living.
- (2) A lot of people don't know from one day to the next what they will be doing.
- (3) Most people spend their money as fast as they make it.
- (4) Most people try not to think about the future.
- (5) Making a budget is a waste of time; they never work.
- (6) It'is more important to take care of present needs than to build for the future.
- (7) Tomorrow will take care of itself, so why be worried.
- (8) A supervisor shouldnit mind if a person misses work on some days.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- (1) a. People who save for a rainy day miss out on a lot of living.
 b. People who save money enjoy life just as much as those that spend thair money quickly.
- (2) a. Most people try not to think about the future.
 - b. You have to plan ahead to really have anything.
- (3), a. Making a budget is a waste of time; they never work.
- b. People that don't make budgets never have any money left.
- (4) a. It's more important to take care of present needs than to build for the future.
 - b. Sometimes it's necessary to sacrifice now so as to have something in the future.
- (5) a. If you have to miss work you should tell someone that you won't be there.
 - b. A supervisor shouldn't mind if you don't show up for work some of the time.

. Protestant Ethic

An important factor in adjusting to the work environment is the extent to which the individual values work in general. The more the individual sees work as an end in itself, the greater will be his investment in the work situation. The individual who subscribes to such values attaches a high worth to work in general and will be reluctant to waste time engaging in extra-work activities, at least insofar as they may be perceived as trivial



Likert-Type Response Condition

- When the workday is finished, a person should forget his job and enjoy himself.
- (2) Wasting time is as bad as wasting money.
- (3) People who "do things the easy way" are the smart ones.
- Hard work makes a man a better person.
- (5) If a man is given more responsibility, he will work harder
- If a person doesn't feel like working, it should be o.k. for him to stay home that day.

Forced-Choice Response Condition

- a. When the workday is finished, a person should forget his job and enjoy himself.
 - A person should never quit thinking about how he can do his job better.
- Wasting time is as bad as wasting money.
 - Time is never wasted if you are enjoying yourself.
- (3) .a. People who "do thing the easy way" are the smart ones.
 - People who break rules will never get wahead.
- (4) Hard work makes a man a better person.
 - Hard work has nothing to do with how a person turns out.
- If a man is given more responsibility he will work harder.
 - Getting more responsibility doesn't mean a man should work harder.
- (6) a, A person should not miss a day of work for any reason.
 - b. If a person doesn't feel like working it should be o.k. for · him to stay home that day. .

Expectation of Success

An important facet of an individual's level of achievement motivation is represented by his view of the world and his subjective probability of attaining desired goals. If the individual has a low expectation, an expectancy of frustration, it is quite likely that his initial response to a situation 'perceived' as potentially frustrating will be withdrawal from the field, in this case, voluntary termination of employment. This test was developed to tap the individual's generalized expectancy of success in attaining any goal.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- If you try hard enough, you can usually get what you want.
- Those, that want a lot out of life usually get it.
- The people I know don't have much chance to get good jobs.
- (4) Most people want too much, out of life.
- (5) Most people never get the thing they want most in life.
- I have always gotten those things that I wanted most. (6)

Forced-Choice_Response Condition

- Most people never get the thing they want most in life. If you try hard enough, you can usually get what you want.
- (2) Those that want a lot out of life usually get it.
 - Most people want too much out of life.



- (3) a. The people I know don't have much chance to get good jobs.
 - . If you rry hard enough you can usually get what you want.
- (4) a. I have always gotten those things I really wanted.
 - b. When I didn't get them, I knew that I really didn't need the things that I had really wanted.

Tests No. 8 through 12 constitute instruments intended to measure alienation from work. As reflected in these tests, it could be expected to result in the worker failing to adjust to the world-of-work.

8. Powerlessness

This test was included to tap the belief that the individual has little control over the forces that determine his outcomes in life. As such it is very similar to a negative pole of the test measuring achievement motivation.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) People who have good jobs have gotten them through hard work.
- (2) No matter how hard I work, it won't do much good.
- (3) A man holds his job mainly because his boss likes him.
- (4) I have very little control over many of the things that happen to me.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- (1) a. People who have good jobs have gotten them through hard work.
 - b. A man holds his job mainly because his boss likes him.
- (2) a. No matter how hard I work, it won't do much good.
 - b. What I do pretty well decides what happens to me.

9. Meaninglessn<u>ess</u>

This test was designed to reflect the individual's belief that his work is a means of achieving other than immediate goals and, as such, constitutes an indirect assessment of gratification deferral.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) Most people know what they want in life, and are willing to sacrifice to get it.
- (2) The lives of most people have little meaning or purpose.
- (3) Most people consider their jobs very important.
- (4). My job is not really necessary.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition,

- (1) a. Most people know what they want in life and are willing to sacrifice to get it.
 - b. The lives of most people have little meaning or purpose.
- (2) a. My job is not really necessary.
 - b. My job is important.

10. Normlessnèss

The purpose of this test was to reflect the individual's perception that some goals, cannot be attained by means of socially approved behavior.



Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) Most people don't oare what they have to do to get ahead.
- (2) It usually pays to live by the rules.
- (3) Most rules are made to be broken every now and then.
- (4) Most supervisors don't care if you break the rules now and then, if nobody gets caught.
- (5) I don't want anything that I would have to break any rules to get.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- (1) a. Most people don't care what they have to do to get ahead.
 b. It usually pays to live by the rules.
- (2) a. People who break the rules should be fired.
 b. Most rules are made to be broken now and then.

11. Value Isolation

This test was designed to assess the extent to which the individual feels himself isolated from the majority of the members of the society and the goals they value; it perhaps also reflects the degree, to which the respondent thus feels discriminated against.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) The laws were not made to help ordinary people.
- (2) The opinions of the people I work with are important to me.
- (3). The people I work with don't really understand me and how I feel

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- (1) a. The laws were made for ordinary people like me.
 b. Nobody cares what happens to the average person.
- (2) a. The opinions of the people I work with are very important to me.b. The people I work with usually don't understand me and how I feet.

12. Self-Estrangement

This test was constructed to focus on the individual's willingness and potential for initiating exchange (social exchange) with others—his ability to trust their motives and them. The extent to which the individual is able to enter into meaningful relations with others is used as an indication of the degree of his self-estrangement.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) On week-ends, I spend a lot of time just looking for something to do.
- (2) I usually have a good time when t am with people.
- (3) It is best not to be too friendly with people at work.
- (4) Most people at work will go out of their way to be helpful.
- (5) When you are new on the job, you can't trust anyone.

b. Forced-Choice Response Condition

- (1) a. Most people don't really get much enjoyment out of life.b. Most people do really interesting things.
- (2) as Most people at work are really helpful.
 - b. It's best not to be too friendly with people at work.

(3) a Most people think that what you want is not important.

I want the same thing out of lite that most people do.

13. Work Demands

The target positions for entry-level PSC enrollees are generally low intensity with respect to the range and variability of demands made on the position occupant. The more highly the PSC enrollee values this type of position, the more likely he will be to remain in the program and in the target position subsequent to completion of the program. This test was developed to assess respondents' preferred levels of job demands.

a. Likert-Type Response Condition

- (1) The job that you would consider ideal would be one where the work is always the same.
- (2) If L could do as I pleased, I would change the kind of work I do every few months.
- (3) A person can never feel at ease on a job where the ways of doing things are always being changed.
- (4) I think that it would be better to stay with a job that you know you can handle than to change to a job where most things would be
- (5) After someone learns a job really well, it is better not to change jobs unless there is really a big pay increase.
- (6) One of the most important things about a job is being able to stay busy all the time.

b. 'Forced-Choice Response Condition

- (1) The ideal job would be where:
 - The work is never the same.
 - b. The work is always the same.
- (2) People are not at ease on a job if the way of doing things is changed very much.
 - a. Agree
 - b. Disagree
- (3) After you have learned to do a job well:
 - a. It's best to stay with it.
 - b. It's best to try a new job.
- (4) It's better if a job keeps you busy instead of letting you have time to think.
 - a. Agrée
 - Disagree
- (5) When you know how to handle a job it's best not to change jobs unless there is a large pay increase.
 - a. Disagree
 - b. Agree .

14. Orientation Toward Work

The individual's orientation toward work does not develop in a vaccuum, but is heavily influenced by his perception of his reference group's evaluation of work in general and different positions and occupations in particular. To



. 8:

the extent that his reference groups do not attach high value to work and occupational status, the PSC enrollee who maintains membership in the program will likely either reinterpret cues concerning his reference group's orientation toward work, or, in some cases, will select other, and different, reference groups. This test provides an indirect assessment of any changes in reference groups by reflecting changes in the individual's orientation toward work and occupational status.

- (1) "If you were out work, which would you rather do?
 - a. Go on welfare.
 - b. Take a job as a car washer that paid the same as welfare.
- (2) If by some chance you had enough money to live comfortably without working, do you think that you would work anyway, or would you not work?
 - a. Would not work
 - b. Would work anyway
- (3) Which kind of work would you rather have?
 - a. Average pay from work that is looked down on by the people you know.
 - b. Low pay from work that is respected by the people you know.
- (4) Is the most important thing about getting a promotion:..
 - a. Getting more pay?
 - b. 'Getting more respect from friends and neighbors?
- (5) Which job would you choose if you could be sure of keeping either job?
 - a. Better than average pay as a truck driver.
 - b. Less than average pay as a bank clerk.
- (6) If you could be sure that your income would go up steadily without getting a promotion, would you care about being promoted?
 - a. No
 - b. Yes

Appendix D.

ASSESSMENT OF SUPERVISORY INFLUENCES

ITEMS WITHIN EACH DIMENSION

A. Consideration

The larger the score, the more the respondent believed that his supervisor exhibited such behavior. A high score reflects an interpersonal orientation in the leader's behavior, often characterized by feelings of mutual trust, openness to subordinate's ideas and requests, and consideration for their feelings.

- 1. Does personal favors for us.
- 2. Does little things that make it a pleasure to work here.
- 3. Is easy to understand.
- 4. Finds time to listen to us.
- 5. Does not associate with us.
- 6: Looks out for our welfare.
- 7. Refuses to explain actions taken.
- 8. Does things without asking us about them.
- 9. Is slow to accept new ideas.
- 10. Treats all of us as his equals.
- 11. Is willing to make changes.
- 12. Is friendly and easy to get to talk to.
- 13. When talking to us, makes us feel at ease.
- 14. Puts our suggestions into operation.
- 15. Gets approval from us before going ahead on important matters.

B. Initiation of Structure

The larger the score, the more the respondent believed that his supervisor exhibited such behavior. A high score on this dimension would indicate a leader who endeavors to establish well-defined patterns of organization, channels of communication, and ways of doing a job.

- 1. Makes his attitude clear to us.
- 2. Tries out new ideas with us.
- 3. Is very firm with us.
- 4. Finds fault with poor work.
- 5. Speaks in a manner not to be questioned.
- 6. Assigns us to particular tasks.
 - 7. Works without a plan.
 - 8. Tells us we have to meet particular standards of performance.
 - 9. Tells us that we need to meet deadlines.
- 10. Encourages the use of uniform ways of doing things.
- 11. Makes sure that everyone understands his own part in the job.



- 12. Asks that we all follow standard operating procedures.
- 13. Lets us know what is expected of us.
- 14. Sees to it that we are working as much as we should be.
- 15. Sees to it that the work done by each of us doesn't get in the way of what the others are doing.

Appendix E

ITEMS WITHIN INVENTORY FOR SUPERVISORS AND SUPERVISOR'S RATING FORM

A. Inventory for Supervisors (LPC)

High scores on this questionnaire reflect an interpersonal orientation, with the leader behaving so as to increase member satisfaction, usually in a pleasant nondirective fashion. Low scores indicate a greater task orientation on the part of the leader, often in a directive punitive manner, and a low degree of concern for pleasant interpersonal relations. The items for this questionnaire consisted of 16 pairs of bi-polar adjectives, separated by an eight-point scale, ascending in numerical value from the more negative of the bi-polar adjectives. Items

Pleasant -- Unpleasant Unfriendly -- Friendly Accepting -- Rejecting Helpful ` -- Frustrating Unenthusiastic -- Enthusiastic Tense --- Relaxed Close -- Distant Warm -- Cold -- Uncooperative Cooperative Hostile -- Supportive -- Boring Interesting Quarrelsome -- Harmonious -- Hesitant

Self-Assured -- Hesitant

Efficient -- Inefficient

Gloomy -- Cheerful

Open -- Guarded

B. Supervisor's Rating Form

The five dimensions contained in this questionnaire were to assess all aspects of a supervisor's judgment of a subordinate. The direction of scoring was chosen so that the higher the score for a given dimension, the more the supervisor believed that dimension characterized the subordinate being rated.

Performance of the Worker

- 1. Knows as much about the job as the other workers.
- 2. Will never be able to do well in this job.
- 3. Could fill in for any of the other workers.
- 4. Helps any of the other workers that need assistance.
- 5. Frequently makes the same mistake.



Adjustment of the Worker

- 1. Has adjusted well to the work we do.
- 2. Follows orders well.
- 3. Mixes well with the other workers.
 - 4. Thinks that other workers get treated differently.
 - 5. Often complains about what some of the other workers have done.

Motivation of the Worker

- 1. Works about as hard as the other workers.
- Is working hard now, but just to build up a name, will soon start slacking off.
- 3. Is frequently a little late in getting to work.
- 4. Looks for any chance to quit work.
- 5. Has often missed work.

Stability of the Worker

- 1. Is a steadying influence for the other workers.
- 2. Gets excited over small incidents.
- 3. Can be relied on to do work without being constantly checked on.
- 4. Is asked by the other workers for advice.
- 5. Helps smooth over differences between other workers.

Potential of the Worker ..

- 1. I don't think this worker would ever be fired.
- 2. This worker is capable of more demanding work.
- 3. I think this person is one of those workers that are happier with their present job than they would be with a higher level job.
- 4. This person is capable of showing new workers how to do the job.
- This person should be given extra training, so as to be in line for a promotion.

Appendix F RATINGS OF GOALS: LIKERT-TYPE CONDITION

_	_ 						?			
,	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	• P	
1.	. Good pay						1			
	A. Entry - Male:	4.58	67	69		NS.	A(1)vsB(1)	1.31_	NS	
	(2) Session FI	4.56	48	.64			A(2) vsB(2)	- 85	2;K	_
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.39 4.42	49 57	.88 .97	.16	NS	A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.86	ns ns	
	•	4.42					1			
	 Upgrade, Session I: Male Female 	4.74 4.48	. 19	.64	1.08	NS	B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	1.97 1.37	ns Ns	
	D. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	5.00 4.76	5 29	.00	•					
2.	. Good working conditions,. like air conditioning		•			,				4,
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.73 3.31	67 48	. 1.24 1.19	1.79	, NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	1.91 3.46 •	NS <.01	
٠	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.29 4.05	49 57	1.21	3.55	<.01	A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.31	NS I	,
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.63 3.48	19 29	1.04 1.07	.46	NS	B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	.09 .60	ns Ns	
	D. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	4.20 3.31	5 29	1.17 1.05					•	
3.	. A good vacation each year	•		` &						
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I . (2) Session II!	4.31 3.91	67 49	.95 1.02	2.10	<:05	A(1)vsB(1)	4.61	<.001	
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.35 3.87	49 **57	1.29	2.1-8	· <.05	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.18 2.41 1.18	-NS <:02	;
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.68	19	1.13	.01	, NS	B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	1.18 1.94	ns . Ns Ns	
	(2) Female D. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	3.69 4.80	29 5	.40	•					
,	(2) Female	3.93	29	1.23		Ī		3		
4.	A good retirement plan		` `					•		
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.52 4.42	67 49.	1.00	_/ 50	Ns	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	1.59 .95	ns ns	į
æ.	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.22 4.24	49 57	.97 1.06	.12	NS	A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.65 .65	ns ns	





		Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	р
	С.	Upgrade, Session I:		•				B(1) vsD(2)	.37	NS
		(1) Male (2) Female	4.68 4.07	19 29	.65 1.08	2.18	<.05	C(2)vsD(2)	.25	NS
	p.	Equivalent, Session I:		-	,					
		(1) Male (2) Female	4.40 4.14	5 29	.80 .97					•
	5. Be:	ing able to work close	- •					-	r~	
4	· to	home			1					
	A٠	Entry - Male:		>			,			
		(1) Session I	3.82	67	1.30	.961	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	1.54	NS
•		(2) Session II	3.58	48	1.27			A(2)vsB(2)	. 42	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	.24	NS
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.45 3.47	49 57	1.21 1.31	.09	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.50	NS
	,		3.47	٠,	1.31					
	С.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.74	19	1.29			B(1)vsD(2)	.25	NS
		(2) Female	3.31	29	1.09	1.20	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.23	NS
,	D.	Equivalent, Session I:								
	٠.	(1) Male	3.20	5	1.33					
		(2) Female	3.38	29	1.10					
,	6. A g	good hospitalization an			•			- •		
3	.A.	Entry - Male:		•			•			
1	•	(1) Session I	4.45	6.7	.87	1.62	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	2.69	<.01
		(2) Session II	4.14	48	1.11	••••		A(2)vsB(2)	.13	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	. 34	NS
	•	(1) Session I	3.92 4.17	49 57	1.23 1.14	1.09	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.94	NS
,	_	(2) Session II	4.17	٠,	1.14					
,-	С.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	4.37	19	.93			B(1)vsD(2)	1.33	NS
; t		(2) Female	4.17	29	.99	\ *	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.40	NS
î	D.	Equivalent, Session I:				V	•	,	-	,
*.	٠.	(1) Male	5.00	5 29	.00					
		(2) Female	4.28	29	.00	•				
	7. A ;	olan to pay doctor's bi	.11s		'				ı	
		Entry - Male:		- ′		3.00		,		
	•••	(1) Session I	4.16	67	. 87± ³	7.7	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	4.65	<.001
		(2) Session II	4.24	49	1.0%			A(2) vs B(2)	.86	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:	.	<u> </u>		ŧ	,	A(1)vsC(1)	1.63	NS
,		(1) Session I	2.92	49,5	76	3.87	. 01	B(1) vsC(2)		NS
		(2) Session II	4.05	57	1.20	3.0/	<.01	•	.52	
	C.	Upgrade, Session I:					ļ	B(1)vsD(2)	1.98	NS
		(1) Male (2) Female	3.68	19	1.22	.17	NS	C(2) vsD(2)	.10	NS
	_		3.62	29	1.24		ŀ			
	D:	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	4 40		90					
		(2) Female	4.40 3.66	5 29	.80 1.18					
		1		,	2.20		ı			

_	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	ţ	p
8.	Being able to keep the joing as long as you want	5					• •		
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.63 4.39	67 48	.73 .78	1.63	NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.51	Ņ: Ņ:
	B. Entry - Female:		49_		.78	ŃS	A(1) vsC(1)	1.26	N
	(2) Session II C. Upgrade, Session I:	—4-,66	57 ,	68	•,,,		B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	54 1.04	N N
	(1) Male (2) Female →	4.37 4.66	19 29	.93 .76	1.14	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.45	N -
	D. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	4.20 4.34	5 29	.98 .84	•		•		
9.	Being able to take pride in what you do			~					
٠	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.57 4.12		.78	2.63	<.01	A(1) vsB(1) A(2) vsB(2)	.58 • .24	N N
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.47 4.17	49 57	99 1.04	1.46	NS	A(1) vsC(1) B(1) vsC(2)	1.16	N N
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	4.79 4.52	19 29	.52 .77	1.32	NS	B(1).vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	70 , .91	N N
	D. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.80 4.31	5 29	1.47 .91	•		,	•	
10.	Being able to do the type work you always wanted to	do .	•				. •	٠.	
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.46 4.46	67 .49	.94 .78	.05	NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.40 .49	N N
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.53 4.54	49 57	.79 .75	.09	NS	A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.71 .44	N N
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	4.63 4.45	·19 29	.74 .81	.77	NS	B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	1.20 .68	N
	D. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.00 4.28	5 29	1.26 1.05	•				,
11.	Knowing there is a good chance of being promoted						•,	₹.	
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.67 4.51	67 49	.68 .75	1.17	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.30	N
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.63 4.52	49 57	, 69 . 79	.70	ns'	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.10 .37 -	N N N
	(2) 06881011 11	4.34	1	• / 7			B(1) vsD(2)	.57°	N N

				•		,				_	•
		•	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	′ p	Additional Comparisons	t	
•	_		The sale Constant						Comparisons		
		U.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	4.74	19	.64					
			(2) Female	4.43	28	1.02	1.15	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.29	NS
		_	• •		,-0						• •
		υ.	Equivalent, Session (1) Male	4 .60	5, -	- 80	·			•	
			(2) Female	4.72	29	.64					
			(2) 100020	.,					,		•
	12.	Fe	eling proud of your	job				÷	,		
		Α.	Entry - Male:			;					•
			(1) Session I	4.25	67	1.10	.71	· NS	A(1)vsB(1):	_2.10	<.05
	-		(2) Session II	4.10	. 49	1′.07			A(2)vsB(2)	1.10	NS
<i>t</i>		В.	Entry - Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	.75•	NS /
			(1) Session I	4.63	49	.69	1.65	NS	1		
			(2) Session II	4.33	57	1.06			B(1)vsC(2)	.98	NS
		c.	Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	2.13	<.05
			(1) Male	4.47	19	1.14	.08.	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.84	NS
			(2) Female	4.45	29	.93					
		D.	Equivalent, Session	1:	r						
			(1) Male	4.60	5		•		ł		
		٠	(2) Female	4.24	29	∙.90				-	. •.
	13.		lot of time off with	out					1		
		, lo	sing pay	•	1					*	
		A.	Entry - Male:		•						
			(1) Session I	2.90/	67	1.46	1.71	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.13	NS
			(2) Session II	2.46	49	, 1.10		,	A(2)vsB(2)	1.32	NS
		В.	Entry '- Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	.40	NS
			(1) Session I	2.86	49	1.44	.26	NS			NS
			(2) Session II	2.78'	57	1.32	•	,	B(1)vsC(2)	.02	
		c.	Upgrade, Session I:	,					B(1)vsD(2)	.51	NS.
			(1) Male	3.05	. 19	1.47	. 47	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.50	NS
			(2) Female	2.86	29	1.25		-			
1	•		Equivalent, Session		_				-	^	
,			(1) Male	3.00 2.69	5	1.41	•	•	ر ا		, •
•	•		(2) Female	• `	29	, 1.32			'		
ř.	14.		ing able to buy a lot	t' ,		•				,	
		of	new things	• •	•	•				?	
		A.	Entry - Male:			- 00	<i>:</i> .		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	2 07	2 NE
' <u>*</u>	•		(1) Session I	3.10	67	1.28	.63	NS	}	2.07	< . 05
			(2) Session II	2.95°	48	•97 [,]		,`	A(2)vsB(2)	.61	NS
, 1		В.	Entry - Female:		٠,,		• •		A(1)vsC(1)	.47	NS
• ,	,		(1) Session I	2.61.	49 - 57	1.21	.91	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.09	NS
٠.			(2). Session II	2.82	- 57	.1.18	· ,	•	Ε	,	
	•	C.	Upgrade, Session I:		,	. 03		. ,.	B(Y)vsD(2)	1.49	NS
			(1) Male	3.26. 2.59	19 29	1.21 1.10	1.96	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.48	NS ·
•			(2) Female		29,		• ,	•	,		
		D.	Equivalent, Session		_	. 1 '02		,	, 1	•	
			(1) Male (2) Female	3.60 3.03	5 29	1.02 1.16		•	•	*e *	•
* .									. •		•
	15.		ing able to buy thing	38	•						•
			have always wanted				•				٠.
,		A.	Entry - Male:	. 2 . 4	/ 7	1 20	•		A (1) p (1)	57	NS
,			(1) Session I	3.49 · 3.31	67 - 48	1.32 .91	. 7.9	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	• 57 _,	
		-	(2) Session II	3.31	. 40	. , ,		•	A(2) váB(2)	.53	NS ,
-			•				>		• •	.4	,

		Goals	Mean	/ N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	р
	В.	Entry - Female:				-		A(1)vsC(1)	.05	NS
		(1) Session I	3.35	49	1.38	.27	NS	i		
		(2) Session II	3.42	57	1.22		110	B(1)vsC(2)	22	NS
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	1,04	NS
	٠.	(1) Male	3.47	19	1.19	٠.		· ·	1 10	NS
-		(2) Female	3.28	29	1.26	.53	• NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.18	, MD
•	T	Equivalent, Session I:							_	•
	.ע	(1) Male	3.80 -	- 5	.75				<u> </u>	-
		(2) Female ·	3.69	29	1.39					
			p				*			
16.		ing able to buy things need						ĺ		
	A.	Entry - Male:	-					<i>'</i>		
		(1) Session I	4.27	67	1.04	1.20	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	2.10	<.05
		(2) Session II 🙉	4.04	48	.93	1.20	No	A(2)vsB(2)	.00	NS
•	В.	Entry - Female:	ン					}		_
	-•	(1) Session I	3.82	49	1.24	.92	NS	A(1)vsC(1)	. 40	NS
		(2) Session II	4.03	57	1.13	.92	ИЭ	B(1)vsC(2)	.08	NS
	c	Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	1.28	NS
	٠.	(1) Male	4.16	19 ^	1.04			1		
		(2) Female	3.79	29	1.21	1.05	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.24	NS
	Τ.	T		•						
	•ע	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	4.00	5	.89	•				
		(2) Female	4.17	29	1.05			, ,		`
•	1/3	ople who think my work good Entry - Male:	21	J ₆₇	02			A(1)vsB(1)	1.90	NS
		(1) Session I	• 4.24		.93	2.38	<.05	A(T)ABP(T)	1.90	No
		(2) Session II	3.78	47	1.07			A(2)vsB(2)	. 59	NS
	/B.	Entry - Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	.52	NS
	ŀ	(1) Session I	3.88	49	1.08	.16	NS	4	1.15	NS
		(2) Session II	3.91	57	1.06			B(1)vsC(2)		No
- 1	«C.	Upgrade, Session I:		_				,B(1)vsD(2)	. 59	NS
- 1		(1) Male	4.11	19	1.07	.20	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.50	NS
- 1		(2) Female	4.17	29	1.08					
	D.	'Equivalent, Session I:								
- 1		(1) Male	4.20	5	.75					
- 1		(2) Female	3.72	29	1.14					•
þ8.		ing able to work with ople who like me								
1	A.	Entry - Male:							•	
. :[(1) Session I	4.00	67	1.05	2.51	<.05	A(1)vsB(1)	1.86	NS.
1		(2) Session II	3.44	47	1.26	-,)1	-, 0,	A(2)vsB(2)	₂ 24	NS
1	B.	Entry - Female:						i		
1.		(1) Session I	3.59	49	1.28 -	.82	NS	A(1)vsC(1)	.58	NS
1		(2) Session II	3.38	57	1.26	.02	110	B(1)vsC(2)	.99	NS
1	C.	Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	1.42	NS
I	٠.	(1) Male	3.84	19	.93	.07	110		2.46	<.02
!		(2) Female	3.86	29	.90	.07	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	2.40	-,02
	ח	Equivalent, Session I:	,				,			
	٠.	(1) Male	4.20	5	.75		1			
		(2) Female	3.17	29	1.18		;	,		
								•		

		Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	P
19.	Be	ing able to work with			`	1		, ,		
	pe	ople who are friendly		•						•
	A.	Entry - Male:	:				•	, , , , , ,		
		(1) Session I	4.24 4.47	67 48	1.04 .79	1.32	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	. 35	NS ·
	_	(2) Session II	4.47	40	. 13			A(2)veb(2)	2.12	<.05
	_B.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	-4.31	49	97	-		A(1)vsC(1)	.28	- NS -
		(2) Session II	4.10	- 57	.96	1.:05	NS	B(1)ysC(2)	. /2	NS
-	c.	Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	1.02	NS
		(1) Male	4.32	19	.92	.60	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.25	NS
		(2) Female	4.14	29	1.01	•••	1	0(2)102(2)		
	D.	Equivalent, Session I:	,	_						
		(1) Male (2) Female	4.80 4.07	5 29	.40 .98					,
	_		4.07	2)	• > 0				•	
20.		ing able to talk and ve fun with the other								
		ople working there				•				• •
	Α.	Entry - Male:		•		•		•		
		(1) Session I	3.73	67	1.33	1:53	NS	A(1)ysB(1)	2.08	· <.05.
		(2) Session II	3.35	48	1.21	-,• 55		A(2)vsB(2)	2.12	<.05
	В.	Entry - Female:	, , , , ,				`	A(1)vsC(1)	.01	ุ้ทุร
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.20 2.85	49 57	1.34 1.14	1.41	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	46	, NS
,	٠.	· • ·	2.05	31	1.14			B(1) vsD(2)	.54	NS
	. C.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.74	19	i.07					
•	•	(2) Female .	3.34	29	1.21	1.12	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.93	. NS
•	D.	Equivalent, Session I:								•
		(1) Male	4.20	5	1,60		•	5	,	
		(2) Female	3.03	29	1.27					
21.		ing able to work with			,		•	•		
	pe	ople who think as much								
	οf	me 'as my friends do							•	
		me as my friends do							•	
		Entry - Male:	:3.70	67	1.20	1 20	NC	A(1)vsB(1)	1.89	NS
		•	3.70 3.39	67 48	1.20 1.27	1.30	NS	<i>2</i> %	1.89 1.69	ns ns
	Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female:	3.39	48	1.27	1.30	NS	A(2)vsB(2)	1.69	NS
	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.39 3.29	48 49	1.27	1.30	ns ns	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1)	1.69	ns Ns
	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.39	48	1.27	•		A(2) vsB(2) A(1) vsC(1) B(1) vsC(2)	1.69 .51 .20	NS NS NS ;
	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I:	3.39 3.29 2.96	48 49 57	1.27 1.29 1.29	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20	NS NS NS
,	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89	48 49	1.27	•		A(2) vsB(2) A(1) vsC(1) B(1) vsC(2)	1.69 .51 .20	NS NS NS ;
	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.39 3.29 2.96	48 49 57	1.27 1.29 1.29	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20	NS NS NS
	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34	48 49 57 19 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20	ns ns ns ns
	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I:	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34	48 49 57 19 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20	ns ns ns ns
,	A. B.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34	48 49 57 19 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20	ns ns ns ns
,	A. B. C.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34	48 49 57 19 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20	ns ns ns ns
,	A. B. C. D. fr	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female supervisor who is iendly Entry - Male:	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34 4.00 3.31	48 49 57 19 29 5 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	1.69 .51 .20 .08 .11	NS NS NS NS
,	A. B. G. A. fr	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female supervisor who is iendly Entry - Male: (1) Session I	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34 4.00 3.31	48 49 57 19 29 5 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15 1.10 1.12	1.26	NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2) A(1)vsB(1)	1.69 .51 .20 .08 .11	NS NS NS NS
22.	A. B. C. A. fr	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session II (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female supervisor who is iendly Entry - Male: (1) Session II (2) Session II	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34 4.00 3.31	48 49 57 19 29 5 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15	1.26	NS NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2) A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	1.69 .51 .20 .08 .11	NS NS NS NS NS NS
22.	A. B. C. A. fr	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female supervisor who is iendly Entry - Male: (1) Session I	3.39 3.29 2.96 3.89 3.34 4.00 3.31	48 49 57 19 29 5 29	1.27 1.29 1.29 1.17 1.15 1.10 1.12	1.26	NS NS	A(2)vsB(2) A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2) A(1)vsB(1)	1.69 .51 .20 .08 .11	NS NS NS NS

RIC.

	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	p
c.	Upgrade, Session I:	,				;	B(1)vsD(2)	.01	, N
	(1) Ma1e	4.11 ′	19	1.02	.21	NS	C(2) vsD(2)	. 26	N:
	(2) Female,	4.17	29	1.05		•	,		
D.	Equivalent, Session I:		_	•	•			• •	
	(1) Male (2) Female	4.60 4.10	5 29 /	.80 .92				•	
-	- 	4.10	23	* .,					
	supervisor who treats eryone fairly		-			:	- •		-
Α.	Entry - Male:								v
	(1) Session I	4.54	67	.92	.90	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	. 46	N
٠,	(2) Session II	4.38	47	.88	•••	.,,	A(2)vsB(2)	.99	N
В.	Entry - Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	55	N
	(1) Session I	4.61	49	.72	2.38	<.05		• •	
	(2) Session II	4.19	57	1.01	,		B(1) vsC(2)	1.18	N
c.	Upgrade, Session I:	, , , ~	• •	00	/	2	B(1)vsD(2)	. 25	N
	(1) Male (2) Female	4.47 4.79	19 29	88 .48	1.58	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.85	N
	•	7117	2)	. 40					•
υ.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	4.80	5	`.40					
	(2) Female	4.66	29	.71					-
who	supervisor who tells yo en you have done a good b on something		•			,	,		
Α.	Entry - Male:	3,90	. 7	1 00			4 (1) B (1)	1.05	N
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.93	67 47	1.09 1.05	.17	NS	A(1)vsB(1)		
ъ	Entry - Female:						A(2) vs $B(2)$.40	N
D.	(1) Session I	4.10	49	.93	:		A(1)vsC(1)	.73	N
	(2) Session II	4.01	57	.96	•45	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.90	N
c.	Upgrade, Session I: 3				•		B(1)vsD(2)	.01	N
	(1) Male	4.11	1 9	1.07	.64	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.81	N
	(2) Female	4.31.	29	1.05	.04	113	C(2) VSD(2)	.01	14
D.	Equivalent, Session I:								
	(1) Male	4.20	5	. 75		- 1			
	(2) Female	4.10	29	.84		ļ			
	supervisor who helps who reced helps who	eŭ _		,			•		
Α.	Entry - Male:				`	ł	•		
ĺ	(1) Session'I	4.55	67.	.92	. 43	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.03	N
	(2) Session II	4.47	4.8	.76	•		A(2)vsB(2)	. 40	N
В.	Entry - Female:				•		A(1)vsC(1)	1.13	N:
	(1) Session I	4.71 4.54	49 57	.67 .83	1.13	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.76	N
_	(2) Session II	5.74	٠,	•03		- 1			
,C	Upgrade, Session I:	4.26	19	1.12			B(1)vsD(2)	1.05	N:
	(1) Male (2) Female	4.20	29	.77	1.16	NS	C(2) vsD(2)	1.65	N
ח	(-			-			
υ.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	4.80	5	.40		• 1			
	(2) Female	4.86	29	.43		ļ			



ΥŞ

	Goals	Mean	N	3.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	, р
· 26.	A supervisor who is willing		•			1			
<	to help you with your off- the-job problems	-	•	,	-		_		
	A. Entry - Male:	2.97	67	1.48	.99	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.03	NS
	(2) Session II	2.70	48	1.20			A(2) vsB(2)	À5	<u>,NS</u>
	R. Entry - Female:		~* ·/ O				A(1)vsC(1)	1.01	NS
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	2.96 -2.58		1.44 1.38	1.32	ŅS	B(1)vsC(2)	_	_<.05
-	C. Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	.93	NS
	(1) Male	3.37	19	1.56	2.68	<.05	C(2)vsD(2)	1.28	NS
	(2) Female	2.21	• 29	1.35	غد	•	1 (2)		
	D. Equivalent, Session I:	3.20	_	1 /7	٠, ١٩				
	(1) Male (2) Female	2.66	5 29	1.47 1.27					
/						•			
2/	-Knowing your family is pro of the work you do	oud		•	,				
	A. Entry - Male:	•							
	(1) Session I	4.04	67 4.7	1.23	1.98	<.05	A(1)vsB(1)	. 38	NS
	(2) Session II	3.54	, 47	71.21	.* •		A(2)vsB(2)	.05	NS
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.96	. 49	1.12			A(1)vsC(1)	.47	NS
	(2) Session II	3.56	57	1.18	1.74	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	-1.02	, NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I:					ť	B(1)vsD(2)	1.52	NS
	(1) Male	3.89	19	1.12	.21	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.38	NS
	(2) Female	3.97	29	1.10	•	,		1.55	
	D. Equivalent, Session I:		_	-					
	(1) Male (2) Female	4.80 3.55	5 29	.40 1.13		•	• •		•
28.	Knowing your friends respe you for the work you do	ct	•	,		-	•		
•	A. Entry - Male:								٠
*	(1) Session I	4.10	67	1.07	2.62	<.01	A(1)vsB(1)	4.01	<.01
* *	. (2) Session II	3.54	48	1.17	2.02	1.01	A(2)vsB(2)	1.88	- NS
1	B. Entry - Female:		`		. ;		A(1)vsC(1)	.73	, NS
	(1) Session I(2) Session II	3.22 3.08	49 57	1.27 ' 1.26	.54	ัทร			NS
	•	-	,,	1.20			B(1) vsC(2) (.39	
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.89	19	1.12	•	e	B(1)vsD(2)	.92	. NS
	(2) Female	3.10	29	1.35	2.07	<.05	C(2)vsD(2)	.45	ns 🕶
'	D. Equivalent, Session I:							,	_
	(1) Male (2) Female	4.40 2.93	5 20	.80	o		•	•	•
20		2.93	29 , <u>:</u>	1.46	•	,		•	
	Having a job that is interesting to your friends		, -						
•	A. Entry - Male:	,		•		•	••		. '•
• . •	(1) Session I	2.72	67	1.34	. 97	NS I	A(1)vsB(1)	2.80	<.01
•	. (2) Session II	2148	47	1.04			A(2)vsB(2)	.14	NS _
14			_		•	,	•	•	•

•		-							•			1
			Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	, p	Additional Comparisons	įt	· p	_{{}}
		В.	Entry - Female:	,		_			A(1)vsC(1)	.23	NS	- /
			(1) Session I	2.04	49	1.18	1.76	· NS				'
•			(2) Session II	2.45	57	1.21	i į		B(1)vsC(2)	.10	NS	
		С.	Upgrade, Session I:			• •	, ž.,		B(1)vsD(2)	.16	NS	
			(1) Male (2) Female	·2.63 2.07	19 29	1.49 1.14	1.44	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	25	· / NS	1
	•	_		•	23	1.14	•				/ •	
		D.	Equivalent, Session (3.60	5 (1.50	, , ,		-		/	
			(2) Female'	2.00	29	·8h				*	<u> </u>	_
,	30.	Be:	ing something you can				•	-	<u></u>	-\		
		ta:	lk to your friends abo	out		,	•	:		*	ı	
•		af	ter work					`•		.' '		~
		A.	Entry - Male:	,		- •			· · · · · · · ·)	
			(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.06 2.73	67 46	1.38 1.16	1.27	NS	A(1) vs B(1)	2,57	. 2015م	
		_		2.075	, 40	1.10			A(2)vsB(2)	.75	X NS	
		В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	. 2.43	- 49	1.16		,	A(1)vsC(1)	.43	, NS	
			(2) Session II	2.56		1.18	.57	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	2.16	<.05	
4		c.	Upgrade, Session I:	,			٠		B(1)vsD(2)	. 46	NS	
		•	(1) Male /	3.21	19	1.10	.36	NS	C(2) vsD(2)	2.38	<.05	
		,	(2) Female 😽	-3. 07	29	1.39	. 50		,C(2) VSD(2)	2.50	, .09	•
		D.	Equivalent, Session 1				, •				•	
•	,		(1) Male	3.60	5	1.50	•	•				
	21	_	(2) Female	` 2.31	/ 29	.95					•	
	31.		ing able to learn new ings that will help y					. 🔨	, ,		•	
			t a better job later	-	٠	4	1 •					
		Α.	Entry - Male:	•					•		, ,	
		_	(1) Session I	4.63	67 [^]	f. 75	.05	NS	A(1) usB(1)	.47	NS.	•
			(2) Session II	4, 68	47	/.58	•03		A(2)vsB(2)	. 59	NS	
		В.	Entry - Female:		,,,				• A(1) vsC(1)	.96	NS	
			(1) Session I (2) Session II	, 4.69 , 4.75	49 57	.73 .65	.44	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.61	NS	
	-	_	, \$			•05			B(1)vsD(2)	1,11	· NS ·	
*	,	٠.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	. 4.42	19	99						
	,		(2) Female	4. 79	29	.61	1.57	NS	C(2) vsD(2)	.48	NS	
		p.	Equivalent, Session	[: -					• •		٠	•
			(1) Male	4.80	` 5	.40		٠	*		٠.	4.
		*/	(2) Female	4.86	_. 29	- 43	٠.					
	32.		ing able to learn to		,		·	` 1	•	. –		
			something that is ally hard			•						
			•				•		,			•
•		Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I	3.85	67	1.30	,	,,,	A(1)vsB(1)	.02	NS	
			(2) Session II	4.44	47	4.32	1.05	NS	A(2)vsB(2)	.62	NS	
		В.	Entry - Female: -	_			••		A(1) vsC(1)	.94	NS	
			(1) Session I	3.86	49	1.09	1.01	ทร์				
,			(2) Session II	4:07	57	1.05	_		B(1)vsC(2)	2.10	` < .05	
	'	c.	Upgrade, Session I	, 14	10	~ ′ 00		İ	B(1) vsD(2)	.15	NS	
	•		(1) Male · (2) Female .	4.16 4.34	19 29	.99 `.76	.72	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.71	NS	
		n								-		
		υ.	Equivalent, Session (1) Male	3.40	5	1.50		1	· .			
•	•		(0) = 1	ь 3.90	. 29	`1.16		;	. ,			
			•			•					97	

RATINGS OF GOALS: LIKERT-TYPE CONDITION (Responses of Entry-Level Subjects Participating in Both Sessions)

Goals,	Mean	Ň	Standard Deviation	t	- P
. Good pay		•	•		
A. Entry - Male:					
(1) Session I	4.50	32	.71		
(2) Session II	4.59	32	.61	1.00	NS
B. Entry - Female:	,		•		,
(1) Session I	4.29	41	» .92		
(2) Session II	4.31	41	.96	.12	NS
Good working condit		-			
A. Entry - Male:			•	4	
(1) Session I	3.68	32	1.28		•
(2) Session II	3.37	32	1.26	1.66	NS
B. Entry - Female:		•	. .		•
(1) Session I	3.31	41	1.19		
(2) Session II	, 3.63	41	1.09	1.41	* NS
A good vacation each	h vear		•		
A. Entry - Male:	,				
(1) Session I	4.12	32 '	1.07	•	
(2) Session L	3.96	32	.99	.92	NS
B. Entry - Female.	,	72	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
(1) Session I	3.22	41	1.23	•	
(2) Session II	3.65	.41	1.13	2.03	<.05
•	A Section of the		••		
A good retirement p	tan 🛶 .	. •	;		
A. Entry - Male:		· .		`	
(1) Session I	4.31	32	1.12	57	NS
(2) Session II	4.21	. 32	1.00		
B. Entry - Female:		,,	1 00	•	
(1) Session I	4.19	41	1.00 سېږ	.52	NS
(2) Session II	4.09	41	1.11	,	
Being able to work of	close .		And the second		•
A. Entry - Male:	,	t	•		
(1) Session I	3.56	32	1.39		
(2) Session II	3.68	32	1.28	.75	NS
B. Entry - Female:	,			1	•
(1) Session I	3.46	41	1.24		
(2) Session II	3.36	-41	1.35	.48	NS
(2, 565525 11	3,33	-			

	Goals	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	р
	good hospitalization lan				,	
A	. Entry - Male:					
	(1) Session I	4.31	32	.99	•	
	(2) Session II	4.03	32	1.23	1.42	NS
В	. Entry - Female:					
	(1) Session I	3.85	41	1.21		
•	(2) Session II	4.02	41	1.27	1.00	NS
. A	plan to pay doctor's bill	9		•		
A	. Entry - Male:					
	(1) Session I	4.06	32	1.01 -		
	(2) Session II	4.21	32	1.09	.75	NS
В	. Entry - Female:					,
	(1) Séssion I	3.58	41	1.22		
•	(2) Session II	3.92	41	1.19	1.46	NS
	eing able to keep the jobs long as you wan <u>t</u>				,	
A	•	4	<u> </u>	_		
	(1) Session I	4.37	32	.90	.47	NS
	. (2) Session II	4.28	32	<u>,</u> 85	*	
В	7. *	٠			٠ ٠٠	٠,
	(1) Session I	4.56	41	.80	. 17	NS
	(2) Session II	4.58	41	.77.,	• 17	110
	eing able to take pride in hat you do				*	
A	. Entry - Male;		,			
	(1) Session I	4.56	32	.75	3.57	<.01
	(2) Session II	4.03	32	1.09	3.37	
3	. Entry - Female:			•		
	(1) Session I	~ 4.43	41	, 1.00	1.53	NS
	(2) Session II	4.09	41	1.04	1.55	,,,
	eing able to do the type ork you always wanted to o	•	•			
d					• .	,
d A	. Entry - Male:					
d A	. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	< 4 . 50	32	.95		
	(1) Session I	4.50 4.46	32 32	.95	,16	, NS
A	(1) Session I (2) Session II	•		•	,16	, NS
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	•		•	,16	ns

					´ •		
	(Goals	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	P
11.	Know	ing there is a good chan	ce ˙		-	,	
•	of b	eing promoted			1		
	A. :	Entry - Male:					
		(1) Session I	4.68	32	.69	2 10	. 05
		(2) Session II	. 4.40	32	.83	2.18	<.05
	В.	Entry - Female:		• ,	,		
		(1) Session I	4.68	41	.65		
		(2) Session II	4.41	, 41	.86	1.86	NS
12.	Feel:	ing proud of your job	,				
	Α.	Entry - Male:			•		
		(1) Session I .	4.25	32	1.01		
		(2) Session II	3.93	32	1.16	1.77	NS
	в.	Entry - Female:					
		(1) Session I	4.65	41	.69		
		(2) Session II	4.48	41	.92	1.12	'ns
13.		ot of time off without ng pay.	•				
	Α.	Entry - Male: ·			•		•
		(1) Session I	2.53	32	1.29		
		(2) Session II	2.40	32	1.01	. 54	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:					
		(1) Session I	2.85	41	1.40		•
•		(2) Session II	2.56	41	1.24	1,09	NS
14.		g able to buy a lot of things			/	•	,
	Α.	Entry - Male:			/ .		
		(1) Session I	2.84	32	1/13		•
		(2) Session II	2.90	32	/.81	.32	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:		,	/		
عبر ،		(1) Session I	2.56	41,	/ 17.20		
٠,٠	•	(2) Session II	2.73	41	1.09	.90	NS
15.		g able to buy things I always wanted		./	/		. 4
	A.	Entry - Male:	•	/			
		(1) Session I	3.15	3/2	1.27	•	
		(2) Session II	3.43	/32	.84	1.20	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:			. :		٠.,
•		(1) Session I	3.24 /	41	1.37		•
		(2) Session II	3.41/	41	1.16	.84	йs
			. /				
			/				

	Goals	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	ťt	P
6.	Being able to buy things I need	•	. ,			•
	A. Entry - Male:	-		•		
•	(1) Session I	4.18	32	1.14		,
	(2) Session II	4.03	32	1.06	.89	NS
	B Entry - Female:			*		
	(1) Session I	3.75	41	1.22		•
	(2) Session II	3.90	41	1.20	,72	NS .
7.	Being able to work with peop who think my work is good		- ·-	2.20		•
•	A. Entry - Male:					• -
	(1) Session I	3.96	32	1.03		
	(2) Session II	3.75	32 '	1.07	1.09	NS
	B. Entry - Female:					
	(1) Session I	3.85	; 41 °	1.08		
	(2) Session II	3.82	41	1.04	.11 ·	"NS
3.	Being able to work with	*			•	~~*
	people who like me	1		•	j.	7
	A. Entry - Male:	2 75	20			
	(1) Session I	3.75	32	1.13	.44	NS
	(2) Session II	3.65	.32 .•	1.23		
	B. Entry - Female:	2 (1	•	1	•	٠,
٠,	(1) Session I	3,61	41	1.26	.2:15	<.05
	(2) Session II	3.22	41 `	, 1.25		
•	Being able to work with peop who are friendly	le .	•	· , •	/4	, *
	'A'. Entry - Male:		-	· ' *	,	•
	(1) Session I ,	₹3.96	32	1.09	,,,,	, ,,
	(2) Session II	4.31	32	85	1.61	NS
	B. Entry - Female:	* /	•	•		• ;
	(1) Session I	4.34	41	÷€96′		4.
ĸ.	(2) Session II.	4.00	41	1:00	1.97	ŃS
•	Being able to talk and have fun with the other people	1,4	. •	•	,	
	working there		•		:: <i>.</i> , ·	* ;
•	A. Entry - Male:	* . 3 37	: 32 [,]	1.45		
٠,	(1) Session I	3.37	32	1.14	. 27	ns '
	(2) Session II	3,31		1.14	•	•
	B. Entry - Female:	3:22	41	1.37	. , ,	٠.
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	2.85	.41	1.13	1.85	NS .
			•		٠,	,
	ς·		,		-	\

<u></u> -							<i>—</i> /
	. Goals		Mean	N	Standard : Deviation	't' '	
21.	Being able to wo	rk with peo	ple	•			/
	who think as muc	h of me as	mŷ.	٠.,			,
•	friends, do		• ` ` *	•	•		
	A: Entry - Malè	3	`# 2 71	۸'n	1.05		
	. (1) Session		3.71	3 2	1.05	2.08	<.05
•	. (2) Session	•	3.31	32 .	1.25	r -	
•	B. Entry - Fema	` *			/		
	(1) Session		3.31	41	1.29	2.71	<.05
	(2) Session	II A	2.68	41	1.26		
22.	A supervisor who friendly	is					•
	A. Entry - Male	•			/ /	٠.	
•	(1) · Session		3.90	32	1.25	•	•
	(2) Session		3.71	32	1.17	1.00	. NS
	B. Entry - Fema		3.71	32	/ · · · · ·		
	(1) Session			41 /	1.09		•
	• •	,	<i>,</i> ∮ .04.	F.	-	1.02	NS
	(2) Session	11	3.80	41/	1.22		
23.	A supervisor who everyone fairly	treats •		$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty}$			
:	A. Entry - Male	:		<i>!</i> ·	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•	
	(1) Session	Ī	4.40	32	1.01		
	· (2) Session	11 .	4.2	32	.97	1.23	, NS
	B. Entry - Fema	le: '	· / .	•	• •		,
•	(1) Session	Ι,	4.51	41	.81		
	(2) Session	II.	4.26	41	. 94	1.491.	· NS
	•	,			• •	, <u> </u>	•
24.	A supervisor who when you have do		/ · · · ·		r	•	
	job on something	··: /	<i>!</i>			, -	•
	A. Entry - Male		•	4		:	
•	(1) Session	t ` / /	3.87	32	1.07		
	(2) Session	ui /,	. 3.25	32	1.08	, • 54	NS
,	B. Entry - Remai	le:'·/,`	<i>'</i> •	٠.		,	
	(1) Session	t. <i> </i> *, ,	3.97	41	.96		•
~	(2) Session I	i / i	3.87	·'41 .	1.02	. 47	NS .
25,.	A supervisor who	helps when	***		•	4 '	•
	you need help	/ *.		•		• •	
	A. Entry - Male	:/. ·	•	¢ ,	•	'. •	
	(1) Session	ţ ;	4.46	32	98	20	» NIC
	(2) Session	II , , ,	. 4.50	32	.76	.20	NS ·
	B. Entry - Femal	ĺe:		• .		•	<i>i</i> '
	(1) Session 1	Ī	4.75	41	.62	1 22	•
	(2) Session 1	ıı .	4.56	41	.80 ~ `	1.38	ns,
á	(4)		· ·				

	Goals	Mean	N .	Standard Deviation	t	р
26.	A supervisor who is willi to help you with your off job problems			• •	,	
	A. Entry - Male:	•				1
	(1) Session I	2.81	32	1.14		
	(2) Session, II	2.59	32	1.18	1.04	NS
	B. Entry - Female:					
	(1) Session I	3.04	41	1.44		
	(2) Session II	2.46	41	1.26	2.58	<.05
27.	Knowing your family is proof the work you do	coud	•	•	1	
•	A. · Entry - Male:					
	(1) Session I	3.84	32	1.32		
	(2) Session II	3.50	32	1.24	1.40	NS
	B. Entry - Female:					
	(1) Session I	3.85	41	1.17		
	(2) Session II	3.48	41	1.07	1.75	NS
			-			
28.	Knowing your friends resp you for the work you do	ect			_	·
	A. Entry - Male:					
	(1) Session I	3.93	32	. 1.07	2.43	<.05
,	(2) Session II	3.31	32	1.03		
	B. Entry - Female:	٠, ٠				•
	(1) Session I	3.12	41	1.26	1.12	NS
	(2) Session II	2.90	41	1.28	1.12	140
29.	Having a job that is interesting to your frien	ıds				
	A. Entry - Male:	•		ş		•
	(1) Session I	2.37	32′.	1.10	.04	NC
.;	(2) Session II	2.53	32	.91	. 86	NS
	B. Entry - Female:	,			•	*
	(1) Session I .	2.04	41/	1.13	1 50	νic
	(2) Session II	2.36	41	1.06	,, 1.50	ŃS
30.	Being something you can to your friends about aft work			,		
•	A. Entry - Male:				•	
1	(1) Session I	2.793	32	1.31		
	(2) Session LI	2.78	32	1.23	.62	NS
	B. Entry - Female:	•	٠.			
	(1) Session I	2.36	41	1.11		
	(2) Session II	2.58	41	1.18	1.08	NS

	Goals	Mean		Standard	t	p
	GOZIS			Deviation		<u> </u>
31.	Being able to learn new thir that will help you get a be job later	ngs tter				`
	A. Entry - Male:					
	(1) Session I	4.68	32	.69	22	NS
	(2) Session II	4.65	32	.60	.22	NO
	B. Entry - Female:		•	•		
	(1) Session I •	4.73	41	.74	- 1	
	(2) Session II	4.70	41	.75	.14	NS
32.	Being able to learn to do something that is really ha	rd			•	
	A. Entry - Male:				•	
	(1) Session I	3.84	32	1.19	/2	N
	(2) Session II	3.75	32	1.01	.43	NS
,	B. Entry - Female:					
	(1) Session I	3.80	41	1.00	1.56	NS
	(2) Session II	4.07	41	1.01		

Appendix G
RATINGS OF GOALS: FORCED-CHOICE CONDITION

	·			•			<u>~</u>		
	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	P
L. G	ood pay		- 2				1		
A	. Entry - Male:				•				
	(1) Session I	2.07	71	1.21 1.37	.00	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.04	NS
_	(2) Session II	2.07	41	1.3/			A(2)vsB(2)	.31	NS
В	. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	1.86	65	1.07	,		B(1)vsC(2)	2.12	<.05
	(2) Session II	2.14	64	.93	1.59	, NS	B(1)vsD(2)	3.49	<.001
С	. Upgrade, Session I:				`		C(2)vsD(2)	1.09	NS
•	(1) Male	1.70	8	.88	-		(2)	_,,,	
	(2) Female	2.38	28	1.02					
D	. Equivalent, Session I:						·.		
	(1) Male	2.43	6	1.51			1		
	(2) Female	2.66	, 30	.09			-		
	ood working conditions,								
1:	ike air conditioning	•					′ 、		•
A	. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	1.16	71	1.56			A(1)vsB(1)	.50	NS
	(2) Session II	1.13	71 41	1.51	.09	NS	1		
R	. Entry - Female:						A(2)vsB(2)	.00	NS
	(1) Session I	1.31	65	1.76		170	B(1)vsC(2)	.08	NS
	(2) Session II	1.13	64	1.52	.60	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	.82	NS
С	. Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	.82	NS
	(1) Male	.71	7	1.13					
	(2) Female	1.34	28	1.56					
D	Equivalent, Session I:	. 05	,	1 01					
	(1) Male (2) Female	1.25 1.00	6 30	1.91 1.53					
		1,00	30	1.55	•		•		
	good vacation each year				•		3		
A.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I	2.15	71	2.44		•	A(1)vsB(1)	2.58	<.02
	(2) Session II	2.38	38	.2.43	.45	NS-			
B	. Entry - Female:			*			A(2) vsB(2)	.53	NS
-	(1) Session I	3.24	65	2.38	2.62	<.01	B(1)vsC(2)	1.79	NS
	(2) Session II	2.10	64	2.46	2.02	1.01	B(1)vsD(2)	1.06	NS
C.	. Upgrade, Session I:	→ •,	,	,			C(2)vsD(2)	.62	NS
	(1) Male	3.31	7	2.01					
	(2) Female	2.26	28	2,41					
D.	Equivalent, Session I:		,	2 26			5	,	
	(1) Male (2) Female	1.66 2.67	6 30	2.36 2.49 ¹	in Land				
	. 1	2.07		, = 0.00	19				
. A	good retirement plan		مراب	. Alexan has been	man prospile .		•		
A.	Entry - Male:	2			•			,	•
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.10 3.14	71 41	1.49 1.37	.12	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	. 56	NS
	•	J. 14	41	1,3/			A(2) vsB(2)	.18	NS
в.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	2.97	65	1.22			B(1)vsC(2)	1.68	NS
	(2) Session II	3.19	64	1.41	96	NS	B(1) vsD(2)	1.84	NS
	•		•	· · -		ŀ	· · · == ·= /		

____105

	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	t	р	Additional Comparisons	t	p
C.	. Upgrade, Session I:						C(2) vsD(2)	.08	NS
	(1) Male	2.64	8	.96					,
	(2) Female •	2.47	28	ļ.51				•	ĺ
Ð.	Equivalent, Session I:			•		_		•	
•	(1) Male	3.55	6	1.83	,	•			
	(2) Female	2.43	30	1.51		٠	1		
	ing able to work close or home				-				
A.	Entry - Male:						j		
•	(1) Session I	2.43	71	1.80	1 10		A(1)vsB(1)	.63	NS
	(2) Session II	2.00	41	1.84	1.18	NS	A(2)vsB(2)	. 42	
В.	Entry - Female:		-,				1		NS
	(1) Session I	2.25	65	1.68	1 22	110	B(1)vsC(2)	. 39	ns
,	(2) Session II	1.85	64	1.68	1.33	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.58	NS
c.	Upgrade, Session I:	7		-			C(2)vsD(2)	1.03	NS
	(1) Male	3.06	7	1.42			0(2) (32(2)	8	110
	(2) Female	2.10	28	1.59				•	
D.	Equivalent, Session I:								
	(1) Male	3.33	6	1.35					·
	(2) Female	1.68	29	1.45					
p1	good hospitalization an		, ₅₋						
· A,	Entry - Male:	2:52							
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.53 3.40	71 41	1.33	.48	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	2.56	< √02
	*	3.40	41	1.46			A(2) vsB(2)	.58	NS
в.	Entry - Female:	0.01					B(1)vsC(2)	1.05	NS -
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	2.94 3.55	65 64	1.32 1.23	2.71	<.01			′ 、
	•	3.34	04	1.23	•		B(1)vsD(2)	2.06	_<,05
C.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	2 11		0.0			C(2)vsD(2)	.72	ns
	(2) Female	3.11 3.28	· 8 28	.98 1.50					
_	, ,	3.20		1.50					
υ.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	3.32		1 67					
٠	(2) Female	3.54	6 30	1.67 1.27				•	
۸.	plan to pay doctor's	3.34	50	1.2/		Ì			•
	lls .		•					·	
	, , ,			•			,		
А.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I	1.97	71	1.55			A(1)vsB(1)	2.08	<.05
	(2) Session II	2.12	41	1.25	.52	NS			
D	Entry - Female:				,	- 1	A(2)vsB(2)	1.81	NS
ь.	(1) Session I	1.46	65	1.24		1	B(1)vsC(2)	.52	NS
	(2) Session II	1.65	64	1.27	.87	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	.27	NS
C	Upgrade, Session I:	-	-				C(2)vsD(2)	.24	
٠,	(1) Male	1.13	8	1.31		1	U(2) VSD(2)	. 24	NS .
	(2) Female	1.61	28	1.18-	*	· [V
n	Equivalent, Session I:					ł			•
٥.	(1) Male .	2.17	· 6	1.67				•	
	(2) Female	1.53	30	1.12		j			



		Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	` t	Р	Additional Comparisons	t	P
		ng able to keep the job long as you want)							
	A.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I	1.94	71	1.05	1.84	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.01	N
		(2) Session II	2.33	41	1.16			A(2)vsB(2)	1.61	N
	В.	Entry - Female:		(=	1 26			B(1)vsC(2)	.54	N
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	1.93 1.99	65 64	1.26 .99	.30	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.30	N
	^	Upgrade, Session I:	_,,,	•				C(2) vsD(2)	.74	N
,	٠.	(1) Male	1.31	7	.81	_				
		(2) Female	1.78	28	1.01	•	•			
	D.	Equivalent, Session I:					•			
		(1) Male	1.43	6	1.11			İ		
		(2) Female	1.60	30	.81					
١.		ing able to take pride what you do								
	Α.	Entry - Male:							70	
		(1) Session I	4.04	71 41	1.22 1.27	3.50	<.01	A(1)vsB(1)	.78	N
		(2) Session II	3.18	41	1.27			A(2) vsB(2)	3.58	<.(
	В.	Entry - Female:	3.87	65	1.30			B(1) vsC(2)	1.89	1
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	4.02	64	1.09	.74	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	.58	ì
	C	Upgrade, Session I:	•				,	C(2)vsD(2)	2.55	· <.0
	٠.	(1) Male	4.06	8	1.04		, •			
		(2) Female	4.38	28	.84			,		
	'n.	Equivalent, Session I:							•	4
		(1) Male	3.37	6	1.54	4	•			
		(2) Female	3.71	30	1.10					
		ng able to do the type k you always wanted to	do	, ,		,				
	۸.	Entry - Male:				•	٠.	•		
						γ.	_	1 . 4		
-		(1) Session I	3.56	^71	1.55	1.02	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.07	N
-		(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.56 3.23	71 41	1.55 1.67	1.02	NS	A(1) vsB(1) A(2) vsB(2)	.07 .51	
-	в.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female:	3.23	. 41	1.67			1		N
*	в.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.23			.68	ns ns	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2)	.51	N N
	В.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II:	3.23	41 65	1.67			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56	N N
	В.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.23	41 65	1.67 1.45 1.55		NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2)	.51 .70	N N
	В.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II: Upgrade, Session I:	3.23 3.58 3.39	41 65 64	1.67 1.45 1.55		NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56	N N
-	в. С.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33	65 64 6 28	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49		NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56	N N
	в. С.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33	65 64 6 28	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49	. 68	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56	N N
-	В. С.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I:	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33	65 64 6 28	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49	. 68	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56	N N
	B. C.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33	65 64 6 28	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49	.68	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56	N N
	B. C. D.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female wing there is a good mace of being promoted Entry - Male:	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33 2.50 3.75	65 64 6 28 6 30	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49 2.04 1.25	. 68	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2) C(2) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56 1.11	N N N
	B. C. D.	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session II (2) Session II (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female wing there is a good make of being promoted Entry - Male: (1) Session I	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33 2.50 3.75	65 64 6 28 6 30	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49 2.04 1.25	.68	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2) C(2) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56 1.11	N N N
	B. C. Kno	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session II (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female wing there is a good more of being promoted Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33 2.50 3.75	65 64 6 28 6 30	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49 2.04 1.25	. 68	ns :	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2) C(2) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56 1.11	N N N
	B. C. Kno	(1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session II (2) Session II (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female wing there is a good make of being promoted Entry - Male: (1) Session I	3.23 3.58 3.39 2.92 3.33 2.50 3.75	65 64 6 28 6 30	1.67 1.45 1.55 1.72 1.49 2.04 1.25	. 68	NS :	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2) C(2) vsD(2)	.51 .70 .56 1.11	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N



_		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			• •	,	•			
		Goals	Mean	N	- S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	p
•	С	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.88 3.61	8 28	1		,	C(2)vsD(2)	.71	NS
	D	. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.83 3.43	6 30	1.07					
12	. F	eeling proud of your job	•	ji T						
•	A	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.15 3.04	71 - 41	1.39 1.37	.38	'. NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.06	NS
٠	В	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.39 3.52	65 64	1.26 1.18	. 61	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	1.88 .96 3.11	NS NS <.05
		Upgrade, Şession I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.03. 3.11	. 8 28	1.26		,	C(2)vsD(2)	1.68	NS
		Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	2.10 2.47	6 30	1.55 1.47	• •				
13.	A 10	lot of time off without sing pay	•	•	y ·:					
	A.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	.58 .82	71 41	1.58 1.83	.74	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.16	NS
	В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	• 54 √85	65 64	1.55 1:87	1.04	NS	A(2)vsB(2) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	.08 .53 .48	ns NS .NS
	c.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	.83 .36	6 28	1.86 1.28			C(2)všD(2),	.85	NS
	D.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	.00 .71	6 28	.00 1.75					,
14.	Bei nev	ing able to buy a lot of things			,			,		
	Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	.88	, 71 41	1.33 1.63	.28	MO I		2.67	<.01
	В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	1.62 1.44	65 64	1.83 1.70	· .55,	NC .	B(1)vsĆ(2)	1.42 .45 2.12	NS 'NS '<.05
		Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	1.56 1.43	8 28	1.74 1.69	• ,	' '	, •	1.53	
,		Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	1.33/ .83	6 30	1.86 1.18			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	হ



	Goals	Mean	N	s.D.	t	P	Additional Comparisons	t	p
15.	Being able to buy things I have always wanted				•				
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	1.02	71	1.48	.30	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	2.18	<.05
	(2) Session II B. Entry - Female:	1.10	41	1.47			A(2) vsB(2)	1.73	NS
	(1) Session I	1.62	´- 65	1.67	.19	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	1.20	ns _
	(2) Session II	1.67	64	1.71	• 13	No	R(1)ASD(5)	.83	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	2.50	7	1.34			C(2)vsD(2)	1.87	NS
	(2) Female	1.18	28.	1.40	•			•	
	D. Equivalent, Session I:]		
	(1) Male (2) Female	.65 1.92	6 30	.89 1.54				-	
16	•	1.92		1.54					
10.	Being able to buy things I need							*	4
-	A. Entry - Male:			•				•	
	(1) Session I	2:33	71	2.48	i.32	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	2.52	<.02
	(2) Session II	2.97	41	2.42	,		A(2)vsB(2)	.50	NS
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.38	65	2.34			B(1)vsC(2)	.01	NS
	(2) Session II	3.21	64	2.38	.38	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.23	NS ·
	C. Upgrade, Session I:		_			4	C(2)vsD(2)	1.49	NS
	(1) Male (2) Female	2.93 3.39	7 28	2.40 2.34					
	D. Equivalent, Session I:			_,_,		.	,	• '	
	. (1) Male (2) Female	.83 4.00	6 30	1.86	•	x	٠, ,		,
17.5	Being able to work with	4.00	30	2.00					
•••	people who think my work is good			•					
	A. Entry - Male:								
	.(1) Session I .(2) Session II	2.40 2.59	71 41	1.57 1.67	.59	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	59	NS
	B. Entry - Female:	2.33	41	1.07	*		A(2)vsB(2)	.44	NS
	(1) Session I	2 56	65	1.39	42	vc	B(1)vsC(2)	.૦ઈ	NS
ĺ	(2) Session II	2.45	64	1.51	42	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.02	NS.
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	2.26	. 8	1.15	•	.]	C(2)vsD(2)	.69	ns
٥	(2) Female	2.54	28.	1.12	•	-			
	D. Equivalent, Session I:			•					,
	(1) Male (2) Female	2.48 2.88	6 29	1.25 1.36		1			•
	Being able to work with people who like me	,	,	2.50	, •		,	•	
	A. Entry - Male:						•		
	 Session I Session II 	2.33 2.39	71 41	1.61	. 20	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.01	NS
	B. Entry - Female:	4.37	41	1.75		ļ	A(2) vs $B(2)$.94	ŊS
•	(1) Session I	2.63	65	1.79	1 00	,,,	B(1)vsC(2)	.70	NS
	(2) Session II	2.08.	64	1.54	1.83	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	.23 ົ	NS

		Goals	Meañ —	_ N `	S.D.	<u>ť</u>	P	Additional Comparisons	t	р
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:			7			C(2)vsD(2)	. 46	N
	•	(1) Male	3.51	8	1.33					
\$		(2) Female	2.90	28	1.52					
	n.	Equivalent, Session I:	•							
-	٠.	(1) Male	1.95	. 6	1.77			,		
		(2) Female	2.71	30	1.57		٠.			,
1 O	D.						•	[
T. 2.		ing able to work with ople who are friendly	•	,						
•					. `	•	•	1		•
	Α.	Entry - Male:	2.05							
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.95 3.90	71 41	1.42 1.46	.18	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.28	N
	_		3,30	41	1.40			A(2)vsB(2)	.68	N
	В.	Entry - Female:						B(1)vsC(2)	1.30	N
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.88	65	1.46	.68	NS	1		•
		•	3.71	64	1.32			B(1)vsD(2)	.92	N
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:		_		•		C(2)vsD(2)	.40	N
		(1) Male	4.06	8	1.21	•		Ì		
		(2) Female	4.29	28	1.14					•
	D.	Equivalent, Session I:								
		(1) Male	5.00	6	.00					
		(2) Female	4.17	30	1.18		i			
0.		ing able to talk and								
		ve fun with the other				· ,		,		
	pec	ople working there						•		
	A.	Entry - Male:	•	. 57		* *		•		
٠		(1) Session I	1.23	71	2.13.	1.33	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	. 44	N
		(2) Session II	.70	41	1.71	1.33		A(2)vsB(2)	.or	N
	В.	Entry - Female:	_		1	مه	` .			<.′0
		(1) Session I	1.40	65	2.23	1.96	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	2.28	
		(2) Session II	.70	64	1.73	1.70		B(1)vsD(2)	.66	N
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:						C(2) vsD(2)	1,47	N
		(1) Male	.00	6	.00					
		(2) Female	. 37	27	1.30,				7	
	D.	Equivalent, Session I:						•		
_	``	(1) Male	.00	6	.00					
		(2) Female	1.07	28.	/ 2.05				•	
1.	Bei	ng able to work with		٩	•		.			
	pec	ple who think as much o	f				- 1			
	me	as my friends do .					- 1			
	Α.	Entry - Male:					Ì			
			,1.90	71	1.38	.18 .	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	.40	NS
		(2) Session II	ļ.85	41	1.13	•10 .	чо	A(2)vsB(2)	1.63	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:								
		(1) Session I	1.81	65	1.29	1 60	,, l	B(1)vsC(2)	.30	NS
		(2) Session II	1.43	64	1.33	1.60	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.22	NS
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	.70	. NS
		(1) Male	2.63	8	.99		1	1.	*	
•		(2) Female	1.71	28	1.44	,		*, -		
	D.	Equivalent, Session I:	•					•	_	
		(1) Male	2.17	6	1.34		1	_	٠,	
		(2) Female	1.47	30	1.18		- 1	•	,	,
		,	_	-			•	•		



_	Go	als .	Mean	, N	S, D.	į t	Р	Additional Comparisons	t	р
22.	A supe	ervisor who is	•			•		\	-	
		try - Male:	•					. (1) (1)	,	N.C
	: :) Session I) Session II	3.07 2.34	71 41	1.15	3.03	<.01	A(1) vsB(1)	.70 ,	
			. 2.34	41	1.51	. •		A(2)vsB(2)	. 84	NS
		try - Female:) Session I	2.92	65	1.27	1	NC	B(1) vsC(2)	. 14	NS
		Session II 📞	2.54 .	64	1.11	., 1.75	NS.	B(1) ysD(2)	. 39	NS
	C. Up	grade, Session I:		1		1		C(2) vsD(2)	.21	NS
•		Male .	3.13	8 20	.93 1.12					
) Female	2.86	28	1.12					
•		ivalent, Session Male	2.83	6	1.07				, A3	
) Female	3.03	30	1 25			فريها ال		
23.	•	ervisor who treats	,	43	ŕ		•			
		try - Male:	. 2 11	71	1 02			A(1)vsB(1)	2.54	<.02
) Session I) Session II	2.11 3.44	71 41	1.03 1.11	6.29	<.01			
		try - Female:	J					A(2) vsB(2)	2.61	<.05
) Session I	1.61	<i>°</i> 65	1.23	4 90	۵1 د	B(1) vsC(2)	1.48	NS
		Session II	2.75	64	1.40	4.89	<.01	B(1) vsD(2)	1.46	NS
	C. Up	grade, Session I:					•	C(2) vsD(2)	.01	NS
		Male	1.66	8	1.17		*			
) Female	2.01	28	1.02		ž		E STATE OF THE STA	•
		uivalent, Session Male	1: 2.77	· 6	.75				•	
) Female	2.01	29	1.17		,			
24.	'A sup	ervisor who tells	you							
	when	you have done a go n sómething			•				•	
		try - Male:	2 22	71	1 52			A(1) vgR(1)	2.16	.4.05
	(1)	Session I	2.32 2.75	71 41	1.53 1.63	1.39	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	2.16	05 کے
	(2)) Session I) Session II.	2.32 2.75	71 41	1.53 1.63	1.39	NS	A(2)vsB(2)	.18	NS
u	(1) (2) B. Ent) Session I) Session II. try - Female:						A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2)	.18	'
u	(1) (2) B. Ent) Session I) Session II.	· ^{2.75}	41	1.63	1.39	ns ns	A(2)vsB(2)	.18	NS
	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2)) Session I) Session II, try - Female:) Session I	2.75 2.92 2.69	41 65 64:	1.63 1.67 1.61			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2)	.18	NS NS
	(1) (2) B. End (1) (2) C. Upa (1)) Session I) Session II. try - Female:) Session I) Session II grade, Session I:) Male	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21	41 65 64:	1.63 1.67 1.61			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02	ns ns ns
	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2) C. Upt (1) (2)	Session I Session II Female: Session I Session I Session II Session II Session II Session II Female	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58	41 65 64:	1.63 1.67 1.61			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02	ns ns ns
	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2) C. Ups (1) (2) D. Equ	Session I Session II Fry - Female: Session I Session II Grade, Session II Male Female	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58	41 65 64 7 28	1.63 1.67 1.61 1.13			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02	ns ns ns
	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2) C. Up ₁ (1) (2) D. Eq (1)	Session I Session II Fry - Female: Session I Session II Grade, Session II Female Female Male Male Male Male Male Male	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58 1:-	41 65 64:	1.63 1.67 1.61			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02	ns ns ns
•	(1) (2) B. Enn (1) (2) C. Upg (1) (2) D. Eq (1) (2) A supe	Session I Session II Fry - Female: Session I Session II Grade, Session II Male Female	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58 1:- 1.25 2.93	41 65 64 7 28	1.63 1.67 1.61 1.13 1.25			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02	ns ns ns
•	(1) (2) B. End (1) (2) C. Upg (1) (2) D. Eq (1) (2) A superyou new	Session I Session II Try - Female: Session I Session II grade, Session I: Male Female Male Female Female Female Female	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58 I: 1.25 2.93 when	41 65 64 7 28 6 29	1.63 1.67 1.61 1.13 1.25 1.25 1.62			A(2)vsB(2) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02 .87	NS NS NS
•	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2) C. Upg (1) (2) D. Eq (1) (2) A superyou ne A. Ent (1)	Session I Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II grade, Session II prade, Session II male Female sivalent, Session Male Female rvisor who helps and help rry - Male: Session I	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58 I: 1.25 2.93 when	41 65 64 7 28 6 29	1.63 1.67 1.61 1.13 1.25 1.25 1.62			A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2) C(2) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02 .87	NS NS NS NS
5.	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2) C. Upg (1) (2) D. Eq (1) (2) A superior you ne A. Ent (1) (2)	Session I Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II Session I Session II	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58 I: 1.25 2.93 when	41 65 64 7 28 6 29	1.63 1.67 1.61 1.13 1.25 1.25 1.62	.77	NS	A(2)vsB(2) B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02 .87	NS NS NS
5.	(1) (2) B. Ent (1) (2) C. Upg (1) (2) D. Eq (1) (2) A superior (1) (2) B. Ent (1)	Session I Session II Session II Session II Session II Session II grade, Session II prade, Session II male Female sivalent, Session Male Female rvisor who helps and help rry - Male: Session I	2.75 2.92 2.69 3.21 2.58 I: 1.25 2.93 when	41 65 64 7 28 6 29	1.63 1.67 1.61 1.13 1.25 1.25 1.62	.77	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2) C(2) vsD(2)	.18 .93 .02 .87	NS NS NS NS

, •		Goals	Mean	, N	S.D.	t	, p	Additional Comparisons	-	
	Č.	Upgrade, Session I:			<u>*</u>			C(2) vsD(2)	1.07	NS
. ,	-	(1) Male	2,75	8	2,28				•	
		(2) Female .	4.28	28	1:74		,	16 8 4 5		
	D.	Equivalent, Session I:			•			4.5	3	
		(1) Male ,	4.17	-6	1.86		•			` *
		(2) Female	4.66	29	1.27		•		•	
26.	to	supervisor who is willi help you with your off		'• <i>•</i>			•			
	th	e-job problems		•	_			,		
	Ą.	Entry - Male:					_			
		(1) Session I	2.80	71	1.57	1.12	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	.58	NS
		(2) Session II	2.44	⁄ 41	1.63			A(2) vsB(2)	1.13	nŚ
	В.	Entry - Female:						B(1)vsC(2)	1.44	NS
		(1) Session I (2) Session II	2.94		• 1.33	.72	NS	1	•	NS
			2.77	64	1.29			B(1) vsD(2)	.64	
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:	, 05	_	1 0/			C(2) vsD(2)	1.68	NS
	,	(1) Male (2) Female .	4.05 2.51	8 28 '	1.04 1.30			,		
	_	4	2.51	20	1.50			_	4	
	D.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	3.15	6	1.58				•	
		(2) Female	3.14	30	1.50			1		
7.		owing your family is . oud of the work you do	•••							
		•	•	•						
	Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I	^3.85	71	1.60		•	A(1)vsB(1)	.52	NS
		(2) Session II	3.60	41	1.74	.71		i		
	70	• •						A(2)vsB(2)	.76	NS
	D.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.98	65	1,37.	6 -		B(1)vsC(2)	.46	NS
		(2) Session II	3.83	64.		.62		B(1) vsD(2)	3 46	NS
	C.	Upgrade, Session 1:	_		•			C(2) vsD(2)	.01	NS
	•	(1) Male	4.38	8	1.08	•			,	
		(2) Female	3.54	28	125	٠,		<i>'</i>		
•	D.	Equivalent, Session I:		,						
		(1) Male	4.58	6	.93			• ,	·	
		(2) Female	3.83	-3 0.	1.55	•				•
Ω	Kn/	owing your friends respt	ect				9			
٠,,	you	for the work you do		•			:			
	Α.	Entry - Male:			0.40			4 (1) mán (1)	2 72	<.01
		(1) Session I	1.87	71 · 40	2.40 2.23	1.05	ทร	A(1)vsB(1)	2.72	
<u></u> -		(2) Session II	1.37	40 ,			, ,	A(2) vsB(2)	1.57	- NS
	Br	Entry - Female:	0.5	٠.	1 07		1	B(1)vsC(2)	.89	NS
	,,	(1) Session I (2) Session II	.85 .75	. 65 .64	1.87 1.75	.31	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.24	NS
	_	,	• • • •	, 54		•		C(2) vsD(2)	•	NS
	C.	Upgrade, Session I:	·2.50	6	2.50			C(2) VSD(2)	1.84	No
		(1) Male (2) Female	1.25	28	2.17	٠,		4		
						•	-	e,	_	
	υ.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	.83	6	1.86	•			,	
′		(2) Female .	.36		1.28			-		
		-		٠			• I	# a		o

	Goals	Mean	N	S.D.	\(\frac{1}{2} \)	شاور	Comparisons	t ,	p
-29.	. Having a job that is								
	interesting to your frien	ds							
	A. Entry - Male:		٠.,					•	
	(1) Session I	.63	71		.53	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.28	NS
	(2) Session II	.75	41	1.25			A(2) vsB(2)	1.27	NS
,	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	.58	65	1.14			B(1)vsC(2)	1.29	NS
	'(2) Session II	.43	64	1.22	.67	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	.43	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	.61	NS
9	(1) Male	.83	6	1.18		•	C(2)VSD(2)	.01	113
	(2) Female	.38	26	. 79					
	D. Equivalent, Session I:					•	• ,		
	(1) Male	.00	6	.00		,			•
	(2) Female	. 46	27	1.19					
30.	Being something you can				•	•		-	•
	talk to your friends abou after work	t		•		٠	`		
									•
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	00	4 - 71	1 00	-	•	A(1)************************************	00	N.C
	(2) Session II	.98 .29	41	1.98 1.10	2.03.	.<.05	A(1) vsB(1)	.99	NS
	B. Entry - Female:		٠_		•		A(2) vsB(2)	1.85	NS
	(1) Session I	1.35	65	2,20			B(1) ysC(2)	2.20	<.05
	(2) Session II	.90		1.90	1.21	NS.	B(1) vsD(2)	.47	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	1.42	NS
	(1) Male	1.67	6	2.36					-
•	(2) Female	.40	· 25	1.33					
	. D. Equivalent, Session I:						,		
	(1) Male	.83	6	1.86					
	(2) Female	1.11	. 27	2.08	•				
31.	Being able to learn new							•	
	things that will help you get a better job later						_		
			•	,			ŕ		
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	3,94	71	1.60			A(1)vsB(1)	.77	NS
	(2) Session II	3.32	41 .		1.81	NS	A(2) vsB(2)	9.	<.05
	B. Entry - Female:		•	,				2.40	\. 05
	(1) Session I	3.73	65	1.59	1.41	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.30	NS
	·(2) Session II	4.10	64	, 1.41	1.41	No.	B(1)vsD(2)	1.86	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I:					,	C(2)vsD(2)	1.37	NS
	(1) Male	4.06	8	1.21			٠, ٠		
	(2) Female	3.84	28	1.56	•				
	D. Equivalent, Session I:	2 02		1 72'		'	'		
	(1) Male (2) Female ·	2.92 4.33	6 30	1.72 1.11	,				
22	Being able to learn to do		30						
	something that is really hard	•						٠	
	A. Entry - Male:					'			
	(1) Session I	3.77	71	1.87	1.82	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	. 47.	NS
4	(2) Session II	4.36	41	1.20	1.02	.,,,	A(2)vsB(2)	1.19	NS
	- ¥ 9 '		•				• • • •		

			,			
Goals	, Mean	N	s.d.	t	р	Additional t p
B. Entry - Female	:				.'	B(1)vsC(2) 1.71 NS
(1) Session I	3.62	65	1.86	1 27	MC	B(1) VBC(2) 1.71
(2) Session II	4.03	64	1.49	1.37	NS	B(1)vsD(2) .53 NS
C. Upgrade, Sessi	on I:		•		-	C(2)vsD(2): 1.07 NS
(1) Male	3.57	7	1.24			
(2) Female	4.29	28	1.31			
D. Equivalent, Se	ssion I:	•			4	
(1) Male	3.75	6	1.91			1
(2) Female	3.83	30	1.80			



Appendix H
RATINGS OF VALUE CATEGORIES: LIKERT-TYPE CONDITION

Value Category	Mean		S.D.			Additional		
I. Extrinsic Benefits	1			•		Comparisons		
				•				
A. "Entry - Malė: (1) Session I	4.25	67	.66	1 /6	,,	A(1)vsB(1)	3.11	<.01
(2) Session II	4.07	49	.62	1.45;	,~ NS	A(2)vsB(2)	.06	NS
B. Entry - Female!	•				7	A(1)vsC(1)	.76	NS
(1) Session I	3.85	49	· 69	1.59	NS	Į.		NS .
. (2) Session II	4.06	57	.72			B(1)vsC(2)	.51	_
C. Upgrade, Session I (1) Male	: 4.14	19	.56			B(1)vsD(2)	. 79	NS
(2) Female	3.93	29	.65	1.10	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.51	NS.
D. Equivalent, Session	n I:							
(1) Male	. 4.39	5	. 47				•	
(2) Female	. 3.97	29	.54			}		
II. Intrinsic Benefits	ı					<u>.</u>	-	•
A. Entry - Male:		_						
(1) Session I	4.56	67	.60	1.72	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.22	. NS
(2) Session II	4.36	49	.65	•		A(2)vsB(2)	. 39	-NS
B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	4.54	49	. 59		•	A(1)vsC(1)	.98	NS
(2) Session II	4.41	57	.55	1.13	NS	B(I)vsC(2)	. 54	NS
a C. Upgrade, Session I	!					B(1)vsD(2)	. 70	NS
(1) Male	4.71	19.	. 47	1.49	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.54	NS
(2) Female	4.46	29	.61	1.47		(2),152 (3),		
D. Equivalent, Session		_		*,				
(1) Male (2) Female	3.79 4.43	5 29	.85 :68				.47	
•	~	-,					•	
ITI. Gratification Demands								
A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	359	67	.78		•	A(1)vsB(1)	.97	NS
(2) Session II	3.34	49	.61	1.83	NS	A(2)vsB(2)	64	NS
B. Entry - Female:						A(1)vsC(1)	. 46	NS
(1) Session I	3.45	49'	. 79	.07	NS	l i		
(2) Session II	3. 43	· 57	.77			B(1)vsC(2)	.32	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I	:	. 10	76			B(1)vsD(2)	. 58	NS
(1) Male (2) Female	3.69 3.39	19 29	.75 .73	1.34	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	. 32	NS
D. Equivalent, Session								
· (1) Male	3.58	5	.77					1 /
(2) Fèmale	3.56	29	. 84	•	٠.	,	,	
V. Interpersonal Relations with Co-Workers	3							
A. Entry - Male:	2 22	(7	ó.	•		A(1)vsB(1)	2.08	<.05
(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.98 3.69	67 48	.85 .87	1.76.	NS	•	•	
						A(2) vsB(2)	1.71	NS.
B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.64.	49	.90	1.40		Å(1)vsC(1)	.04	NS
(2) Session II		. 57	.82	1,42	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.66	NS
			•				1	



<u> </u>		•			<u> </u>			
Value Category	Mean	N	s.p.	, t	, p	Additional Comparisons	· t	р
C. Upgrade, Session T:		•	<i>,</i> ·		_	B(1)vsD(2)	.86	N
(1) Male	3.97	19	79	,96	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.66	N
(2) Female	3.77	29	.65	,,,		(-, (02(2)		••
D. Equivalent, Session I		_	,		,	1		٠,
(1) Male •(2) Female	4.28 3.46	5 29	.78 .84			1		
Interpersonal Relations with Supervisor	3140	-,	.04			,		
A. Entry - Male:	_		*			''		
(1) Session I	3.98	67	.74			A(1)vsB(1)	.83	N
(2) Session II	3.81	48	.67	1.25	. NS	/	.32	
B. Entry - Female:					•	A(2) vsB(2)		N
(1) Session I	4.09	49	.61	1.97	, NS	A(1)vsC(1)	.08	N
(2) Session II	3.85	57	.61	1.97	No.	B(1)vsC(2)	.69	N
C. Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	.25	N
(1) Male	4.00	19	.89	02	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.69	N
(2) Female	4.00	29	.56					3.
D. Equivalent, Session I (1) Male		-	/1	•				
(1) Hale (2) Female	4.32 4.06	29	.41 .57	•			•	
Interpersonal Relations with Family			•5.				-	
•						. <i>'</i>		
A. Entry - Male:	4.04	67	1 22			\ \(\(\) \\ \\ \(\) \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\	20	
(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.54	47	1.22 1.21	1.98	<.05	A(1)vsB(1)	.38	Ñ
B. Entry - Female:		• •	,	,	e .	A(2)vsB(2)	.05	N
(1) Session I	3.95	49	1.12			A(1)vsC(1)	.89	N
(2) Session II .	3.56	57	1.18	1.74	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.02	N
C. Upgrade, Session 'I;	•	*			,	B(1)vsD(2)	1.52	NS
(1) Male	4.31	19	.86	1.14	NS I	C(2)vsD(2)	.02	NS
(2) Female	3.96	29	1.09	1.14	1,5	C(2) V8D(2)	102	110
D. Equivalent, Session I			•		i	•	, .	
(1) Male	4.80	5	.40				۲,	
(2) Female	3.55	29	1.13		į			
Interpersonal Relations with Friends	**					-		
A. Entry - Male:	,		<u>.</u>		j			
(1) Session I(2) Session II	3.30 2.92	67 48	.95 .92	2.13	<.05	A(1) vsB(1)	4.24	₹.01
	2.72	40	. 32		Ī	A(2) vs B(2)	1.24	NS
B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	2.57	49	.84		y *	A(1)vsC(1)	.47	NS
(2) Session II	2.69	57	.93	•,68	NS	B(1) vsC(2)	.79	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:	•		-	•	ĺ	B(1)vsD(2)	.80	NS
(1) Male	3.19	19	. 89	1 - 57	,,,,			
(2) Female	2.7.4	29	.96	1257	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.79	NS
D. Equivalent, Session I:	•						. ^	•
. (1) Male	4.04	5	.70		- '	•		
(2) Female	2.41	29	,88	•		•		

٠,٠

	Value Category .	Меап	N _	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	P
VIII.	Developmental Needs			,				``	-
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.23 4.24	67 47	.85 .62	.03	NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.24	ns ns
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	4.27 . 4.41	49 57	.73 .64	i.00	NS	A(1)vsC(1) B(1)vsC(2)	.23 1.86	NS NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	4.28 4.56	19 29	.74 .52	1.49	, NS	B(1)vsD(2) C(2)vsD(2)	1.61	ns Ns
•	D. Equivalent, Session (1) Male (2) Female	1: 4.10 4.37	.5 29	.91 .65		,			*



Appendix I
RATINGS OF VALUE CATEGORIES: FORCED-CHOICE CONDITION

		Value Category	Mean	N	S.D.	t	р	Additional Comparisons	t	P
ı.	Ex	trinsic Benefits			Ú			,		_
	Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	2°.30 2.29	71 41	. 46 . 55	.11	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	. 64	ns ns
	В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	2.24 2.23	65 64	.47 .49	.15	NS	A(2) vsB(2) B(1) vsC(2) B(1) vsD(2)	.51 .63	ns ns
	c.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	2.21 2.17	8 28	.59	t	•	C(2) vsD(2)	.33	NS
**	D.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	.2.38 2.13	6 30	.48 .40					
ı.	In	trinsic Benefits	~							
	А.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.61 3.48	71 41	. 70 . 74	.87	. NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.30 .39	NS NS
	В•	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	3.65 3.54	65 64	.74 .72	79	NS .	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	.66 .30	, NS
	c.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Temale	3.71 3.75	8 28	.80 .56			C(2)vsD(2)	1.00	, nģ
	D.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	3.23 3.60	6 30	1.05 .55			•	•	
I.	Gra	atification Demands		-		· .				
	Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	1.61 1.77	71 41	.85 1.02	. 89	NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	3.21 1.79	<.01
١	В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	2.11	65 64	94 1.00	.15	NS	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.12	ns ns
	c.	Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	2.36 1.86	8 28	1.11 .95		,	C(2)vsD(2)	, 46 ,	NS
	D.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female	1.25 1.98	6 30	.93 .87	Ø			,	
		terpersonal Relations th Co-Workers	•			•	•			•
	Α.	Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	2.38 2.29	71 41	.82 .76	.56	NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.76	ns Ns
	В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II	2.48 2.08	65 64	.79 .72	2.86	<.01	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	1.40 1.16	. ns Ns Ns

118

ERIC

	Value Category	Mean	'n	S.D.	t	, p	Additional Comparisons	t	р
ુc.	Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	.99	NS
	(1) Male	2.65	8	.72			İ		Ç
	(2) Female	2.28	28	.66			1		
D.	Equivalent, Session I:		_		•				
	(1) Male (2) Female	2.47 2.47	6 30	.45					
	terpersonal Relations	2.41	30	.75				•	~
Α.	Entry - Male:								
	(1) Session I	.2.74	` 71	.67			A(1)vsB(1)	2.23	<.05
	(2) Session II	2.90	41	.75	1.15	NS	A(2)vsB(2)	.71	NS
в.	Entry - Female:						ŀ		
	(1) Session I	2.95	65	.56	.41	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	,91	NS.
	(2) Session II	3.00	64	.60	.41	NO	B(1)vsD(2)	1.44	NS
c.	Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	1.89	NS
	(1) Male .	2.98	8	. 64	_				
	(2) Female	2.84	28	. 49	·				
	Equivalent, Session I:	0.00	,						
•	(1) Male (2) Female	2.83 3.15	· 6	.55 .70					
T	•	3.13	50	. 70					
Wit	erpersonal Relations h Family				•				
,A.,	Entry - Male:	2 01	71	1 55					
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	3.91 3.60	71 41	1.55 1.74	.93	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.28	-NS -
	• •	3.00	71	1.74			A(2)vsB(2)	•76	NS
	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	3.98	65	1.36			B(1)vsC(2)	.51	NS
	(2) Session II	3.83	64	1.24	.62	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	. 46	NS
c.	Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	.01	NS
	(1) Male	4.37	8	1.08		'	C(2) VSD(2)	.01	113
	(2) Female	3.83	28	1.24			•		
D.	Equivalent, Session I:							•	
į.	(1) Male	4.58	6;	.93	•				
	(2) Female	3.83	30	1.54.		.			
wit	erpersonal Relations h Friends				Y			•	
	Entry - Male:						. (1)		
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	1.17	71 41	1.26 .93	1.54	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.31	NS
		. 81	71	• 33		1	A(2)vsB(2)	.50	'NS
	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	.88	65.	1.18	<i>y*</i>	-	B(1)vsC(2)	1.00	NS
	(2) Session II	.70	64	1.14	. 85	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	. 52	NS
	Upgrade, Session I:			75	•	ļ	C(2)vsD(2)	.37	NS
	(1) Male	1.87	8	1.36			0(2) (0)		
	(2) Female	.63	28	.89	•	- 1			
D. 1	Equivalent, Session I:		•						
	(1) Male	. 55	6	1.24		- 1			,
	(2) Female	.74	28	1.22		- 1			



		`Value Category	Mean	, N	S.D.	ť	p	Additional Comparisons	t	р
VIII.	De	velopme <u>nf</u> al Needs							_	
	A.	Entry - Male:	Ů.		*				•	
		(1) Session -I	3.87	71	1.27	.08	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.80	NS
		(2) Session II	3.84	41	.1.21	.00	113	A(2)vsB(2)	.92	NS
	В.	Entry - Female:						B(1)vsC(2)	1.03	NS
		(1) Session I ·	.3.68	• 65	1.30 *	1.72	ัทร			
		(2) Session II	4.07	64	1.18	1.72	INS.	B(1)vsD(2)	1.44	NS
	c.	Upgrade, Session I:						C(2)vsD(2)	.28	NS
		(1) Male *	3.75	8	1.08					:
-		(2) Female	3.99	′ 28	1.27		٠			,
-	D.	Equivalent, Session I:						Ç		•
		(1) Male	3.32	· 6	1.17	•			•	
	-	(2) Female	4.08	30	1.01			٠,		

Appendix J

JOB DESCRIPTION INDEX RATINGS

	Job Factor	Mean	N	S.D.	t	р	Additional Comparisons	t	р
1. Sa	tisfaction with Work	•							
A.	Entry - Male:	. 20 50		11 00			A(1)==C(1)	1.90	NS
	(1) Session I (2) Session Il	29.56 31.96	137 89	11.86 12.00	1.47	NS	A(1)vsC(1)		NS
R	Entry - Female:	02170	-				A(1)vsD(1)	.96	
υ.	(1) Session I	34.11	116	10.42	1.09	NS	A(1) vsE(1)	7.45	<.001
	(2) Session II	32.56	119	11,.10	- 1		C(1) vsD(1)	. 48	NS
с.	Upgrade, Session I:	2/ 27	26	7 00			C(1)vsE(1)	1.10	NS
	(1) Male (2) Female	34.27 31 ₄ 15	26 60	7.08 12.59		•	D(1)vsE(1)	1.09	NS
n	Equivalent, Session I:	,					B(1) vsC(2)	2.57	<.01
υ,	(1) Male	33.09	11	5.25			B(1)vsD(2)	1.93	NS
	(2) Female	31.86	59	10.59			B(1)vsE(2)	1.61	NS
E.	*Normative Sample:	06.55	,			<i>.</i>	C(2)vsD(2)	.33	NS.
	(1) Male (2) Female	36.57 35.74		10.54 9.88			C(2)vsE(2)	3.34	<.001
	(2) Temale	33171	***	,,,,			D(2)vsE(2)	2.86	<.01
		-		,-			D(2) V32(2)	2.00	
2. Sa	itisfaction with Supervis	sion	مده بر						
A	Entry - Male:	38.13	137	12.22	1		A(1)vsC(1)	2.30	<.05
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	39.69	13/ 89	10.69	.98	NS	A(1)vsD(1)	.61	NS
B.	Entry - Female:								
Δ,	(1) Session I	40,00	115	9.36	. 42	NS	A(1)vsE(1)	3.15	<.01
	(2) Session II	39.44	120	10.51	•		C(1)vsD(1)	2.78	<.01
C.	Upgrade, Session I:	43.85	26	7.13			C(1)vsE(1)	1.32	NS
	(1) Male (2) Female	40.66	26 59	10.54			D(1)vsE(1)	1.65	NS
n.	Equivalent, Session I:					;	B(1)vsC(2)	.41	NS
	(1) Male	35.82	11	9.22			B(1)vsD(2)	.19	NS
	(2) Female	40.31	59	10.52			B(1)vsE(2)	1.11	NS
E.	Normative Sample: .	41.10	1051	10.53			C(2)vsD(2)	.18	, NS
	 Male Female 	41.10	636	10.05		•	C(2)vsE(2)	.34	NS
	V						Ď(2)vsE(2)	.59	NS
3. Sa	tisfaction with Pay :		٠			s			
A.	Entry - Male:					,			
	(1) Session I	10.89	137	8.78	. 11	NS	A(1)vsC(1)	.18	NS
,	(2) Session II	10.76	89	6.29			A(1)vsD(1)	.57	NS
В.	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	12.47	116	5.84			A(1) vsE(1)	15.11	<.001
	(2) Session II	9.61	117	6.08	3.63	<.01	C(1)vsD(1)	.86	NS
g c.	Upgrade, Session I:		•				C(1) vsE(1)	6.77	<.001
ସଂ ୍	(1) Male	10.58		5.19			D(1) vsE(1)	3.97	<.001
_	(2) Female	11.01	60	5.99			B(1)vsC(2)	1.55	NS
D.	Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	12.45	11	₋ 7.38			B(1)vsD(2)	2.19	<.05
	(2) Female	10.27	59	6.98			,- ₆ , ,-,		



Job Factor	Mean	N	S.D.	t	, p	Additional Comparisons	t	P
E. Normative Sample:		1044				C(2)vsD(2)	.62	NS
(1) Male (2) Female	29.90 27.90	1966 635	14.53 13.65			C(2) vsE(2)	9.48	<.001
(=, ===================================	_,,,,,					D(2)vsE(2)	9.78	`< . 001
4. Satisfaction with Promotio	ns		•			,	*	•
A. Entry - Male:								
(1) Session I	16.53	137	7.65	.10	NS	A(1)veC(1)	1.84	NS
(2) Session II	16.64	89	7.48			A(1) vsD(1)	1.21	NS
B. Entry - Female:	10 /2	115	6.67			A(1) vsE(1)	4.05	< .001
(1) Session I (2) Session II	18.43 15.40		6.81	3.42	<.01	C(1)všD(1)	2.03	· <.05
· C. Upgrade, Session I:	220.10			•		C(1) vsE(1)	2.77	<.01
(1) Male	13.46	26	8.13			D(1)vsE(1)	.54	NS
(2) Female	13.80	60	8.43]		
D. Equivalent, Session I:		•				B(1) vsC(2)	3.95	<.001
(1) Male	19.45		7.57	•		B(1)vsD(2)	3.75	.<.001
(2) Female	13.98	. 59	8.55			B(1)vsE(2)	.51	NS '
E. Normative Sample:						C(2)vsD(2)	.12	· NS
(1) Male	22.06 17.77		15.77 13.38			Č(2) vsE(2)	2.25	<.05
(2) Female		034	13,30		4	D(2)vsE(2),	2.13	<.05
5. Satisfaction with Co-Worke	ers				,	,		
	1							
(1) Session I (2) Session II	38.37		12.07	. 84	NS	A(1) vsC(1)	2.03	<.05
• •	39.78	89	12.63			A(1)vsD(1)	.73	ns .
B. Entry - Female:(1) Session I	39.12	116	11.85			A(1)vsE(1)	5.67	<.001
(2) Session II	38.51		12.26	. 38	NS	C(1)vsD(1)	.66	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I: \		•	-			C(1)vsE(1)	.02	NS
(1) Male	43.54	26	10.53				,	
(2) Female	37.87	60 -	14.18			D(1)vsE(1)	• 79	NS
D. Equivalent, Session I:						B(1)vsC(2)	62	NŞ
(1) Male	41.09	11	8.75			B(1) vsD(2).	35	NS
(2) Female	39.78	59	11.34	•		B(1)vsE(2)	2.73	<.01
E. Normative Sample: (1) Male	43.49	1020	10.02		Ì	C(2)vsD(2)	.81	NS
(2) Female	42.09	636	10.02			C(2) vsE(2)	′2.87	<.01
	.=000				`	D(2) vsE(2)		
-						D(2)VSE(2)	1, 60	NS

Smith, Patricia C., Kendall, Lorne M., and Hulin, Charles L. The Measurement of Satisfaction in Work and Retirement. Chicago, Ill.: Rand McNally & Company, 1969.

Appendix K
RATINGS OF PSYCHOLOGICAL TESTS: LIKERT-TYPE CONDITION

Test	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional Comparisons	t	p
1. Cynical distrust of people	 e		•	.	.	Compartsons		
A. Entry - Male:			•		•	1		
(1) Session I	20.81	67	4.16	1.15	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.24	NS
. (2) Session II	19.73	49	5.76	1.13	No	A(2)vsB(2)	.64	NS
B. Entry - Female:			5 00			A(1)vsC(1)	. 75	NS
<pre>(1) Session I · , (2) Session II</pre>	21.02	49 55	5.00 5.17	.57	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	1.39	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:						B(1) vsD(2)	1.25	NS
(1) Male	19.95	19	4.75	2.03	<.05	C(2) vsD(2)	.21	
(2) Female	22.55	29	3.89	2.03	\.UJ	(2) VSD(2)	• 41	ns,
D. Equivalent, Session I:	,	_		•		ļ		
(1) Male (2) Female	20.60 22.34	5 29	4.96 3.28					
•	22.54	23	3.20			· '		
2. Cynical distrust of organizations	•					ł		
A. Entry - Male:						1		
(1) Session I	20.07	67	4.14	1,44	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.41	NS
(2) Session II	21.18	49	3.96	1), 44	N2 25≠	A(2)vsB(2)	.93	NS
B. Entry - Female:						A(1) vsC(1)	. 27	NS
(1) Session I (2) Session II.	19.75 20.27	49 55	4.05 5.65	.52	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.17	NS
	20.27	,,	3.03			,	1.74	
C. Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male	20.37	19	3.66	•	'	B(1)vsD(2)	*	NS
(2) Female	19.93	29	4.44	.34	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.32	- NS
D. Equivalent, Session I:						,		
(1) Male	18.60	5	3.01	,			•	
(2) Female	21.34,	29	3.46					
3. Weak self regard		_				_		
A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	13.42	67	5.24			A(1)vsB(1)	.45	NS
(2) Session II	12.69	49	5.67	.70	NS			
B. Entry - Female:						A(2)vsB(2)	1.13	NS
(1) Session I	13.87		5.42	.09	NS	A(1)vsC(1)	.67	ns
(2) Session II	13.98	56	5.82			B(1)vsC(2)	60	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:	,	10				B(1) vsD(2) ~~	.87	ns
(1) Male (2) Female	12.42 14.62	19 29	6.74 4.66	1.30	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.28	NS
D. Equivalent, Session I:			,,,,,			•		
(1) Male	16.00	5 ٬	6.81			•		,
(2) Female	15.00	29	5.41		(
4. Achievement motivation	,				•	,		
A. Entry - Male:	20.10	67	E 22			A(1)vsB(1)	.69	NS
(1) Session I (2) Session II	30.18 31.40	67 49	5.23 4.36	1.32	NS	· ·		
B. Entry - Female:	• ••	, ·	-,			A(2) vsB(2)	:95	· NS
(1) Session I	30.85	49	5.07	.35	NS	A(1)vsC(1)	1.95	NS
(2) Session II	30.49	55	5.23	• 3 3	NO	B(1)vsC(2)	•58	NS
,						•		



		_				3		
Test	Mean	Ŋ,	Ş.D.	t	р	Additional Comparisons	t	p
C. Upgrade, Session I:				,		B(1) vsD(2)	.62	
(1) Male	32.84	19	4.98	2 21	- 05	ł .		NS
(2) Female	30.24	29	2.96	2.22	<.05	C(2)vsD(2)	.17	N9
D. Equivalent, Session I	:				• •			,
(1) Male	35.20	5	1.33			1		
(2) Female	30.00	29	6.88		•			
5. Time sense			•		:	•		-
A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	29,45	٤٦٠	6.88			A:(1) P(1)	- 56	NC
(2) Session II	29.43	67 [.] 49	5.87	.16	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	56	NS
B. Entry - Female:			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			A(2)vsB(2)	.87	NS
(1) Session I	28.73	49	6.40	,,	110	A(1)vsC(1)	.66	NS
(2) Session II	28.12	55	6.86	.46	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.14	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:						B(1) vsD(2)	.24	NS
(1) Maie	28.26	19	6.55	.13	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.36	NS
(2) Female	28.52	29	5.88	"	.,,	(1)	.50	5
D. Equivalent, Session I		_						
(1) Male (2) Female	25.80 29.10	5 29	5.11 6.14					
	27.10	2)	0.14			-52		
o. Protestant ethic				_			•	
A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	23.64	67	5.29			A(1)vsB(1)	1.25	NS
(2) Session II	23.73	49	4.79	.09	NS	L	•	
B. Entry - Female:	_			•		A(2)vsB(2)	.59	NS
(1) Session I	24.87	49	5.09	.60	NS	A(1)vsC(1)	.68	NS
(2) Session II	-24.29	55	4.67	. 60	KĐ	B(1)vsC(2)	.49	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:						B(1)vsD(2)	î.39	· NS
' (1) Male	24.53	19	3.28	.17	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.02	NS
(2) Female	24.34	29	3.54					
D. Equivalent, Session I (1) Male	: 24.00	5	4.65					
(2) Female	23.34	5 29	3.74		,			
7. Expectation of success				•				/
A. Entry - Male:	,				,	*	-	
(1) Session I	21.23	66	4.18			A(1) vsB(1) '	2.37	<.02
(2) Session II	22.10	49	4.25	1.08	N\$	A(2)vsB(2)	<i>;</i> `	
B. Entry - Female:							1,48	NS NS
(1) Session I	23.17	48	4.36	. 14	NS :	A(1) vsC(1)	. 48	NS
(2) Session II	23.29	55	3.82			B(1)vsC(2)	.09	. NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:	01 70	10				B(1)vsD(2)	1.12	NS
(1) Male	21.79 23.07	19 29	5.08 4.13	.93	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	1.12	NS
•		~ /		,				
Q. Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male	21.40	5	6.09		Į			
(2) Female	24.31	29	4.13				6	-
. Pówerlessness								•
A. Entry - Male:					١			
- (1) Session I	10.91	67	4.01	. ⁶ 74	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.19	NS
(2) Session II	11.44	49	3.47	• / **	110	A(2)vsB(2)	.76	NS
			•		,			, a



					,			1
`Test		Meaņ	N	S.D.	t	p ·	Additional to Comparisons	• "р
Entry - Fen	ale: .							. NS
(1) Session	I.	10.02	49	3.80	1.27	NS		
(2) Session	II	10.92	55	3.38		_		NS
	ssion I:				٠,	,	B(1) vsD(2). 1.30	NS
			-		.65	NS	C(2)vsD(2)24	, NS.
(2) Female		10.97	29.	4.39		•		•
	Session I:	in 10	_	. 70	- •		^	••
(1) Male		-	-				. , ,	4
	8	11.24		4115	1,			,
•						•		
		9.15	67	3.15			A(1)vsB(1) 1:74	, NS
			49	3.14	1.08	NS	\- \-	
,	·						· ·	
		8.14	49	2.90			A(1)vsC(1) 1.46	. NS
		8.94	55	3.41	1.27	NS	B(1)vsC(2) .09,	, ns
Ungrade Se	esion T:						B(1)vsD(2) .88,	·NS
	551011 11	7.95	19	3.03	27	NC	, ,	NS
(2) Female		8.21	29	3.16	.21	NS	(2) V8D(2) .00	
Equivalent.	Session I:			å.			·	, ,
	. 7-	6.80	5	1.72			1	
(2) Female		8,76	29	3.01		`		•
1 ocenece	•							,
-£',	•							
		14 15'	67	5 01			A(1)veB(1) . 1.75	ns.
					.94	NS	<u> </u>	
•							4.	NS
		12.89	49	4.12	,		$A(1) vsC(1) \qquad 2.91$	<.01
• •		12.70	55	3.68	,•23	NS	B(1)vsC(2) 2.00	<.05
		•				ı	1 .	NS
	331011 11	10.84	19	3.44	0 17	. 01	İ	ŃS
• •		14.90	29	4.30	3.3/	<.01	(2) VSD(2)03	, NS
Equivalent	Session I:			•			`	•
		12.80	5	4.40			`	
(2) Female	,	14.83	29	4.83				
Value isolat	on'	•				•	, ,	
Entry - Ma	le: ′							
(1) Session	ıI	9.03	67		. 86	NS	A(1)vsB(1) . 1.25	, NS
(2) Session	ı II	8.46	49	3.39	• 0,0	1,10	A(2) vsB(2)01	. NS
Entry - Fe	ale:					,	A(1)vsC(1) 1.59	NS
(1) Session		8.24	49	3.12	.35	พร	1.*	
	. IT /	8.48\	56 ₹	3.66			B(1)vsC(2) .85	, NS
(2) Session	(-	B(1)vsD(2) . 1.25	MC
(2) Session Upgrade, S	1	.,					D(1) VSD(2) . 1.23	No
(2) Session Upgrade, So (1) Male	1	7.58	19~	3.60	1.25	NS	C(2) vsD(2) .31	ns Ns
(2) Session Upgrade, S	1	7.58 8.90	19 ~ 29	3.60 2.98	1.25	NS	!	
(2) Session Upgrade, S (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent	ession I:	8.90	29	2.98	1.25		!	
(2) Session Upgrade, Son (1) Male (2) Female	ession I:	8.90			1.25	NS	!	NS
	Entry - Fem (1) Session (2) Session Upgrade, Set (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, (1) Male (2) Female aninglessness Entry - Male (1) Session (2) Session Entry - Fem (1) Session (2) Session Upgrade, Set (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, (1) Male (2) Female ormlessness Entry - Mal (1) Session (2) Session (2) Session (2) Session (2) Female (1) Male (2) Female (1) Male (2) Female (1) Male (2) Female (1) Male (2) Female (2) Female (1) Male (2) Female (2) Female (3) Session (4) Male (5) Female (6) Female (7) Session (8) Session (9) Session (1) Session (1) Male (2) Female (2) Female (3) Session (4) Session (5) Session (6) Session (7) Session (8) Session (9) Session	Entry - Fémale: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female aninglessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female cormlessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Session II Entry - Female: (1) Session I (2) Female Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female Value isolation Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II	Entry - Fémale: (1) Session I 10.02 (2) Session II 10.92 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 10.11 (2) Female 10.97 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 13.40 (2) Female 11.24 aninglessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I 9.15 (2) Session II 9.79 Entry - Female: (1) Session I 8.14 (2) Session II 8.94 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 7.95 (2) Female 8.21 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 6.80 (2) Female 8.76 ormlessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I 14.45 (2) Female 8.76 ormlessness Entry - Female: (1) Session I 12.89 (2) Session II 12.70 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 12.89 (2) Female 14.90 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 10.84 (2) Female 14.90 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 12.80 (2) Female 14.83 Value isolation Entry - Male: (1) Session I 9.03 (2) Session II 9.03 (2) Session II 9.03	Entry - Fémale: (1) Session I 10.02 49 (2) Session II 10.92 55 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 10.11 19 (2) Female 10.97 29 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 13.40 5 (2) Female 11.24 29 aninglessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I 9.15 67 (2) Session II 9.79 49 Entry - Female: (1) Session I 8.14 49 (2) Session II 8.94 55 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 7.95 19 (2) Female 8.21 29 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 6.80 5 (2) Female 8.76 29 ormlessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I 12.89 49 (2) Session II 12.89 49 (2) Session II 12.70 55 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 10.84 19 (2) Female 10.84 19 (3) Female 10.84 19 (4) Female 10.84 19 (5) Female 10.84 19 (6) Female 10.84 19 (7) Female 10.84 19 (8) Female 10.84 19 (9) Female 10.84 19 (1) Male 10.84 19 (2) Female 10.84 19 (3) Female 10.84 19 (4) Female 10.84 19 (5) Female 10.84 19 (6) Female 10.84 19 (7) Female 10.84 19 (8) Female 10.84 19 (9) Female 10.84 19 (1) Male 10.84 19 (1) Male 10.84 19 (2) Female 10.84 19 (2) Female 10.84 19 (2) Female 10.84 19 (3) Female 10.84 19 (4) Female 10.84 19 (5) Female 10.84 19 (6) Female 10.84 19 (7) Female 10.84 19 (8) Female 10.84 19 (9) Female 10.84 19 (1) Male 10.84 19 (1) Male 10.84 19 (2) Female 10.84 19 (3) Female 10.84 19 (4) Female 10.84 19 (6) Female 10.84 19 (7) Female 10.84 19 (8) Female 10.84 19 (9) Female 10.84 19 (1) Male 10.84 19	Entry - Fémale: (1) Session I 10.02 49 3.80 (2) Session II 10.92 55 3.38 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 10.11 19 4.23 (2) Female 10.97 29 4.39 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 13.40 5 4.72 (2) Female 11.24 29 4.15 aninglessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I 9.15 67 3.15 (2) Session II 9.79 49 3.14 Entry - Female: (1) Session I 8.14 49 2.90 (2) Session II 8.94 55 3.41 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 7.95 19 3.03 (2) Female 8.21 29 3.15 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 7.95 19 3.03 (2) Female 8.21 29 3.16 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 6.80 5 1.72 (2) Female 8.76 29 3.01 ormlessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I 14.45 67 5.01 (2) Session II 13.57 49 4.78 Entry - Female: (1) Session I 12.89 49 4.12 (2) Session II 12.70 55 3.68 Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male 10.84 19 3.44 (2) Female 14.90 29 4.30 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 10.84 19 3.44 (2) Female 14.90 29 4.30 Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male 12.80 5 4.40 (2) Female 14.83 29 4.83 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42 Value isolation 19.03 67 3.42	Entry - Fémale: (1) Session I	Entry - Fēmale: (1) Session I (2) Session II 10.02 49 3.80 1.27 NS (2) Session II 10.92 55 3.38 1.27 NS Upgrade, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female 10.97 29 4.39 .65 NS Equivalent, Session I: (1) Male (2) Female 11.24 29 4.15 aninglessness Entry - Male: (1) Session I (2) Session II (2) Session II (3) Session II (4) Session I (5) Session II (6) Session II (7) Session II (8) Session II (9) Session II (1) Male (1) Male (2) Female (2) Female (3) Session II (4) Male (5) Female (6) Session II (7) Session II (8) Session II (9) Session II (1) Session I (1) Session I (2) Session II (2) Session II (3) Session II (4) Male (5) Female (6) Session I (7) Session I (8) Session I (9) Session I (10) Session I (11) Session I (12) Session I (12) Session I (13) Session I (14,45' 67 5.01	Entry - Fēmale: (1) Session I

		*	•				•		
	Test	Mean	. N	s.D.	, t	. р	Additional Comparisons	t	, p ' /
12.	Self-estrangement	•	•	ı	• -				
	A. Entry - Male:			,	• ,		1(2) 2(2)		210
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	14.04 14.24		3.88 4.05	.27	'NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.57	NS
	-	14.27	· - 7.	. 4,05	•		A(2) vsB(2)	2.21	<.05
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I_	14.57	49	5.84			A(1)vsC(1)	1,03	. NS
	(2) Session II	16.43	,	5.71,	,1.62	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.59	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session: I	: ·		11	·. • ·		B(1)vsD(2)	.01	NS '
	(1) Male	13,00	19	3.74	.82	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	.82	ns ့
	(2) Female	13.86	29.	3.31	.02	, NO	(2) 485(2)	•02	, NO =
	D. Equivalent, Session		_			•	¦ ' .	•	•
	(1) Male	14.80		2.79				•	· ·
•	(2) Female	14.59	29	3.27			, ,	-	
13.	. Work demands	• *	_	•		•			
	A. Entry - Male:	,				~ ~			
•	(1) Session I	23.01 22.71		3.22 4.21	.42	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	2.66	<.01
	(2) Session II	,42.7.	L 47	4.21			A(2)vsB(2)	1.33	NS
	B. Entry - Female: (1) Session I	25.32	2 49	4.42	*		A(1)vsC(1)	1.89	NS
	(1) Session II	23.94		5.01	1.46	NS	B(1)ysC(2)	1.55	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I	•		→.			B(1)vsD(2)	3.16	<.01
	(1) Male	25.26	5 19	3.89,	1 10	'NS	1		NS '
	(2) Female	23.59	29	5.13	1.18	ИЭ	C(2)vsD(2)	1.13	из ,
	D. Equivalent, Sessio	n L:	•		-			•	٠
æ.	(1) Male	26.60		3,07	t	•	34		
	(2) Female	-22.28	3 29	3.35	•				
14.	Orientatión toward wo	rk	•	1 .					,
	A. Entry - Male:			/					
	(1) Session (2.62		1.24	.95	NS	A (1)vsB(1)	1.41	NS
	(2) Session II	2.85	700	1.33		•	A(2)vsB(2) ·	.12	NS
	B. Entry - Female: ' ' (1) Session I	3,06	^ → 5 49	2.08			A(1)vsC(1)	.37	. NS
	(2) Session II	2.82		1.37	.69	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.02	NS
	C. Upgrade, Session I		1				B(1)vsD(2)	.06	NS
•	(1) Male	2.74	19	1.16	.93	410	1	.50	NS
	(2) Female • ·	3.07	27	1.18	.93	NS	C(2)vsD(2)	• 50	
	D. Equivalent, Session	n I: '	•				, .		
	(1) Male	2.60		1.02		,			
	(2) Female	3.03	29	1.19			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		•

Appendix K-1

RATINGS OF PSYCHOLOGICAL TESTS: LIKERT-TYPE CONDITION. (Responses of Entry-Level Subjects Participating in Both Sessions)

_		Test	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	, \nabla	р
1.	Сут	nical distrust of people	, Age ,	· • —	•		
	A.	Entry - Male:	· ' '	-	•		
		(1) Session I	20.18	32	4, 88	:	
		(2) Session II	20.53	32	5.20	. 39	ns
	В.	Entry - Female:			•	,	
		(1) Session I	21.00	40	5.04		
		(2) Session II	20.80	40	5.67	.20	ns
2.		nical distrust of ganizations	•			•	ŕ
•	Α.	Entry - Male:			•	, ,	
		(1) Session I	20.50	32	4.25		
		(2) Session II	21.68	32	3.84	1.95	NS
٠.	Ď.	Entry - Female:		,			
٠		(1) Session I	18.65	40	4.78	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
		(2) Session II	19.15	, 40	6.60	. 49	ns
	Uac	k self-regard					;
•	A.	Entry - Male:			, • •		
	Δ,	(1) Session I	12.48	32	5.90		
•		(2) Session II	13.74	32	6.19	170	NS
•	в.	Entry - Female:	13.74	32	0.17	,	
	υ.	(1) Session I	13.56	41	, 5.35	•	
		(2) Session II	13.48	41	5.58	09	NS
		4	13.40		3.30		
•		nievement motivation					•
	A.	Entry - Male:	20.60	20	5 20		
		(1) Session I	30.62	32	5.32	.56	ns
	ъ	(2) Session II	31.15	32	4.91		
	В.	Entry - Female:	20. 70	40	, ,		
	•	(1) Session I.	30.70 29.95	,40 40	5.61 5.29	.93	NS
		(2) Session II	29493	40	3.29)	
•	Tim	e sense					
	A.	Entry - Male:	20.00	22	7 13	•	
		(1) Session I	29.00	32	7.11 5.84	.30	NS
	•	(2) Session II	28.68	32	J.04		,
	В.	Entry - Female:	20 (1	40.	6 92	-	
		(1) Session I	28.64	40	6.83	.28	NS
		(2) Session II	28.35	40 ,	·6.1 <u>1</u>		

<u>·</u>	•	Test	Mean	<u> </u>	Standard Deviation	t	~p.
6.	Pro	testant ethic		•	. /	2	•
	A.	Entry - Male:			٠.		
	•	(1) Session I	24.81	32	, 5.46		
		(2) Session II	23.50 •	32	4.89	1, 15	ns.
	в.	Entry - Female:		. ,	- (
		(1) Session I	25.25	40	6.36		•
	•	(2) Session IL	23.53	40	. 5.80	2.00	<.05
7.	Exp	ectation of success				•	
•	Α,	Entry - Male:			•		* .
		(1) Session I	21.56	32	4.30		
·		(2) Session II	21,96	32	3.45	.54	ns
	R	Entry - Female:	-1,70	-	, .	•	
	٥.	(1) Session I	23.53	40 .	4.05	•	ı
		(2) Session II	22.84	40	3.81	• .88	, NS `
			, 22.04	,.	3.01		
8,	Poy	erlessness	4	,			•
-	A.	Entry - Male:	, The	• ,	•	· .	• .:
		(1) Session I	10.09		3.41	2.69	< 05
		(2) Session II	11.81	32	. 3.43	240,5	~
,	Ŗ.	Entry - Female:		•			
	•	(1) Session I	` 9.6S	40	3.25		ns.
•		(2) Session II	10.72	, 40	3.32	` 1.57.	;
• •			•			••	_ ′• ,
9;		ninglessness		•			- 4,
	A.	Entry - Male:					٠,٠
	,	(1) Session I	9.25	32	3.41	2.37	<.05
		(2) Session II	10.43	32,	3.21		
	. B.	Entry - Female:					· • •
	<i>,</i> ,	(1) Session I	7.85	40	.2.60	1. 41	- ŃS
	· ^	(2) Session II	. 8.50	40.	2.72	. 1031	
10.	Nor	mléssness	• •	• ,			
r	A'.	Entry - Male:		, ,		. ·	·
		(1) Session I	13.78	· 32	5.20	, · .	,
	,	(2) Session II	14.71	32	4.78	1.15	ทร
•	ъ.	Entry - Female:	• .	• •	. *	1.	• ,
•		(1) Session I	12.22	40	3.65		
	•	• •	-			1.13	NS



	Test	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	P
11.	Value isolation	•	•	•		
	A. Entry - Hale:			,	•	
	(1) Session I	8.28*	32	3.74		
	(2) Session II	9.37	32	3.23	1.73	NS.
	B. Entry - Female:	· · · ·		*	-	
	(1) Session I	7.85	41 .	2.79		
	(2) Session II	8.56	41 .	3.57	. 1.25	NS
2.	Self-estrangement					•
	A. Entry - Male:	·	•			
	(1) Session I	13.00	32	3.42	<i></i>	-
	(2) Session II	14.78	32	4.40	2.79	<.01
	B. Entry - Female:					
	(1) Session I	13.68	41	4.16	2 61	<.05
	(2) Session II	a 15.39	41	3.71 '	2.04	<.05
3.	Work demands	•			,	
	A. Entry - Male:		, `	:-		• •
	(1) Session I	21.90	32 🛥	5.49	.63	NS
	(2) Session II	22.59	32	4.24	. 03	112
	B. Entry - Female:		•	•		
	(1) Session I	25.45	40	4.78	12.70	<.05
	(2) Session II	23.40	40 ,	4.90	. ′2.∤70	\. 05
4.	Orientation toward work	ر	4	<i>:</i>	•	
	A. Entry - Male:					•
	(1) Session I	. 2.61	32 .	1.17		
	(2) Session II	3.16	32	1.18 -	2.59	·<.05
	B. Entry - Female:	, •		•		,
;	(1) Session I	.2.82	41	1.87		
,	(2) Session II	3.00	41 .	.1.43	,64	ns



Appendix L .

RATINGS OF PSYCHOLOGICAL TESTS: FORCED-CHOICE CONDITION

-	• ;	Test	* · · ·	:	Mean	N	S,D.	t	P	Additional Comparisons	t	P
1.	Cýr	rical distrus	t of peo	ple	· » .	- 4	•	•				•
• . ·	À.	Entry - Male (1) Session (2) Session	I 👾 🗀		1.31 1.53	70 [^] 39	1.22	.87	NS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.60 .47	ns ns
	В.	Entry - Females (1) Session (2) Session	I		1.49° , 1.67	65 64 .	2.07 1.31	.59	NS	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	.13 [.]	ns Ns
· •	ć. '	Upgrade, Ses (1) Male (2) Female	sion I:	,	1.11 1.55	9 29	1.37	•		C(2)vsD(2)	. 66	ns
· .	D.	Equivalent, (1) Male (2) Female	Session	ī:	1.33 1.77	6 30	1.25 1.02	, ,	•	*-		,
2.		nical distrus Sanizations	st of			ź		• •.				.,
: `,		Entry - Male (1) Session (2) Session	I,	,	1.26 1.53	71 39	1.47 1.08	1.02	ŃS	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.86 1.61	NS .
•	B	Entry - Fema (1) Session (2) Session	I		1.57 1.96	. 65 64	2\48 1.41	1.11	NS	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	.79 .40	ns • Ns
•	c.	Upgrade, See (1) Male (2) Female	ssion'I:	•	.88 1.96		.74 1.42	•		C(2)vsD(2)	.55	ns ••
	D.	Equivalent, (1) Male (2) Female	Session	I:	2.17 1.77		1.67 1.26		.,	•	•	•
3.	Wea	ak self rega	rd				•	•	٤		3	* *
	A.	Entry - Male (1) Session (2) Session	I.	•	1.09 1.15		1.14 ¹ 1.33	.24	ns	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.59 .60	ns Ns
	В.	Entry - Fém (1) Session (2) Session	I ·		1.26 1:31		1.96 1.32	.17	NS	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	.47 .67	ns Ns
•	C.	Upgrade, Sec (1) Male (2) Female	ssion I?		.67 1.45		.82 . 1.16	.	• ·	C(2)vsD(2)	.27	NS
,	D.	Equivalent, (1) Male (2) Female	Session	I:	1.17 1.53		1.07	· , ,				
4.	/Ac	hievement mo	tivation				1	.	,	:		
	A.,	Entry - Mal (1) Session (2) Session	Į.		4.07 4.66		.99	2.23	<.05	A(1)vsB(1) A(2)vsB(2)	.22 2.25	NS -
	В.	Entry - Fem (1) Session (2) Session	I		4.12 4.15		1.21	. 17	ns	B(1)vsC(2) B(1)vsD(2)	.05 1.04	· NS

·				'2			·.	
Test	Mean	N	S.D.	t	p	Additional. Comparisons	t '	р
C. Upgrade, Session I	<u>.</u>			•		C(2) vsD(2)	.79	NS
(1) Male	4.00	9	1.83					
(2) Female	4.14 .	29	1.33	•				•. •
D. Equivalent, Session	n I:		- ′ -			'		
(1) Male	4.33	6	1.49	• ^		Ì		•
(2) Female	4.40	30	1.14	•				
5. Time sense	. •		4			. '		
A. Entry - Male:				,		4.5		
(1) Session I	4.23	71	1.08	.12	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.42	NS
(2) Session II	4.25.	39	.95		-	A(2)vsB(2) 1	. 28	ns
B. Entry - Female:	¢:					B(1)vsC(2)	.62	NS
(1) Session I	4.58	65	1.68	1.57	NS	1	.76	NS
(2) Session II	4.20	64	.90			B(1)vsD(2)	•	
C. Upgrade, Session I		_			•	C(2)vsD(2)	21	NS
(1) Male	4.44	9	.50			, and the second		•
(2) Female	4.38	29	.76					
D. Equivalent, Sessió		,				•		
(1) Male	4.00 4.33	· 30	.1.00 83	i.] ,		-
(2) Female	4.33	50	03			`,		ı
6. Protestant ethic						,		
'A. Entry - Male:							٠,	
(1) Session I	3.09	71	1.62	.29	. NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.68	NS
(2) Session II	3.17	-39	1,35			A(2) vsB(2)	_1.32,	NS:
B. Entry - Female:	,					B(1)vsC(2)	1.14	NS
(1) Session I	7 3.32 2.75	.65 64	2.13 1.70	1.66	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	1.30	ns
(2) Session II	. 2.73	, 04	1.70			1 .	•	
C. Upgrade, Session I		0				C(2) vsD(2)	.27	ns
(1) Male	*3.11 ⁻ 2.83	9 29	1.37 1.29	` .	-	ε.		
(2) Female		2)	1.27	•		•	•	
D. Equivalent, Session	n I: 3.17	_	•90	•			•	
(1) Male (2) Female	2.93	6 30	1.57			ł	,	•
· (2) FEMALE	2.,,5	50	2137	•		ŕ	>	
7. Expectation of succes	s					•		
A. Entry - Male:								
(1) Session I'	2.43	71	1,03	1.27	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	1.88	NS
(2) Session II	. 2.69,	39	1.01	1.27	113	A(2)vsB(2)	.13	NS
B. Entry - Female:								
(1) Session I	. 2.94	65	1.95	.82	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.80	NS
(2) Session II	2.71	64	· .87	.02	, 113	B(1)vsD(2)	1.09	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I						·C(2)vsD(2)	.35	NS
(1) Male	2.00	· 9	.67					
. (2) Female	2.62	29	1.13			*		
D. Equivalent, Sessio	n I: ·			,		1		
(1) Male	2.83	6	.90				· 3	
	ა 2.53	30	.72			1 .	J	
8. Powerlessness	•	·-					·	
A. Entry - Male:	•						_	-
(1) Session I	.36	71	1.11	. 27	. NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.12	NS
(2) Session II	.30	- 39,	.56	,		A(2)vsB(2)	.09	NS
	•J*	:	1		-	•		
•			,					

	Test	Mean	N	S.D.	ŧ,	P	Additional. Comparisons	t	р
В	Entry - Female: (1) Session I	1.40	65 [*]	1.89	,,	vc	B(1)vsC(2)	.22	NS
	(2) Session II	29	64	.57	.41	NS	B(1) vsD(2)	.47	ns
С	. Upgrade, Session I:			,			C(2)vsD(2)	1.52	NS
J	(1) Male (2) Female	.22 .48	9 29	.42 .72		,		•	•
D	. Equivalent, Session I (1) Male (2) Female	.00	6	.00 .50		ļ	/\$		
9. M	eaninglessness			_			.\		•
A	. Entry - Male:			J.		٠.			
-	(1) Session I	.28	71	48	.81	, NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.48	ŃЗ`
	(2) Session II	.20	39	.40	•		A(2) vsB(2)	.19	NS
~ B	. Entry - Female:	.40	65.	1.98			B(1)vsC(2)	.32	ns
	(1) Session I (2) Session II	.18	64		.82	NS	B(1)vsD(2)	.63	ŅS
,	. Upgrade, Session I:						C(2) vsD(2)	1.00	NS
·	(1) Male	.22	9	. 42					
	(2) Female	.28	29	. 45	.00	-		•	
E	. Equivalent, Session	I:					1		•
	(1) Male	.00	6	.00	-	,			
	(2) Female	.17	30	.37			k .		
	Vormlessness						`	•	
. 4	A. Entry - Male:	71	71	7 60			A(1)vsB(1)	.80	NS
•	(1), Session I (2) Session II	.71 .82	40	769. .62	.86	NS	1		-
1	B. Entry - Female:			•••			A(2)vsB(2)	.96	NS
	(1) Session I	.98	65	2.69	0.7	N.C.	B(1)vsC(2)	.10	NS
	(2) Session II	.95	64	.67	.07	NS	B(1) vsD(2)	.22	ns
(C. Upgrade, Session I:		•				C(2) vsD(2)	.95	ns
	(1) Male	.67		47				•	-
	(2) Female .	.93	29	.64	-				
1	D. Equivalent, Session		4	76					
	(1) Male (2) Female	.50 1.10	6 30	.76 .70			5	, <u>.</u>	ŕ
1 1	Value isolation				•				
		٥			•				,
	A. Entry - Male: (1) Session I	.50	71	.72	00		A(1)vsB(1)	.19	иś
	(2) Session II	.51	39	.74	.08	· NS	A(2)vsB(2)	.79	NS ·
I	3. Entry - Female:						B(1) vsC(2)	.23 /	NS
	(1) Session I	.55	65	1.89	. 29	NS	1	/	-
	(2) Session II	.62	64	.64			B(1)vsD(2)	.24	NS
(C. Upgrade, Session I:	, ec	^		٠.,		C(2)vsD(2)	. 83	NS
	(1) Male (2) Female	.56 .64	9 28	.68 .72	4				
		•					1	•	
, 1). Equivalent, Session (1) Male	.17	6	.37	-		. '		•
,	(2) Female	.47	30	.67					
	;			•			•		



•		•						
Test	Mean	N	S.D,	t	P	Additional Comparisons	t	р
. Self-estrangement								
A. Entry - Male:	•							
(1) Session I	.67	71	76	.75	NS	A(1) vsB(1)	1.43	NS
(2) Session II	.55	38	.78	///	, 113	A(2) vsB(2)	1.61	, NS
B. Entry - Female:			- 1			1		•
(1) Session I	1.09	65	2.29	.86	NS	B(1)vsC(2)	.52	NS
(2) Session II	.82	64 '	.83	.00	143	B(1)vsD(2)	.29	. NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:				•	•	C(2) vsD(2)	.48	NS
(1) Male	.67	9	1.05	•		` ' ' ' ' '		
(2) Temale	. 86	29	. 85			1		
D. Equivalent, Session I:	4		÷			1		
(1) Male	.50	6	.76					
` (2) Female	. 9,7	30	.75			ł	•	
. Work demands	•					İ		
A. Entry - Male:				•				
(1) Session I	2.81	71	1.07	1.05	NS	A(1)vsB(1)	.98	" NS
(2) Session II	3.02	39`	.91		•	A(2)vsB(2)	2.35	<.05
B. Entry - Female:						B(1)vsC(2)	1.92	NS
(1) Session I	3.09	65	2.05	1.95	NS			
(2) Session II	2.51	64	1.13			B(1)vsD(2)	.06	NS
C. Upgrade, Session I:-						C(2) vsD(2)	2.39	<.02
(1) Male	3.00	9	I.56	•		· . , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
(2) Female	2.28	29	1.44				•	
D. Equivalent, Session I:	, 00	,	50			™ •	•	
(1) Male (2) Female	4.00 3.07	6 30	,58 1,03			}		
b	3.07	30	1.03					
. Orientation toward work				•	•			
A. Entry - Male:	0 63						;	١ , ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
(1) Session I (2) Session II	2.67 2.75	71 40	1.18 1.13	.34	NS	A(1) v ₅ B(1)	1.44	NS
• •	2.75	40	1.13			A(2) vsB(2)	.47	ns
B. Entry - Female:	0 00					B(1)vsC(2) <	24	NS
(1) Session I (2) Session II	2.38	65 , 64	1.15	2.36	<.05	B(1) vsD(2)	4.56	<.00
<u> </u>	2,85	, 04	1.13	•	•	,		
C. Upgrade, Session I:	0.73	٠.		•	` `	C(2)vsD(2)	3.54	<.00
- (1) Male (2) Female	2.67	9; 29	.82 1.22					, * · .
	2.45	47	1.22	•				
D. Equivalent, Session I:	- 00	,		•		· , " ,	,	
(1) Male	1.83	. 6	1.07		:	٠		
(2) Female	3.53	30	1.09		•			



Appendix M

SUBORDINATES' RATINGS OF SUPERVISORS ON (1) CONSIDERATION AND (2) INITIATION OF STRUCTURE SCALES AS A FUNCTION OF SUBORDINATES' SEX AND ETHNIC GROUP

	Supervisor Rating Scale	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	, b
1.	Consideration		-	•	_	,
~	Subordinate Classificatio	n:			1	
	A. White Males	54.34	55	10.94	1.59	. / NS
	B. White Females	59.26	15	8.38	2.09	N3
	C. Black Males	48.36	30	11.99	1.18	NS
	D. Black Females	51.66	86	· 13.33	1.10	ИЭ
		* A vs. C		,	2.29	<.05 ~
		B vs. D			2.11	<.05
	•	A&B vs. Ca	SD	•	12.18	<.05
		A&C vs. B&	SD		30	NS
2.	Initiation of Structure					•
~ ,	Subordinate Classificatio	n:			•	•
	A. White Males	54.45	. 55	8.16	.61	NS
	B. White Females	55.93	15	8.31	.01	No.
	C. Black Males	51.10	30	7.74	1,39	NS
,	D. Black Females	53.63	86	8.77	7,25	NO
		A vs. C			1.82	. NS
	· ·	B vs. D			.93	'NS
•	r	A&B vs. C&	D .		1.39	NS
		A&C vs. B&	.D		.56	NS

Appendix N

SUBORDINATES' RATINGS OF SUPERVISORS ON (1) CONSIDERATION AND (2) INITIATION OF STRUCTURE SCALES AS A FUNCTION OF SUPERVISORS' SEX AND ETHNIC GROUP

Supervisor	Rating Scale	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	′ <u>`</u> p
. Consider	ration s			<i></i>		•
. A.	White Males White Females	53.15	76 42	11.52 14.36	0.87	NS
c. D.	Black Males Black Females	53.67 52.15	28 40	10.19 13.09	0.50	NS
. ;		A vs. C B vs. D	•		0.20 0.36	ns ns
•	•	A&B vs. C&D	•		0.20	ns Ns
	ion of Structure ior, Classification:	, , ,	, ,	. •		, ,
A. B.	White Males White Females	53.18 · 55.59	76 42	9.18 7.95	1.41	NS
c. D.	Black Males Black Females	55.75 [‡] 51.05	28 40 -	7.14 7.71	2.51	<.05
	•	A vs. C B vs. D		•	1.32 2.59	NS <.05
•	,	A&B vs. C&D	ì		0.81	NS
	•	A&C vs. B&D			0.39	NS



Appendix O

RATINGS OF AVERAGE NON-PSC SUBORDINATE® BY SUPERVISORS AS A FUNCTION OF SEX AND ETHNIC GROUP OF THE SUPERVISOR :

Subordinate Rating Scale	e Mean	. N	Standard Deviation	t	P
l. Performance of the W	<i>l</i> orker	. ′			
Supervisor Classific	ation:				
· A. White Male	20.50	38	4.16	1.45	NS
B. White Female	19.00	25	3.66		
C. Black Male	19.42	14	4.30 ¸	.91	< ₩ S
D. Black Female	20.59	27	. 3.63	**-	•
•	. A&B vs.	C&D		.36	NS
•	A&C vs.	B&D 🍃	•	.49	nš
. Adjustment of the Wo	orkér .	-		•	•
Supervisor Classific	cation:	~, ' .			
A. White Male	20.05	, 38	3.76	.70	. NS
B. White Female	19.32	25	4.42		•
C. Black Male	20.35	14	5.10	.1.10	NS
D. Black Female	21.70	` `27	2.77	' .	
	A&B vs.	C&D ·		1.88	NS
,	A&C vs.	B&D .		.54	NS
. Motivation of the Wo	orker	`		•	•
Supervisor Classific		*	•		
A. White Male	21.05	' 38	4.17	.33	NS
B. White Female	20.68	25	4.60	•33	No
C. Black Male	20.57	14	4.29	10	NC
D. Black Female	20,77	27	5.30	.12	NS
• •	A&B vs.	C&D ·	1	.21	NS
• •	A&C vs.	"	,	.21	ns
a tillan af ab a Han		•			
. Stability of the Wor	•				
Supervisor Classific		20	,		
A. White Male	17.47	38	3.85	1.02	NS
B. White Female	16.36	25	4.67	•	
C. Black Male	17.07	14	4.81	.56	, NS
D. Black Female	16.29	27	3.81 V		
,	A&B vs.	•	٠	.56	NS
• • 1	A&C vs.	B&D	•	1.27	NS



Sul	ord	inate R	ating Scale	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	, ь
5.	Pot	ential	of the Worker					
	Sup	erviso	r Classification:	ě				
	A.	White	Male	18.00	38	3.85	.59	NS •
	в.	White	Female	18.64	ຶ 25	4.62	•33	*10
	c.	Black	Male -	18.50	14	3.50	.01	NS
•	D.	Black	Pemale .	18.48	27	5.16	702	
			•	A&B vs. (C&D		. 26	NS
			,	A&C vs. I	B&D		.49	NS



^{*}All supervisors did not complete.

Appendix P

RATINGS OF PSC ENTRY-LEVEL SUBORDINATES BY SUPERVISORS AS A FUNCTION OF SEX AND ETHNIC GROUP OF THE SUPERVISOR

(Ratings based on an average rating of subordinates in cases where a supervisor reported multiple subordinates).

Subord	inate Rating Scale	Mean		N	Standard Deviation	t	· p
1. Pe	erformance of the Worker	,				,	
Su	pervisor Classification:					,	•
A.	White Male	18.89		46	4.32	.38	NS
В.	White Female	18.50		31	4.55		
c.	Black Male	20.64		18	3.46	1.68	NS
. D.	Black Female	18.65		29	4.18		
		A&B vs.	C&D		•	.86	NS
•	·	A&C vs.	B&D			1.05	NS
2. <u>Ad</u>	ljustment of the Worker			•	. 1		
St	pervisor Classification:						
A.	. White Male	20.73		46	. 3.56	.98	NS
В	. White Female	21.50		31	3.06	`	
C.	Black Male	22.58		18	. 3.78	1.15	NS
D.	Black Female	21.25		29	3.86		•
ď	•	A&B vs.			· .	1.10	NS
		A&C vs.	`B&D		•	. 20	NS
3. <u>M</u>	otivation of the Worker	j'r					_
St	upervisor Classification:						
A	. White Male	21.02	•	46.	4.22	.11	NS
В	. White Female	20.90	,	31	• 4.88		١.
, с.	· Black Male	20.64		18	ِ 5.83 ³	.00	NS
D	. Black Female	20.63	ì	29	5.63		;
	•	A&B vs.	C&D	,		.36	ŊS
		"A&C vs.	B&D		•.	.16	ŅS.
			. '		1	. • ,	, - ;
	tability of the Worker				•	· • • ,	1
St	upervisor Classification:						
	. White Male	16.46	•	46	3.76	.60	NS.
В		17.02		31	4.12		
С.	•	16.94		18	3.64	1.15	NS .
D.	. Black Female	15.56	•	29	4.15		*
		A&B vs.		•	•	81	, NS
		A&C vs.	B&D			. 39	NS ·

Sub	ordi	nate Rating S	Scale	1/	Mean	N		andard viation		t	P
5.		ential of the		_	,			•	١	•	
	A. B.	White Male	a b a .		17.65 17.96	⁴ 66	•	4.45 4.50	•	.29	NS
		Black Male		,	18.79	18		4.58		.91	NS
`	D.	Black Femal	e .·		17.54 A&B vs. C	29 &D		4.54		.29	NS
		•			A&C vs. B				••	.26	NŞ

Appendix Q

COMPARISON OF SUPERVISORS' RATINGS OF AVERAGE NON-PSC SUBORDINATE AND PSC SUBORDINATES: (1) AS A FUNCTION OF ETHNIC GROUP AND SEX OF SUPERVISOR AND (2) ALL SUPERVISORS COMBINED

(Ratings based on an average rating of subordinates in cases where a supervisor reported multiple subordinates)

·		•	<u> </u>		
•			nate Rating		
Supervisor Classification	·	Perform	ance of the	Worker	
Supervisor orassification	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	, p
A. White (Male and Female)			• /	•	
verage Non-PSC	19.90	63	4.01	1.62	• NS
PSC Subordinate	.18.73	77 ,	4.36		
B. Black (Male and Female)					/•
Ayerage Non-PSC	20.19	41	3.81	.92	NS
PSC Subordinate	19.41	.47	3.96.		•
C. Male (Black and White)	* :		•	•	2
Average Non-PSC	20.21	52 .	4.23 .	_ 1.05	NS
PSC Subordinate	19.38	64	4.12	•	
D. Female (Black and White)	,				
Average Non-PSC	19.82	. 52	3.69	1.62	NS
, PSC Subordinate	18.57	60	4.31	•	•
•		•	.'.		
E. Combined	•			•	• •
Average Non-PSC	19.93	117	3.98	1.76	NS
PSC Subordinate .	18.99	124	4.23	•	



1	·		•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
		,	Subordinate Rating Scale: Adjustment of the Worker						
Sup	pervisor Classification	Mean	N	Standard Deviation	t	• •p			
Ά.	White (Male and Female)	•			. •				
:	Average Non-PSC	19.76	63	4.01	2.04	<.05			
	PSC'Subordinate ' '	21.04	77	3.34	2.04	'			
	• • •			, ·	ς.	۲.			
в.	Black (Male and Female)	. * '							
•	Average Non-PSC	21.24	41	3.68	64	NS.			
	PSC Subordinate	21.76	47	3.80	.04				
		·_	٠,	₩.		•			
C,	Male (Black and White)		•	* .		٥			
	Average Non-PSG	20.13	52	4.14.	1.52	NS			
	PSC.Subordinate,	21.25	, 64	3.66		•			
	, ,			,	• .	•			
Đ.	Female (Black and White)		,			-			
	Average Non-PSC	20.55	52	3.81	1.19	NS.			
	PSC Subordinate	21.38	60	3.41		,			
	· •/	•	_	*	•	-			
E	Combined								
	Ayerage Non-PSC	20.56	``117	, 3.89	1.56	NS			
	PSC Subordinate	21.31	124	3.54	,	,			



)		•				
Supervisor Classification		Subordinate Rating Scale: Motivation of the Worker					
Supervisor Classification	Mean	N'	Standard Deviation	t	p		
A. White (Male and Female)	•	, -	`-				
Average Non-PSC	20.90	63	4.31	:09	NS		
PSC Subordinate	76.97	77	4.44	,	. 115		
	•	5•	,				
B. Black (Male and Female)	20.70	41	, 4.87				
. Average Non-PSC	20.70	41 247	5.58	.05	NS,		
PSC Subordinate	20.04	†4 /	J.36	• •	,		
C. Male (Black and White)							
Average Non-PSC	20`.92	52	4.20	.00	ńs		
PSC Subordinate	20.91	64	4,.64	•			
•	•	,	• •	•	٠,		
). Female (Black and Mrite)		•	~ .				
Average Non-PSC	20.75	52	4.93	.04	NS		
PSC Subordinate	20.77	60	5, 17 .	٠,			
E. Combined			1	•			
- Average Non-PSC	20.82	117	4.57	.04	NS		
PSC Subordinate	20.84	124	4.91		110		

	<u> </u>	•		·		
	•	,		nate Rating		
Sup	pervisor Classification	Mean	Stabil	ity of the Standard Deviation		p'.
A.	White (Male and Female)					
	Average Non-PSC	17.03	63	4.18	. 49.	NS
	PSC Subordinate	16.69	• 77	3.87	, , , , , , ,	. 110
		**		· ,		· ·
в.	Black (Male and Female)	,				
	Average Non-PSC	16.56	41	4.08	.53	NS
4	PSC_Subordinate	16.09	47	3.94		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	,	, ,		*	4	
c.	Male (Black and White)	. ,			,	· · · · · · ·
	Average Non-PSC	17.36	52	4.12	1.04	ห้ธ∙
_	PSC Subordinate	16.60	64	. 23,67	7.1%	*
	, ,	•	•	***		
D.	Female (Black and White)	,				·
	Average Non-PSC	16.32	52	4-20		NS.
	PSC Subordinate'	16.32	60	4.13	· ·	
	,	•	:			•
E.	Combined					
	Average Non-PSC	16.82	117	4.43	65	, NS
	PSC Subordinate	16.46	124	3.91		



		•				•
	*		Subordinate Rating Scale: Potential of the Worker.			*
Sup	ervisor Classification	Mean	ห่	Standard ' Deviation	t :	p
Α.	White (Male and Female)		,	÷,		` `, `
	Average Non-PSC	18.25.	63 .	,4.15	.64	, NŠ'
	PSC Subordinate	17.78	77	4.41		*
3.	Black (Male and Female)	***		0 · ·		,
	Average Non-PSC	18.48	41,	4.55	47 .	· NS
	PSC Subordinate	18.02	47	4.50		,
, :.	Male (Black and White)				, ``	
	Average Non-PSC	18.13	52	*· 3.77.	.)19 ^{ć.}	. n\$
	PSC Subordinate	17.97	. 64 %	4.45	•	•
į						
).	Female (Black and White)	*	' ?	· • '		• •
	Average Non-PSC	18.55	, 52	4.86	.89	NS
•	PSC Subordinate	17.76	60.	4.452		
. ·	Combined	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			:	•
	Average Non-PSC	·18.35	117	4.44	84	` NS
•	PSC Subordinate	17.87	124	4.45	٠ ،	

Appendix R

RATING OF SUBORDINATES BY SUPERVISORS AS A FUNCTION OF SUPERVISORS' LPC SCORE

(Ratings based on an average rating of subordinates in cases where a supervisor reported multiple subordinates)

		•		•	· •	
Sub	oordinate Rating Scale	Mean "	N	Standard Deviation	t	P
1.	Performance of the Worker	•		, ,	•	•
	Low LPC Supervisors	18.58	66	4.57	.67	. NS
	High LPC Supervisors	' 19.07	67	3.73		, , , ,
2.	Adjustment of the Worker	ა		•	•	• • •
,	Low LPC Supervisors	20.99	66	. 3.29	1.16	· NS
	High LPC Supervisors	21.69	67	w 3.60	_,_,	,
		,	•	• ~		'
3.	Motivation of the Worker	• '	,	P.		
	Low LPC Supervisors	20.20	66	4-95	1.86	NS
	High LPC Supervisors	21.75	67 [;]	4.58		
4.	Stability of the Worker	•		,	•	
•	Low LPC Supervisors	15,81	66	3.79	1.91	NS
•	High LPC Supervisors	17.11	67	4.00		
			***	:		
5.	Potential of the Worker			•	•	÷
•	Low LPC Supervisors	17.13	66	4.50	1.77	พร
	High LPC Supervisors	18.47	67	4.20		,
				1		





Appendix S

BREAK-OUT OF QUESTIONNAIRE ITEMS, BY PSYCHOLOGICAL TEST

A. Forced-Choice Response Condition

,	Test	Order of Items in Questionnaire	Test Item Number®	Alternative Scoredb
1.	Cynical Distrust of People	5 14	1 2	. а а
	•	51x ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	3 4 .	b b ~ .
2.	Cynical Distrust of Organization	ns 4 13	. 1 2	a b
	<i>∴</i>	48 31	3 4	b • a ·
3.	Weak Self-Regard	7 16	1 2 .	a b
	t·	25 . 34 41,	3 4 5	a b a
4.	Achievement Motivation	6 15	1 2	b , a
		. 24 33 40	. 4 . 5	, b a b ·
5.	Time Sense	44 3 47	6 1 2	a ' a b
	,	21 \$5 ~ 39	.4 · 5	a b b
6.	Protestant Ethic	9 18	-1 ₂ .	.b . a
,		27 36 42 52	3 4 5 6	b ' a a a
7.	Expectation of Success	8 17 26 35	1 , 2 , 3 , 4	` b a b a'
8.	Powerlessness	1 43.	. 1	b a
9.	Meaninglessness	50	1 2	b a
10.	Normlessness	" 37 56	1 2 .	a b
11.	Value Isolation	54 · 11	. 1 2	b' b
12.	Selr-Estrangement	20 45 23	1 2 3	a . b a
13.	Work Demands	. 12 53 29 . 38 10	1 2 3 4 5	b a a a b
	r ·	, 10	,	i

ERIC

157.

		, ` Test	Order of Items in Questionnaire	Number_	Alternative Scored
	14.	Orientation Toward Work	46 . 22	1 2 3 4 5	a a a a a a
В.		Test Cynical Distrust of People	1 12 42 18 30 52		irection of oring Response ^C P P R R R
		Cynical Distrust of Organizations Weak Self-Regard	19 31 3. 53 43 4 32 20 5	1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4,	P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
,	4.	Achievement Motivation	6 21 33 7 45 67 68	1 2. 3 4. 5 6	P P P P P
	5.	Time Sense	8 22 34 9 40 - 63 54- 47	1 2 3 4 	R R R R
	6.	Protestant Ethic	48 45 23 10 55 49	1 2 3 4 5 6	R. P. R. P. R. P. R
	7.	Expectation of Success	41 51 17 29 60 69	1 2 3 4 5 6	P P R R R

	Toot	Order of Items in Questionnaire	Test Item	Direction of Scoring Response
	<u>Test</u>	Questionnaire	MOMPSE.	Scotting Response
8.	Powerlessness	24 11 36 56	1 2 . 3	R P P
	,	•	" ,	R.
9. `	Meaninglessness	37 . 12 . 57 . 24 .	1 2, 3 4	· R · P R P
10.	Normlessness	38 58 13 26	1 2 3 4 5	P R P P
11.	Value Isolation	27 39	1 2 3	P R P
12.	Self-Estrangement	28 65 64 16 59	1 2 3 4 4 5 5	P R P R
13.	Work Demands	·61 ·2 46 · 50 15 66	1 2 3 · 4 · 5	P R P P P
	•	·	· · ·	Alternative 'Scored'
14.	Orientation Toward Work		1 2 3 4 5	8 8 8 8

Items referred to in Test Item Number column are shown in Appendix C.

bOne point assigned if the indicated alternative is chosen.

[&]quot;CA""P" indicates that the value of the alternative chosen by respondent is scored as is (e.g., 2 = 2), whereas an "R" indicates that the scale is reversed (e.g., 6 = 5 = 2) and the resulting score assigned the item.